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WELCOME TO ST IVES PLC
WHO WE ARE

MARKETING SOLUTIONS
FOR A CHANGING WORLD

Strategic Marketing

Data Dagizal Consulting
Occam amaze
Data marketing solutions Digital marketing, commerce & technology  Consumer insight & market research

RESPONSE ONE reguse Hive

Data-dnven direct marketing Digital marketing Healtheare strategic consulting
& communications
BRANDED3 PRAGM A
Search & digital marketing Retal & consumer markets consultancy

Godtice &

-ty

Mobxle-first marketing & technology™ Retat & property consultancy™*
Underlying revenue® Underiying revenue® Underlymg revenue®
£33.2m £45.5m £32.0m
% of Group total % of Group total % of Group total
underlying revenue’ underlying revenue® underlying revenue’

9.6% 13.2% 9.3%




Marketing Activation

Books

Service Graphics
Exhibittons & Events

> R

Print & process management

SPES

Point-of-Sale & retal communications

@la tical
solutions

Field marketing services

EClays

Book production services

Underiying revenue* Underlying revenue®
£167.0m £66.9m
% of Group total % of Group total

w:derlymg revenue”

48.5%

underlying revenue’

19.4%

Non-undiertying items comprise”
PEOIENON CORE, MSIAICtUNnG COSIS.
prowision releases: opensing results of
nan-ronlinuing =kas: nel profil on dsposal
of proywty, phivil ana ecpipman) prof
o disposa of subsdliary consideration
raquied 1o b8 imated & remUNBTEloN,
smonisaiion.or impsirment of accuired
ntangivies COS1a related o tha S es
delined benglits pengion scheme

&nd ciher one-ofl kems.

Acquired in March 2015

Actuined in August 2015,




OUR GROUP TODAY

St Ives 1s an international marketing services
group compnised of 15 successful and dynamic
marketing and print services businesses We
operate not as a single entity but as a group

of market leading businesses, each with its own
unique value proposition Qur businesses offer
complementary services and collaborate closely

with each other when this adds value to clients.

WE MANAGE OUR BUSINESS
IN THREE DISTINCT SEGMENTS

Our industry leading Strategic Marketing
businesses have strong capabilities across
three specialist high growth areas: data,
digital and consulting. Our Marketing
Activation businesses, which deliver marketing
communications through a combination
of print and 1n-store marketing services
complement this offering, whalst our
market leading Books business represents
an additional source of profit and cash
generation as we continue to grow.

Lift flap for ihe full Group overview

Operational Highhghts

Strong financial performance for the year, reflecung further
growth in the Group's Strategic Marketing segment which
contnbuted 46% (2014 — 379} of undertying operating profit

Important strategic progress across all three growth dnvers

- further increase in collaboration, with over 100 clients using
services of more than one Group business (2014 - 82), including
Johnson & Johnson, Carisberg, Royal Mall and Pizza Exprass,

- cortinued international growth, with Incite opening an office in
Shanghai and Amaze winning s first maor e-commerce project
from tts new Chicago office, over 30% of Strategic Marketing
revenue s now generated from clients based outside UK, and

— further carefully screened acquisttons Chicago-based Solstice,
a maobile-first marketing & technolegy business, acquired in
March 2015 and ntagrating well, and Fripp, Sandeman and
Partners ('FSP’), a specialst retall property consultancy,
acquired since year-end

Frnancial Highlghts
3276 3446 299 330 1870 20,32
2014 2015 2014 2015 214 215
Underlying® Underiying® profit Underlying* basic
revenue [£m) before tax (Em) earnings per share (p}
£344.6m £33.0m 20.32p
718 7 80 119 860
8.7
435
2014 2015 2014* 2015 2014* 2015
Total dividend Prafit before tax Basic earnings
per share (p) per share (p)

7.80p

£8.7m

4.35p

Non-undertying iierns comprtse acquesilion COSLS, /SINETINING £OSIS. provision Meieaed. cperating
results of NON-Conlinung SHot: Ml profd on dopoetal of proporty plamt and oquipmont prof

on disposal of subssdiary” conaderation egued Lo be ireated 8s remunaration. Emorisation

o inpaiment of scqured intangibles: remeasuramen of defersd consideration; costs relxtod

1D the StLives detined benefits pontian schame snd oZher onc-alf Lems.

Figures are restaled or the 52 Weeks (0 1 August 2014 Lo rectxssdy the osis nedated 10 ha

St vas dafned Derdity pention SCheme 85 Not-underidng iams.

St tves pic Annual Report and Accounts 2015 1]

180d3IY HDILVHLS

FINVNYIA0D ALVHOLEOD

SIUNDI4 ¥NO




STRATEGIC REPORT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ANOTHER

SUCCESSFUL YEAR

02

Our approach is client-led
and we have proven success
in supporting and enabling

expansion.

Our approach

It has been a posive year

for St ves The Group has
detivered another strong financial
performance while continuing
the successful execution of our
business strategy

Our reorganisation dunng the year
into three segments - Strategic
Marketing, Marketing Actvaton
and Books - more closely aligns
our proposition with the business
needs of our clients

CQur acquisihon of Solstice
strengthens our foothold in North
Amenca and supports our drive

to expand intarnationally whilst

also adding to our oflenng in 1he
growing area of digtal and mobile
marketing Addtionaly, we have
boosted our consulting capabilites,
completing the acquisition of Frpp
Sandeman ang Partners ( FSP'), a
UK-bagad retz property consuttancy
busmess, st after the year-end
FSP will work closely with, and add
complementary skills to Pragma, our
existing retall consutting business

St lves plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Another important strand of our
strategy is our commtment to
investing in our businasses 1o buid
upon our mnovative and market
leading offermg Our approach

is client-ted and we have proven
success in supporting and enabling
exparsion, and have helpad

our busingsses Move nto naw
growth merkets where chent-led
opportundies exst in North Amenca,
China and Smgapore, as well as
adding to our headquarters n
London

When we maet a potential
acquisthon targel, our interest 1s
drivan by the services il delvers
and by its growth potentia! but also,
very importanily, by the ethos of
its management team This begins
with a commonalty of values the
low-ego, high-integrity mund-set
that has successiully transtormed
St ves into an intemational
marketing semicas business

The businesses that we buy

are run by talented people with
entrepreneunal dive and wision
As part of thelr mtegration Into

St Ives, they remam in place for
several ysars to contnus building
therr companias as indvidual
businesses whila collaborating
with others across the Group

International growth through

both organic expansion and |
further acquisthion remans hugh

on ow agenda Incie, par of our
consultancy dwvision, plans to open
a San Francisco office durng the
current financial year, adding 10
our US prasence in Chicago

and New York

Governance

The Board regularty scrutinises
our strategy to ensure we stay

on the nght path i view of shifting
market forces The tast six years
have been an intense period

of change for the Group and
internationat expansion bangs ite
own challenges, with values as
well as services to be exported

Cur CEO, Matt Armitage and our
CFO, Brad Gray had impresswve first
full years in thelr respectve roles

St ves' strong performance has
contmued under ther guidance and
they are nstrumental in Wentifying
and fnalising acquisilions. My fellow
Dyrectors and | took forward to
working with themn to deliver

further growth for the Group

We wall also be seeking o appoint

an expensnced Non-Executve
Dxrector 1o the Board who woulkd

add to the knowledge and capabiiities
of the exesting Board members

and inject iresh deas to help our
businesses grow

Our employees ~ thesr
development and health
and safety

As a resull of our transtormation
over recent years, St ves s

- more than ever — a people
business We employ over

3,000 people across the Group,

n mutiple locations and across

five countnes The developmenl and
wellbeing of our people 1s themiom
a key strategic consideration for

tha Board

As wae get bigger o is vital that

we sitract, retain and develop the
best talent As such, we recognise
the importance of demonstrating
and communicating the benefils
that our financial strength
succassiul business model and
growth-onentaled culture bnng

10 our people

It 15 also important that we continue
our ethos of collaboration, to ensure
that we make the most of the wide
range of capabiities within St ives
This, n wurn, will give our peopls the
appertunity to develop by broadening
ther expenence and skills

Heatth and Safety remains an
absolute pnority We contnuously
scrutinsa all facets of our operabions,
from our lleet of vehacles 1o each

of our stes, 10 mamntan the hughest
standards for staff and wsdors ali<e




Outlook

| belrave the Group occupies

a unique space in the market

We have successiully reshapad

the business, modernising through
acquistions in the high-growth
areas of data, digital and consutting
services while continung to nvest n
our existing operations  As a whole,
that gives us an unnvalled suile

of services for chents and a

strong proposition for invasicrs

| would fike to thank all of our
employaes for thex continulng
dedicaton, and the Board members
for thetr commament 10 growing

the Group | kak iorward to another
busy and prosperous year ahead

Richard Stiltwel
Chairman

& October 2015

CASE STUDY

Greybound

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

IN TRANSPORT

Realise has been working with
Greyhound in the US to lead

a full digital transformation
programme The business 1s
locking to achieve significant
growth ambitwons, undertaking a
comprehensive and far-reaching
programme of work designed

to boast travel {raquency

of existing passengers end
mcrease the number of new
customers

At the heart of this 1s an
understanding of the need for
holistic bustness transformation
which will touch every aspect
of Greyhound operations, with
digital playing a pivotal role in
changing brand perception

and customer expenence

Realse has therefore spent the
past year delivenng a broad
digital programme to support
business change The company
has tollowed a robust user-
centred design approach with
the first phase resulling tn the
delivery of a new web platform
for marketing and ticketing
The process has been dnven
by insight gathenng and user
vahdation, essential to support
and secure the eCommerce
goals that are a key measure
of success in this project

Collaboration between the client,
agency and third parties has been
cntical to delivering the work on
time and an budget. Realise's
relationship with Greyhound
continues to avolve, with ptanning
already under way for future
campaign work, mobile application
and physical service design

St Ives ple Annual Report ang Accounts 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

AN INDUSTRY

LEADING

APPROACH

Business model

St ves 8 an intemationa)
Marketing Services Group

We operate nct as a single entity
but as a group of rmarket-leading
businasses, each with its own
umque value propasition Our
comparues ofler comptementary
sarvices and collaborate closely
with each other when thus adds
value to chents

We have bulli strong capabilites

in our Strategc Marketing
businesses and specrfically

in the hwgh-growth segmenis

of data, digital and consulting

Our complementary Marketing
Activation capability delivers our
clients' markeating communications
through a combination of pnnt and
In store marketing services

Qur strategic focus 1s on investing
i further Strategic Marketng
businesses that will continue to
Mounsh as a parl of S ves and
that will in turn, help to support
turther growth Our Markating
Activation businesses and separate
longstanding and market-leading
Books business, represent an
additonal source of profit and
cash generation as we pursue
this growth strategy

Wa ensure that all of our
businesses are able 10 provde
mtellectual ngour and creative
thinking, combined with the

abity to execute complex ang
sophisticated solutions Wae believe
tha combination of these attnbutes
creates a set of services which
add valug that § both tangible

and measurable This helps to
delver endunng client relationships
out of which the Group can buid
long-term market streagth end
sharsholder value

We put great emphasis on creating
and nurtunng the nght corporate
culturg We look for businesses
run by stralghtiorward indisgduals
or taarns who demonstrate high
levels of passion and imegnty n
therr leadership We deliberately
operate a flat corporate structure
that gives autonomy 10 indnadua)
management teams whilst
encouraging and taciltating
collaboration

A fundamental aspect of our
business model s that all our
companes operate as separate
brands and businesses This gnves
them freadom to develop thair own
Intellectual property and to become
leading players within their markets
The Group's role Is 1o support tha
businesses with invastment to
accalerale growth and to facidate
collaboration so that our combtined
offaring creates maximum synergy
and valua for our clients

Group Businesses:

Operate as individual brands
Offer complementary services

Share common attributes
- culture, business ethos
and growth potential

04 St Ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015

International Marketing
Services Group made
up of dynamic market

leading businesses

St lves:
Provides investment
to accelerate growth

Supports and facilitates
collaboration

Offers autonomy




OUR STRATEGY FOR FURTHER GROWTH {S CENTRED ARQUND THREE KEY PRIORITIES

COLLABORATION

Facilltating and supporting collaboration is a key strand of our organic

growth strategy We belleve that a cutture of collaboration is most successful
when it is driven from within our businesses rather than Imposed by the

Group Over 100 of our clients now work with more than one business across
the Group, compared to B2 in the previous year. During the last twelve months,
we've also made Investments In |oint proposiions between our businesses

- a coliaboratlon between Amaze and Cccam resulted in the launch of the
digitally led customer relationship marketing offering Amaze One

INTERNATIONALISATION

Intermational operations have made a growing contribution to Group revenues
during the past twelve months — over 30% of our Strategic Marketing revenue
now comes from clients based outside the UK. Seven of our businesses -
Incite, Pragma, Hive, Amaze, Realise, Branded3 and Solstice - now deliver
international solutions for clients and we plan to open additional overseas
offices where we identify client-ed opportumties. We believe that this provides
a firm foundation for continued overseas expansion.

ACQUISITION

An important strength going forward will be our ability to acquire further
compiementary Marketing Services businesses which operate In the growth
areas we have dentfied and can add value to our existing portfolio We aim
to acquire non-competing companies that support our business modet

In line with our strategy, during the year we acquired Chicago-based Solstice,
a leading mobile-first marketing and technology business, Following the
year-end we also acquired FSP, a specialist retail property consuitancy,
which will work closely with our Pragma Consutting business.

GO TO PAGE 10
to read about
how we use

our integrated
capabilities for
our clients

GO TO PAGE 12
to read about
our Intermational
expansion
progress.

GO TO PAGE 14
to read about
our acquisition
of Solstice

St Ives pic Annual Report and Accounts 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S PERFORMANCE REVIEW

A SOLID STRUCTURE

FOR GROWTH

Once again there was clear
evidence of our ability to
collaborate across our individual
businesses to the benefit
of our clients, with the
level and quality of internal
referrals increasing further
during the year.

06 St Ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Performance bighlights

The Group has agawn delivered
a strong financial performance
for the year

Underiing Group revenuea of
£344 6 million was 5% higher than
the previous year The growih was
dnven by our Strategic Marketing
segment, which delivered growth
ol 4% on an organic basis along
with acquistive growth of 24%
This was partially offset by a 4%
decline In our Marketing Activation
segment, due to pressure wathin
the grocery retall sector Revenue
within our Books segment was
broadtly in tine with the pnor year

Group underlying profil before tax
grew to £33 0 milkon (2014 - £29 9
milion} and underlying basic eamings
per share increasing by 9% to

20 32 pence {2014 - 18 70 pence)

These mprovements reflect furlher
growth in our Strategic Marketing
segrnert, which contnbuted 46%
(2014 - 37%) of the Group's
undertying cperating profit gunng
the financial year

The Board 1s recommendging a final
dindend of 5 55 pence, making

a full year dmdend of 7 80 pence
(2014 - 7 15 pence), an ncrease
of 9%, refiecting the Board's
confidence in the Group's ability to
make further strategic and financial
progress during the year ahead

Once again there was Clear evidence
of our ablity to collaborale across
our indmdual businesses 1o the
benefit of cur chents, with the

level and quaity of intarnal referrals
ncreasing further dunng the year In
2015 more than 100 {2014 - 82) of
our cents used the senaces of more
than one busingss withun the Group

In hne with our strategy, during
the year we acqured Chicago-
based Solstice, a leadng mobie-
first markebing and lechnology
business which s integrating

wel into the Group Following
the year-end we also acquired
Fripp, Sandeman and Pariners
{'FSP), a specialst retadl property
consultancy, which will work

closety with our Pragma Consutting
business, parhcularly in the arport,
travel and commercial space
sectors

The past vear also saw continued
growth from our international
operations Our market research
consultancy, incite, opened an office
in Shanghai, 1o complement the
offices we have opened in New York
and Singapore with the business
winning ils first new client mandates
in the region at the end of the
financial year In addition, Amaze,
ona of our digital businesses, won
1ts first major e-commerce systems
integration project from our newly
opened Chicago office

Our strategy for further growth s
centred around three key priontes

+ organic growth through
collaboration and investment in
our existing marketing services
businesses,
internationalisation pnmarily
chent-led, mto large and high
growth markets combined with
+ further acguistions of
complementary, ambtious and
growing Strategic Marketing
businasses, wiveh shidre o
commeoen attdbutes and ethos

*

wWe have continued to make
progress across all three strategic
objectives n the yaar

Collaboration

Cur approach 1s based on cross-
thinking as opposed 1o cress-seling
and where collaboration is facitated
and supported rather than forced
Cwer 100 of our clients currently
work with more than one business
across the Group, compared to
approximately 80 mn the previous
financial year, collaborating on
projects for chents including
Johnson & Johnson Carisberg,
Roya! Mall and Pizza Express

In the year, we also extended

our rermit with HSBC, which now
angages with six businesses across
the Group In addiion investrments
have been macke in our Occam

and Amaze businesses, which
culminated wath the launch of our
digitally-led Customer Rslationship
Management {'CRM’) offering
Amaze One




CASE STUDY

HSBC

DELIVERING A JOINED UP STRATEGY

HSBC has worked with St lves
Group for more than four years
Tha globa! financial services
company lnitially became a
chent of SIMS for marketing
communications and print
management

SIMS manages HSBC's direct
mail, generating over 60 million
malling packs for customer
acquisition, customer retention
and mandatory communications
It has also implemented an asset
management system, housing
and printing on demand a full
range of training materlals

to centralise learning and
development collateral in

a cost-efficient solution

Through the solid relationships
that SIMS has cultivated, further
services are being procured from
other areas of St tves Group

SP Group produces In-branch
marketing communications for
1,400 high-street premises,
including flyers and Point-of-Sale

Internationalisation

Many of our businessas deliver
ntemational solutions for clients
and we plan to open addihional
overseas offices where we can
wdentty ctent-led opportunities
These opportunities must be in
large markets or in markats with
the potential for sigrvlicant and
sustainable growih Durnng the
year we continued to expand our
headoount i both the US and Asia
to meet clent demand We afso
openad an office in Shanghan for
Incite our consumer and market
research consutiancy Over 30%
of our Strategic Marketing revenue
now comes from clients basad
outside of the UK, compared with
27% n 2014 and 15% n 2013
Seven of our Group busmesses,
Incite Pragma, Hwve, Amaze,
Realse, Brandedd and Solstice,
now senace clients on an
international basis

Acquisitions

An important slemernt of our growth
strategy going forward is our
continued abilty to acquire further

Meanwhile, Service Graphics
produced signage and graphics
as pan of the bank’s sponsorship
of the Leeds First Direct Arena

Response One manages
customer data for HSBC, as well
as a tralning asset programme
which has been rollad out in the
UK and 1s now planned to be
implemeanted globally

Diugital services are also being
deployed Realise s converting
traditional pnnted matenals
into digital expenences that
prompt customer conversations
with branch staff Additionally,
Brandedd has overhauted
HSBC-owned First Direct’s
search marketing

tn totel, HSBC cumrently engages
with six St Ives businesses, and
1s seeing clear benefits from the
cobaboration of different Group
companies offering extensive
complementary services

compiemantary markeling semices
bustnesses which add vatue to our
existing portfolio and operate in the
growih greas we have dentified ol
data digital and consuling seraces
Our acquisition strategy adopts very
stringent quantitatve, quaitatve and
financial cnleria We aim to acquire
non-competing businesses that
support our business modet In
addition, any companias we acquirs
must already enjoy reasonable
£cale and have managerment {eams
fooking to executs the next phase
of growth, as well as encouragng
an entrapreneural and collaborative
culture that fits well with our own
Once acquired, we transtion each
business nto the Group using our
wal-estabished and successful
ntegration process We then work
with the management 1eams fo
dentify and implement the most
appropnate inmatves for drving
orgamc growth withun the busmess
This model makes ¢ mperative

that there is a clear shanng of
values between the Group and

any acquired company

in 2015 we acquired moblle-tirst
marketing & technology business
Solshce, which has ntegrated
successiully nto St ves and is
perlonming web, benefiting from
and contnbuting to collaboraton
opportureties withn the Group
Following the year-end, we also
acquired FSP a specialist retall
property consutiancy, which will
work closely with our Pragma
Consuting business

While the Group's sirategic focus
15 On expanding our Strategic
Marketing offering, management
also recognises the mportance

of continued nvestment and
innovalion n our complamentary
Marketing Actvation segment

and separate, long-standing and
market-leacing Books segment
These separale dnvisons not

only support growth for the Group
as a whole through collaboration,
but also represent an addtonal
source of profit and cash generabion
a5 we pursue our growth sirategy

St Ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

SEGMENT
OVERVIEW

[ - _
Strategic Marketing
Our Strategic Marketing
1107 cperations, which represent 20‘;: 20:1’;
32% of Group undertying
86.2 revenue (2014 - 26%), are Data 332 355
organised around three high- Digrtal 455 278
growth sectors Data, Digital Consulting 320 229
and Consulting
Undertying Strategic Marketing revenue 1107 B62
Data Undertying Strategic Marketing operating profnt 163 118
2014 2015 Cur Data businesses — Occam and
Response One - represented 30%
of Stratege Marketng revenue at Foliowing the launch of Amaze One, | Mowving torward, d 1S our intention
Underlying £33 2 milion (2014 - £35 5 milhon) the CRM collaboration between to bang our digital businesses closar
revenua Amaze end Occamn, highlighted together in order to collaborate on
cmy As reported at the half year, revenue | above, the busingss has progressed | large scale multi-discipine, mut
wathm our Data dwislon recuced well, winning projects for the tesrtory digiial cient mandates
£ 1 10, 7m compared with the previous year Arcadia Group and Royal Mai whie

163

1.8

2014 2015

Underlying
operating
profit (Lm)"

£16.3m

Betore non-undertying Nems.
See noie 8 00 page 79

due to two faclors a significant
one-oft softwara sals within Occam
i the prewious year and a change

in work mx in Response One Whie
these factors have led to a decrease
n ravenue i (his inancial year,

they have also led to an increasa

n rnarggn dunrgy the period

Over the course of tha year,
Response One has introduced
a new analytcs proposition and
mproved its digital capabites

in agdition, Occam has sigrificanly
expanded fis remi within Jaguar
Land Rover and wa are now
dslvanng seraces into them through
both Occam and Amazea Cne
Occam has also secured a number
of new wins, nciuding Car Giant
Haalthspan, Sainsbury's Retail
Technology Services and the RAC

Digital

This dmsion, which compnses
Amaze, Branded3, Reaalise and
Solstice had a good year and
coninbuted £45 5 rulbon (2014
- £27 8 million), 41% of Strategic
Marketing rovenue

Amaze has continued to extend
s commerce capabilites with a
number of sigreficant new client
wins throughout the year it has
established a cora strength in
advising manulacturers who are
transacting drectly with their
consumers lor the first ke and
In tha delvery of B26 commerce
soluhons Both areas are currenily
expenencing signiicant market
growth

08 St ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015

also extending ts CRM remt with
Northern Rarl

Brandad3 has achieved a number
of new busmness wins throughout
the year, secunng the search engine
optimisation account for Fust Direct,
which further extands our remit
within HSBC, as well 85 winning
contracts for Halfords, Chelsea FC
ang Durham University

Realise has continued (o build

its business both within the UK
and internationally Hightghts
nciuded a digtat transiormation
project for Greyhound in the US
and mnternational digrtal marketing
campagns for Disneyland Parks
and Expedia In addition, Realise
has had a number of significant
naw busingss wins including Nikon
in Europe and Hawlett Packard

& Sutter Health in the US

The acquision of Sotstce in
March 2015 broadened the
Group's digital capablities and
enhanced our infemational
credentials Solstica’s oftenng

of mobile product design and
engineenng sarvices complements
St lves' exasting digital businesses
and creates signdicant opporiunies
for ncreased colaboration at an
mternational levet

Consulting

Qur Cansulimg businesses - Incie,
Pragma and Hive - representad 29%
of Strategic Marketing revenue at
£32 0 rrulfion {2014 - £22 9 milion)

Inctte continues to grow
niernatonally, n response to chent
demand It has seen strong growth
In New York and Singapars having
opened offices in both markets
dunng 2013 and has secured a
number of significant new business
wins. Following this successful
expansion tha busmess opened
an pperation i Shanghai this year,
winning ds first new clierl mandates
n the region st the end of the
financial yaar

Pragma has also seen an increase
n demand for overseas projects
Arports and commercial spaces

n particular are high-growth areas,
with tha busness adwising on the
commercl strategy of New Mexco
City Internationa Arport, one of this
year's most hwgh profie projects

Hive, the heathcare communications
consultancy we acquired in May
2014, has integrated well into

the Group and continues to add
new ckers to Its roster, with
substantal wins from three top

20 pharmaceuticat companies lts
patent oumay mapping proposition
13 8 strong growth dnver for the
business, with recent new project
wins from Bayer, Novaris and
AbbVie This area is expected 16 ses
continued momartum nto 2016




—

Marketing Actrvation Books
2018 2014 2018 204
£m tm £m £m
Exhibiions and Events 376 367 Underlying Books revenue 669 674
Point-of-Sale 735 B24 Underlying Books operating profit a1 84
Print Management 463 431
Field Marketing 868 118 Our market-leading Books
Underlylng Marketing Activation revenue 1670 1740 674 660 business, Clays, represented
Underlying Marketing Activation operating profit 109 114 20% (2014 - 21%) of Group
undertying revenue for the year
Within Serviee Graphics we won Revenue in Clays was broadly
1740 new clients dunng the year such as n [ine with the paor year at
1670 1he Ministry of Defence, Moorieids £66 9 mithon (2014 - 067 4 mition),
Eye Hospital and Rolls Royce Within with a slight dacrease in margins
SIMS we defivered significant growth 2014 2015
due 1o new client wins including Clays 15 the market leadar n UK
Achdas and Pernod Ricard as well trade monachroms book producton
as sacunng orgamc growth from Underlying sanaces and continues to extend
our exsting client base revenue its range of value-added sences to
Despie a difficult vear, due 1o and supply chan-retated investment
mncreased compative pressures £ 66 . 9m This has inciuded the Intrduction
Underlying within the grocery refail market, of a new seli-publishmg senice
revenue Tactcal Solutons has also had that 15 seeing rapid volume growth
{emy* a number of new business wing

£167.0m

114 108

2014 2015

Underying
operating
prohit (£m)*

£10.9m

Battre non-underiang fems.
See reua 8 on poge 79

Our Marketing Activation
segment represented 48%

{2014 - 53%) of Group underlying
revenue for the year

Qur Marketing Actrvation segment
comprises our Exhibiions and Events
business Service Graphics, our
Pomt-oi-Sale speoalist, SP Group,
our Print Management businass,

St Mes Managarment Services (SIMS),
and our Field Marketing business
Tactical Solutions

Trading conditions within Marketing
Actvation were rruxed, with growth n
Sernce Graphics and SIMS ofiset by
a raduction in Point-of-Sale revenue
caused by ongoing pressures withn
the UK grocery retall sector Despre
the overall reduction in revenue

wa have mantaned margns
through improved efficiencies

and cost reducthons

over the year, ncluding Revion and 84 8.1 As reported at the half year, sentiment

Cuomn We continue to tvest mn new within the physical book market has

data and technology capabiities and improved, with eReader penetration

have recently launched a bespoka appeanng to have lavelied off withn

data tool, TSeye, to continue the UK and the US and with phyeical

to differentiate the business in book volumes stable for the first

a crowded markst place tima in a number of years

We have also significantly developed 2014 2015 During the year we reached

our creative marketing and desgn agreement with Penguin Random

offenng, The Shop, which sits withmy House the UK’ largast trada

our SP operation and which has Underlying publisher, 10 provide 100% of their

extended our European remt with operaling UK monochrome bock production

ntemational chent engagements profit (Em)° under a new mulli-year contract

such as Adidas Thes represents a sign icant market
£ 8 . 1 m share gain {or the business and,

In addion, since the end of along with a numbar of oiher recant

last year we have re signed and :"’:nmm contract wins and cxtensiona,

extended contracts with many of sacuras approxmately 80% of

our leading clients  These contract Clays worktoad for the next

extensions provide an increased levet three to six years

of visibilty and a stabla foundation

for market share growth over the

next two to three years

Outiook

The new financial year has starled
n b with Qur expectations

We continue to encourage and
facitate significant epponunites for
collaboration acress our indmidual
businesses and thene 1s further scope
to expand cur higher margin Strategc
Marketing activities bath organically
and through acquiston over the
caoming year We will continue to
nvest in our growng operations and
clent offenng in the US and Asa, as
well as in our recent acquisitions,
Solstice and FSP

The outlook for our Marketing
Activation businesses remains
challenging, mpacted by the

competitive trading conditions

mn the UK grocery retal seclor,
wiuch are expected to continue

this year However, this business
segment remans profitable and
cash generatve for the Group,

as does our markat-eading Books
business Both segments have
recently benelitted from a number
of contract wans of extensions which
help to provide an enhanced leval
of stabiity Ths, together with our
strong batance sheet, leaves St ves
well posironed (o pursua turther
acquistions of complamentary,
ambrtious and growing Strategic
Marketing businesses which share
our common atinbutes and ethos

As a Group we are clear on our
growth prionbes and are confident
that, assuming current market
conditions continue, St tves wal
make further siralegc and financial
progress dunng the year ahead

Matt Armitage
Chuef Executive

6 October 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORY
STRATEGY IN ACTION

COLLABORATION

Amaze One
COMBINING RIGOUR AND MAGIC

10

We are expanding our footprint with
existing clients in a way that wouldn't
have been possible for Occam or Amaze
as standalone agencies. That means
a more secure client base as well as
increasing and opening up new revenue
channels for St Ives.

Neil Evans
Managing Diractor — Amaze One & Occam

Amaze One i5 a greal example

of tha Group's wider strategy

of collaboration The Customsr
Relatonship Management (‘CRM')
agency was launched in November
2014 when Managing Director,

Neil Evans, entified a gap in

the market Neil, who also runs

St lves’ data-dnven markeling
agency Occam, spotied a
weakness among rival agencies
clarming to deliver strategic
communicatons for clients, when
n realty they were not making full
use of data and creative together
Tha concepl of Amaze One becarmes
reality when Net biended elements
of Occam's technical and data
expertise with the specialis! craative
skills of digital agency Amaze,
headed by CEQ, Natalie Gross

Netl explans *the collaboration
came about because Occam
knew its clients nseded a way

to bndge the gap between dala
and technotogy, and customer
expenences This was partcularly
true in the creative and content
space which s where Amaze
comes in It's what we call a

St Ives ple Annual Report and Aceounts 2015

combination of ngour and magic,
a challenger busness born out
of two established companies ™

Chents were seeking a more
coherent and successful blend

of strategy and creatve, he says
“wa beleve you need to tell clients
the truth about what has 1o happen
and than execute the idea ~ n other
words, be as practical as you are
sirateglc We knew there was a way
to edd ngour to the crealwe process
and deliver something out of the
ordinary *

Amaze One's experisnced
management tearn reflects Lha
Group's high-integnty, low-ego
approach and thay collaborated
from day ong to make a quick
impact n the market The agency
posted a strong first nine months
of operations, vindicating St Ives'
CEQ, Matt Armitage's, decision
to back the venture “Matt bought
nto Amaze One straight away

Of course there were concerns
about several peoplz domng two
roles at once but those have been
allayed and we've proved it can
work,” commaents Neil

Mugh of Amaze One's growth

has come from incremental
revenpes by cross-seling services
to Occam and Amaze's existing
clients “We am o accelerate
therr ambihon,” Nell says “We met
Northern Ral and i a short time
we wera brnging our thinking to
lIfe We've alsc completed a project
for Arcadia across s high-streét
fashion brands "

He continues “we are expanding
our Tootpnnt with existing clients
in a way that wouldn't have bsen
possible for Occam or Amaze as
standalone agencies That means
a more secure ckem basg as well
as ncreasing and opsning up new
revenue channels for St fves Now
we are having conversations with
the other businesses to mplement
the modei more widely Our aim

is to weave CRM into the Group's
DNA, across Strategic Marketing
and Marketing Actvation *

This strategy 15 aready paying
dwidends, with Amaze One joiring
SIMS as a potentiat supplier to
Royal Mail

A combination of growing existing
clients and winning New accounts
has allowed Amaze One to Increase
its headcount, In many areas adding
talent from cutside St ves A key
objectve for the year ahsad 15

the creation of a date asset

Neill explans "we are keen on
product development 1o add to

the services we can ofier chents
Owning our own data makes sense
as it 15 boensable revenue ©

He baleves the agency's ambition
proves that St ves thmees on
entreprencunal spirt “it shows
that if someona has a good dea
that can add revenue, St ves

wil match thelr talent and wislon
Even though it's 3 big kisted
company, is thinking and acticns
are fleet of foot This i1s definety

a place you can do business

(A B

Find out more about
Amaze One
www.amazeone com




Royal Mait

DELIVERING VALUE FOR ROYAL MAIL

Over the last decade, St Ives

has bullt a strong retationship
with Royal Mail St lves
Management Services {'SIMS")
was the first Group company

to work with the postal operator,
supplying matenals for marketing
services and operations

SIMS implemented a supply
chain management and

print procurement process,
resulting in signiftcant cost
savings, intemal and external
commaunication improvements,
financial benefits and better
clent service across Royal Mail
and Parcelforce

After Royal Mall was privatised,
SIMS llaised with stakeholders
to reduce operating costs and
boost market effectiveness by
promoting the use of mail

Through its work, SIMS identified
further opportunities to introduce
other parts of St lves where the

Group’s services could add value

Amaze One Is now working with
Royal Mail division Market Reach
to assess the impact and value
of mail through research, insight
and customer experience The
programme includes analytics
and media mix modelling for
Royal Mail's clients that use

mail as part of a multichanne!
strategy The ultimate goal is

to understand the complex
relationships between consumers
and channels and promote

the role of mail in the modem
marketing mix

St Ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 1
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STRATEGI. REPORT
STRATEGY IN ACTION

Incite

GEARING UP FOR

‘We're where our chents
want us to be. We don't just
head for places because
they're on the map.

Matthew Froggatt

Group MD - Incite

incite, the strategic rasearch
consultancy acquired by 5t lves
Group in 2012, continues to grow
beyond the UK in response to
nereasing clent demand The
business followsd the opering

of its US and Singapore offices

m 2013 with a new base in
Shanghai this yaar

Matthew Froggatt, Group MD

of Incrte, says the mternatonal
expansion strategy ~ atso a key
part of 81 tvas Group's own growth
plans - ts already reaping rewards
*the US and Singapore operations
tock a lew months to find thexr feet,
of course,” he explains, "but they
have grown very strongly during
the first two years and have won
lots of new chents *

St Ives pic Annual Report and Accounts 2015

resonatas in all markets but was
absent for chients before Incite
began to export its modsl “We
have smart people sching tough
problems with pragmatic tools
and approaches,” he says “That
sweel spot s underserved in the
US parucularty, bul elsewhers
too We ara hiring inteligent local
leaders who want to spend their
time with chients rather than doing
managemsant tasks and they are
hinng like-minded people ”

The agency acts as the voice

of the consurner for clients,
uncovenng and interpreting local
needs and cultural nuances But
beyond simple descnption Incite’s
strength 15 in adviaing organisations
how to plan and deploy marketing
resources Segmentation, market
landscaping and strategic
qualnative work are particularty
poputar in new markets for both
local players and new entrants

Working with new cliemts,
particuarly those with international
scope, requines understandmg

of business structures and how
ther different departments interact
Matthew adds “we often need to
navgate the complexties of client
organisations, ncluding tensions
and misaignments betwesen central
insight functions and local teams ”
The key is to recogse rcadblocks
and build relationships with many
different points of contact, for
example in research, marketing
and strategic planmng teams
Then it's a case of integralng
qualtative and quantitative work,
ravealing the details of consumers'
ves through quotes and wideos
"We aim o bnng the realty of ife
in emerging markets inlo sharp
tocus in the boardroom, to support
effective dacision-making,”
Matthew says

INTERNATIONAL CHALLENGES Matthew befieves there are The Chinese market rasearch
clear reasons for this momentum sector is unique and Incrte
He ponts to a service offer that has faced specilic challenges

estabishing the Shangha office
Bureaucratic compllance a slowing
economy and growing compettion
all add complexity “Managing a
business in China can ba tough and
5013 the work,” Matihew attesis
He continuas “cliem organisations
coma in diferent shapes and szes
Some are local "igers’ who have
mternatonal aspirations actively
sncouraged by government,

but they also need 1o meet the
expectatons of increasingly
sophisticated Chinase consumers
Others are multinationals that need
to adapt thelr product offer and
marketing approaches to local
needs and nuances The rasearch
and insight ndustry 1S Only a
decade old thers, so the exparience
of our people is a real compstitve
advantage " Incite is 1aking an
open-minded and flexible approach
to apphang ts busnass modal in
tha country, but Matthew envisages
a "high-vatue, consulting operation
with hands-on, practcal problam
solvers "

Bsewhere, the consultancy will
continue to raspond strategically
to international demand “We're
whare our cliants want us to be
We don't just head for places
because they're on the map,”
says Matthew, “further expansion
15 definiiely on the agenda bul
our main focus s on bulding

our existing markats *

Find out more about Intite
www.incite.ws




Pragma

HELPING CLIENTS PUSH
BOUNDARIES

Balancing service for existing
and new clients is key. We need
to ensure we are recruiting
talented people with both local
knowledge and international
experience as we follow brands
wherever they are trying to go.

Tom Holt

Chief Executive - Pragma

The nature of Pragma's chents
makes the consultancy npe

for international expansion

It 13 structured around three
divisions - Investor Services,
Retad Strategy and Alrports,
Travel & Commaercial Spaces
Each division has established
credentials i markets outside the
UK, with over 40% of total ravenues
NoW COrmiINg from overseas

Pragma, whuch currently has

32 full-tumg employees Is also

a leading member of the Ebeftoft
Group, a global alance of
consufting companes in over

20 countnes The alliance gives
Pragma rapid access {0 a ready-
made font of iocal knowladge when
chents wash to enter new markets

As part of St ves' Strategic
Marketing segment, the business
1s a key player in the Group's
internahonat expanson strategy
Although it has yet 10 open offices
overseas - instead providing high-
quality sarces using its London
base as a global hub - s experts
deliver gervices around the world

Tom Holt, Pragma’s Chue! Executve
says "for us it's about knowledge,
not about beots on the ground
Dunng the last year we have
worked in countries as far apart

as South Afnca, Mexico, the US
China and Germany

*Qur mtemational work 15 expanding
quickty Arports, Travel and
Commercial Spaces are high-
growth areas, especally in Asia
Due dikgence projects — adwising
private equily firms on businesses
they'd hke to buy - are substantral
assignments and often include
an assessment of mternational
performance Meanwhile, many
of the retallers we work for in the
UK want to explome other countnes,
or vice versa "

Ayport growth |s based on the
perpetual increase in gliobal ravel,
meaning commercial development
can generate vast revenues for
termnals and ther tenants Pragma
has worked on passengsr research
and retail developmeant projects

in over 50 major cities worldwide
Tom explans “t's a unique and
expancing market We do well
working with airport owners on
commerclal space plans This
extends from North Ameanca 1o
South East Asla and we balieve

we will contlnue 10 see huge growth
tn thus area of our business ™

Adwsing on the commercaal
strategy of New Mexico City
International Arport has been

one of this year's lughesl-profiks
proects Pragma adwised the
architects, Foster + Partners,

ar the operating body on the
optimal commercial strategy and
layout of the retal and food and
beverage withun the new arport
terminat to maximise revenue
potential Other strategic adwice
initiatives have inchaded French
fashwon retadl group Vivarte, prowding
strategic recommandations for

the turnaround of the business
Whils long-standing Pragma client,
Pret A Manger, is testing concepls
developed with Pragma’s support
in the US and France

Phass Eight 15 another success
story The Bntish women's designer
clothing brand has stores and
concassions throughout the UK
and many internatonal countnes

i approached Pragma about a
market entry strategy for the US
and Germany Pragma conducted
a thorough assessment of the
dynamics n gach of these markais
identrying the maost attractive route
for Phase Exght Pragma’s strategy
has lad to Phase Eight launching in
Gemany and expanding rapidly to
over 130 ntemational Pomis-of-Salg

Pragma will contnue to lock
baeyond the UK's shores as a

path to growth Tom concludes
“bakncing senace for exising

and new clients is key We need

o ensure wea are recruiting talented
peogle with both local knowledge
and international expenence as

we follow brands wherever they
aretiyingloge ™

BErracma

Find oul more about Pragma
www.pregmavk.com
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STRATEGIC REPORT
STRATEGY IN ACTION

ACQUISITION

Solstice
BROADENING OUR DIGITAL EXPERTISE

14

The acquisition has created energy
behind the Solstice brand, our mission
and vision for the future. The company

will continue to evolve as it always

has, embracing new technologies and
bringing them to customers in value-
added ways. The secret to our success
is our people and our culture. This
philosophy has created a tight-knit
group of innovators, creators and
relentless embracers of change

J Schwan
CEQ - Solstice

Buying Solstice, the mobile-first
rmarketing and technology businass,
allows St tves to extend the breadth
and depih of s digital capabibties
into another high-growth area

of customer engagement

The deal supported the expansion
of St ves’ Strategic Marketing
segment As the Group's maiden
overgeas acguistion, Chicago-
based Solstice also provides
presance and capabilties in

the Americas, further bolstenng
international client service

Solstice was launched in 2001,
advising Fortune 1000 businesses
on how t0 boost revenues through
better engagement with customers,
partners and employeas, powered
by emerging technologles Ths
consullancy also has offices in
New York and Buenos Aires

St Ives plc Annual Report ang Accounts 2015

CEO J Schwan - an expert

tn computer engneerng who
launched several stant-ups

at Andersen Consuling {now
Accenture) dunng the original
dot-com boom - says the deal
was an griportani evolution for

hus business "Culturally, the St vas
and Solstice prnciples are very
simiar” he explaing "Wa baheve
in @mpowerng our peopls  gving
them autonomy while offenng
financial and operational support
We thought this ethos was unigue
until we met the management

of St ves

“We also believe strongly in

St ves’ Investiment sirategy and
business model, and the qualty

of the companies under #s umbrslla
While Solstice empowers the digrtal
customer experience, many of the
Group's companles drive the digital
acqusiion experience, turning
prospects into customers Together,
1t's an amazing value propostion
for our international client base *

Solstice’s ralatonshup with St ves
may be naw, but J {eels momenium
Is alraady buiding “the acquistion
has created energy behind the
Selstice brand, our mession and
vision for the fulure The company
wall continua to evolve as it always
has, embracing new lechnologies
and brnging them to customers

n valua-added ways The secret
o our SUCCEesS 1S our people

ang owr cuiture This philosophy
hag created a tight-kni group of
innovators, creators and relentless
embracers of changs "

J points to the opportunty to
work alongside the Group's
Strategic Markelng businasses

to marry its digltal product
engineenng capabilities with

their broader digitat expertise

He also aims to buldd opporturiies
alongside the Marketing Actvation
companes 1o boost physicat
in-siore experlences He adds
“most of the digial companies
focus on the front half of ther digital
journsy Solshce focuses on the
back half turming those customers

nto promoters and fife-long
enthusiasts for the brand ”

The acquisition offers the syminolic
value of St lves helping Solstice
launch its proposition into the UK,
and the consultancy strengthening
the Group's international footpnnt
J1s convinced mobde wil prove

10 be “the future of computing”

as well a5 a powerlul customer
engagament channgl He axplans
"mobile s computing in the context
of the user's emvironment, the
tntersection of the physical and
digital worlds from any location,

on any screen, in any stuation it
combines tha capablities of natural
user nterfaces - touch, motion,
vorce and voice recorder — with
prescrptive analytics and artrfical
imelligence to creatae an entirely new
type of human-computer interaction *

Morecver, he baliaves technology's
evolulion promses a "utopian
Intersection between analogue
and digital,” affording consumers
more personaksed, ntimate
expenences when they interact
with brands He hopes Solstice
and St tves can quicken tha

pace of mobile adoption in the
market, concluding “wa prowde
full-lifecycle digral product
innovation, from business strategy
and ideation, to people-centred
hardware and software design, to
product development and roliout
Very few nnovation agencies
bnng that end-to-and sanice at
scale and we've yet to meet a

UK firm wath similar capabilites
and expenence We buakd digial
products that delight users and
employees, turning {raditional poinis
of tnchion into points of delight *

solstice

MOBILE

Find out more about
Soistice
www.saolstice-mobile.com




We also believe strongly in

St Ives’ investment strategy
and business model, and the
quality of the companies under
its umbrella Whale Solstice
empowers the digital customer
experience, many of the Group's
companies drive the digital
acquisition experience, turning
prospects into customers.
Together, 1t’s an amazing

value proposition for our
international chent base

J Schwan
CEO - Solstice

Rockwell Automation

REIMAGINING PRODUCT

CONFIGURATION

As the world's largest company
dedicated to industnal
automation, Rockwelt isn't

new to technology nnovation,
and knew they noeded to make
mobile a priotity in order to
provide the best experience

for their users After partnenng
with Solstice to develop their
own Mobile Center of Excellence
and drafting a roadmap for

mobile innovation, Solstice
developed an enterprise-grade
field sales enablement app

With the new app, distributors
and chents are able to configure
highty complex manufactunng
systems right from their tablet -
empowering them with access
on-the-go and enabling them to
focus on the relationship first.

St Ives ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015 15
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STRATEGIC REPORT
FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED
MOMENTUM

The Group has delivered a
strong financial performance
for the full year, with growth

in both underlying revenue and
underlying profit, and with recent
acquisitions making a significant
contribution to the Group’s
results.

16 St tves ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Overview

The Group has delivered a strong
financial performance for the [ull
year wiih growth in both undertying
revenue and underlyng profit, and
with recent acquisitions making

a significant contribution 10 the
Group's results

The Group's {otal revenue for the
penod increased by 4% from £330 7
mulbon to £344 6 milkon Reported
profit before tax decreased from
£11 9 mitvon to £8 7 milon with
reported basic earnings per share
decrsasing from 8 60 pence to 4 35
pence This decrease in reported
rasults s the result of an increase
tn non-undarlying dems, fargety
driven by the acquisihons made
dunng the year

The folkowing Financial Review
focuses on the underying results of
the Group which, in management’s
view besl reflecl how the business is
managed and show the performance
in a consistent manner The
undamying results remove the Impact
of non-undattyng items wiich ncluds
acquisihion costs, restructuring
costs, provision releases,

operating resulls of non-continuing
sites, net profit on cisposal of
property, plant and equipment,
profit on disposal of subsidiary,
consideration required o bea treatad
as remuneration, amortigation or
Impairment of acouired niangibles,
remeasurement of deferred
consieration, costs related to

51 ves defired benefits pension
scheme and other one-off dems

As a result of the reallocation

of resources and a change In

the Group's internai reporting,

we have redefined our segments

as Strategic Markeing, Marketing
Actvation anc Books Comparatves
have been reslated (o reflect the
reclassification of reporing segments
for tha 52 weeks to 1 August 2014
A tull explanation of our segmental
reporting disciosuras can be

found n note 4

Pror year figures have been restaled
to classty the costs related to St tves
defined benefits pension scheme

as non-underlying items (note 8)

Revenue

Undertying revenug increased

by £17 O rilfion (5%) to £344 B
millon After equalsing the effect

of apquisttions mada, dunng the
current and pnor year growth from
acquistions was 6% offset by a 1%
organic decing The onganic growih
withan our Stratege Marketing
segment has been ofisat by a
decling in the Marketing Activation
segment and, to a lesser extent,
the Books segment

Undanying revanue from our
Stratege Marketing segment
Increased from £86 2 milion 10
£110 7 milion, an increase of 25%,
as & result of recent ecquistions
and organic growth The growth
was spiit between organc growth
of 4% and acquistion growth of
24% Organc growth in the cument
year was adversely mpacted by

a ona-off software licence sale
recorded within our Data division
in the pnor year of £2 4 miion

Linderiying revenue from our
Marketing Activalion segment
dacreased by 4% trom £174 0
mifhon to £167 O milon  prmanty
due to the structural changes
and pressures in the retaill grocery
markat This has impactad our
Pont-of-Sale busness, SP Group
and our Figld Marketing business,
Tactical Solulions

Revenue from owr Books

segment was broadly in ne
with the pnor year at £66 9 milion
(2014 - £67 4 milon)

Gross profit margin and
underlying profitabiiity

The Group's underlying gross profit
margn rmproved from 31% to 33%
pnmarly as a resuit of the ncreased
mix {rom our Strategre Marketing
segment, which carnes a higher
gross profit margin

Underiying profit rom operations
nereased by 12% from £31 5
mitlion to £35 4 million remaining
at 10% of revenue




Undertying profit from operations
 Our Strategic Markeng segment
increased by 38% from £11 8 mikon
10 £16 3 milkon with an operating
margn of 15% (2014 - 14%)} This
ncludes full year contributions from
Reafse Limsted and The Health Hve
Group Limited, which were acquired
n the pnor year and a conirbution
from Solshce which was acquired

in March 2015 The improvement

n operatng margin has been as a
result of the acquisibon of higher
margin businessas and the change
of mix within our Data businesses
whare although the revenue has
decreasad, undartying operating
profit has been mantaned

Undarying profil from operations

in our Marketing Activation segment
has decreased by 4% from

£11 4 millon to £10 9 milhon with
an operating margin of 7% (2014

- 7%) Desprte the tal m revenue
the Group was abile to mantan

s operating margln through a
combinalion of further rabonalisation
and mproved efficlency Dunang the
period the Group closed its print
operation at ts Burnley ste and to
improve efliciency transiemed some
operations and equipment to other
Group sies to improve eficiency
The cost of £1,287,000 s recorded
as a non-undertying lem (note 8)

Undertying profit from operations

in our Books sagment decreasad
by 4% from £8 4 million to £8 1
milion with an operating margin of
12% {2014 - 13%) In March 2015
the Book business entered into a
muth year contract with Penguin
Random House to produce ali of itg
UK monochrome books The transfer
of production from the previous
supplier 15 split Into two tranches,

the first took place in January

2015, and the final tranche will be
transferred n January 2016 Asa
rgsult of this ncreased business, we
have mvested n addibonal equipment
and people to iutfil the contract

Acquisitions

In March 2015 the Group acquired
Solstice, a Chicago-based digital
business specialising n mabile-
first digrtal product design and
engineenng services The indial

conmderation of £24 7 milion was
payable in the foem of cash and
St ives plc shares

In August 2015 the Group acquired
FSP, a specalist ratal property
consuttancy Tha constderation
was payable i the form of cash
and St ves pic shares

The deferred conaideration paid in
tha year for acquisiions made n
pnor years totalled £15 6 million
{2014 — £4 8 milion)

The Group, where possible, has
1ssued shares from Treasury to
satisfy the shara element of initial
and deferred consideration

Tax

The Group's tax rate on the
undertying profit before tax was

21 3% (2014 - 23 4%) A significant
praporiion of the Group’s profit 15
generated and taxed i the UK and
the UK Corporation tax rate fell from
21% to 20% this year The total
undertying tax charge 1s £7 0 miion
(2014 - £7 1 millon)

Corporation tax of €6 6 milbon
{2014 - £3 7 million) was paid
the UK

Dividend

The Board 1s recommending a final
drndend of 5 55 pence per ordinary
share {2014 - 5 00 pence) gmng
a full year dwvidend of 7 80 pence
(2014 - 7 15 pence), an ncrease
ol 9% on 2014 The dwidend s
covered 2 6 times Dy underlying
earrings and will be paid on 22
December 2015 to shareholders
on the register ai 27 November
2015, with an ex-givgend date

of 26 November 2015

Pensions

The Trustees of the Group's

defined benefits pension scheme
completed an actuanal valuation of
the Schemse as at 30 Aprid 2013 that
was updated to 31 July 2015 The
Group will continue 10 make deficit

In March 2015 the Group acquired
Solstice, a Chicago-based digital business
speaialising in mobule-first digatal product
design and engineering services.

funding contribuhions of £2 O milkan
per annum and a contnbubon o
£0 4 million per annum (2014 ~

£0 4 million) towards the costs

of administration

The IAS 19 {(Employee Benefits)
accounting defict of the Scheme
at 31 Juty 2015 was £27 6 million
{2014 - £9 8 millon) The deficit
has increased as a result of an
increase n the liabiities of the
scheme caused by a decrease

in the discount rate used to valug
the habiities and an increase in
the mnflalion rate

In bng wath legistation that came
inte effect on 1 October 2012, the
Group is continuing the process
of automatically enroling ebhgible
UK employees into a quahtying
pension scheme The charge for
the year for the Group's defined
contribution schemes was

£3 8 milion (2014 ~ £2 8 mullion)

Cashflow

Cash generated from operations was
£35 5 milion (2014 - £31 2 millon)
Total capital expenddure was 06 1
milion (2014 = £11 7 milion) ang
included new capial of £3 5 milion
in the Books segment to meet the
addtonal volurme generated by the
Pengun Random House contract

a further £1 1 mitlon of mantenance
caprtal and the devalopment of
Tactical Solutrons' data offenng n
Marketing Actvation, and othar
expenditure of £1 5 milkon n
Strategic Marketmg and St ives plc

Debt

The Group negotiated a new
revohang credit faciity with ils
existing two banks for a term of four
years expinng on 23 March 2019
and with the ab#ty to extend the
term for a {urther year The facility
was increased from £90 ¢ milion

to £115 0 milhon

Net debt increased dunng the year
from £42 7 mullion to £62 B milion
At 31 July 2015, St Ives had drawn
£79 2 milion on s bank credn {acibty
leaving an unutilsed commitment
of £35 8 milion The Group had
cash in hand of £16 4 milion

Qur policy is 1o mantamn prudent
leverage ratios At 31 July 2015 the
ratio of net debt to EBITDA, bafore
non-underlying tems, was 1 4 times
as shawn below

2018 2014
[ om

628 427
434 3893

Net debl
EBITDA

Betors non-undaciying keme.
Seo rcnie @ onpage T

Brad Gray
Chief Financial Officer

6 October 2015

CONTINUVED GROWTH

The Group's total revenue for the period increased

from £330 7 million to £344 6 mlllion, an increase of 4%.
Underying profit before tax increased from £29 9 million

to £33 million with underlying earnings per share increasing
from 18.70 pence to 20 32 pence

St tves plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 17
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STRATEGIC REPORT
MARKETING ACTIVATION

Holland {5 Barrett

CREATING MULTI-CHANNEL SOLUTIONS

SP Group has worked with
Holland & Bamrett since 2011

It was ongnally contracted to
produce an in-store promotional
basket of pninted goods, but now
waorks with the chain, as well as
sister brand GNC, across a range
of channels

SP delivers all retaill Point-of-Sate
for both brands, and also creates
and manages all content for GNC's
digital screens, including remote
content updates for stores

The Shop, SP's creative studio,
also provides conceptuat
services through to artwork
creation, in addition to, design,
manufacture and delivery

of semi-permanent fixtures
and fittings

The client's strong refationship
with SP 15 also beginning to
open up conversations with
other businesses in the Group
such as large-format print
specialist, Service Graphics

18 St lves pic Annual Report and Accounts 2015




CLOSER
WORKING
BRINGS SUCCESS
FOR CLIENTS

Marketing Actvation houses
Service Graphics, SP Group
(inciuding The Shop), SIMS and
Tacticat Solutions K 1s overseen by
Group MD - Marketing Actvation,
Nick Cals, who was a graduate
trainge n his Tirst stint al $1 ves,
tater raturnng to lsad all of s non-

for managng the segment'’s
propostion across all of gs
busmesses and focusing

on growang clent revenues
Growith is expected from the
dentification of opporturies

to aid exceptional chient delivery
and add value edher up, down

w1
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1
=
m
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books pnnt busingsses He says or across the supply chain
“the companies wese having more Nick says “one business can

and more opportunities to work open up other opportunities -
closer together From a Group and | not just within Markating g
chent perspectve it made sense Actvation but for the Strategic o
to pull them into one place to offer | Marketing businessas too [
kritless capacty, al the right pnce | We dentify potentist solutions m
Pnint has peen commoditised, S0 that add value for the clent 8
we need to provide end-fo-end and for the Group * =
marketing aclvation solutions, E

. . throughout and across the supply | Alongside organic growth,
The companes VV.CFC havmg more and cha::\g " Clients such as HSBC, infernational client work 1s 'z,,‘,

more opportunities to work closer Adidas and Holland & Barrett are | becomung more important,

. seeing greater efficencies and with a number of clients

together. From a Group and client retum on investment through providing briets for several o
perspective it made sense to puu this tatored approach European countngs Meanwhale, ;
i .1 the nception of creatve o
them into one place to offer limitless Nick believes that the market department, The Shop, within S
(]

capacity, at the right price. Print
has been commodatised, so we need

s demanding changes to traditional
pant manulaciuring operations,
seeking stralegic partners rather
than pnnt managers He adds

SP Group has proved successiul
Nick adds “it has ghven us a
solution that can transtate the
cllent's craative asset across all
betow-the-kne channels From

to provide end-to-end marketing
activation solutions, throughout and

“chents have begun 1o organise

around a less sdoed approach, a standing start two years ago

Nick Colo
Group MD - Marketing Activation

St Ives remaing one of the leading
marketing communications
agences providing high-volume,

campagns through direct mail
n-store or digital media, they
would pratar to have a one-stop
shop to help manage therr budget
i you can do everything i one
piace il saves timg and money

in comparison 1o using several

with job roles aranged at 8 i1's now generating healthy
across the supply chain. campagn level So, 1 someone revenues
is responsitle for detivering

Nick's vision Is to set out

a single Marketing Activation
proposition, widaly known

in the market, creating new
revenue opportuniies and
altowing clents lo benefit
from the model He conclugas

n-store Point-ol- i suppliers Wa can aeffectvely “aunching a hybnd mode!
;ormat pnnt masfa;::gb}a;%e managse integrated solutions to can be cutiurally challenging,
one-lo-one‘direcl mail. field make campaigns more efficient but tha resuits are beginning

marketing expertise, and asset

and procurement management

The launch of the Group's Marketing
Actvation segment gives cisnts

the benefit of its pnnl companes

and cohesive "

Marketing Activation 1s a cash-

generatve, profit-makmng par
of the Group A semor leadershp

team of Managing Directors and
working closer together to provida
. cross-gmsional specialists s
a market-leading range of solutions apl jomt respo ty

to speak lor themsetves Ina
cynamic markel it will always
be wital to continua 1o focus
on what the client needs *

St Ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORT
BOOKS

Publishing has undergone

seismic changes in recent years
and St ves' 200-year-old books
business Clays continues to adapt
to suit the needs of s clients

The company s evolution is being
dnven by changes in technology,
processes and, inevitably, culture

Clays is 8 UX market-teader

n book pnntng, from bast-

sefhing fichion 1o academic journals
It 1s a core part of 51 lves’ portfolio
of businesses and repregents
another socurce of cash generation
and profit as the Group continues
to expand Clays sits separately n
the Books segment of the Group,
operaling very different processes
to compantes within Marketing
Activation and Strategic
Marketing, yet collaborates with
those businesses as required

to service clients

Managlng Director Paul Hullgy
oversees the 700-strong workforce
at Clays® 90-acre site In Bungay,
Sutiotkk Paul, an expenenced keadar
n supply chan operations and
transformation, has spent almost
twoe years in the role, contmuing

to modermise equipment and
processes A large part of his
strategy has been 10 ensure
employees who are used 10

vary tradiional processes becoms
more agile in the way they think
and work Clays typifies the Group’s
‘low-ego, high-integrlty’ ethos,

wath Paul keen 10 suppor! staff

to make thase transiions as the
busingss wnies a new chapier

in its long and successhil history

He says “offerng a broader range
of services for exampie pnnting
500,000 books in a few weeks
nght down 10 2 single copy for
one consumar overmght, Involes

20

adapting the cuiture and behaviour
of the pecple who are using the
naw technology

"Success is as much about their
mingdset as it is about systems
and workllows Understanding
the ditfenng demands of modern
publishing 15 a learrng curve

for us &l Tha cutture hera has
always been strong, it just needed
to adapt We're now starting to
see that strategy bear fruit °

Clays has invested heawly n
digital technology to complament
s traditional Itho plattorm,

using scalable inket printing

1o fit in short runs alongsice
high-votums orders The ongoing
modernisation is helping Clays
to secure 2nd successiully
service its customers This year,
it ¢atebrated the extension and
renswal of a major monochrome
pnniing contract with Penguin
Random House {PRH) The
aglity demonstrated through
new gquipment and processes
was a key glement in secunng
the PRH deal

Paul 15 adamant the physical book
stil has a major place in the modern
world and points to a flatiening

of e-reader and cigilal book sales
as evidence Clays can and will
continug to support the panted
page, while focusing on chents’
specific requirements Innavation
is also key 10 keeping up with
ngdustry changes He observes
“lots of different types of content
are being delivered across an
omrichannel landscape Expert
customer care and delivery are as
much a cnhical part of that for the
physical book as they are tor any
other format

St Ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015

ADAPTING
TO CHANGE

Offering a broader range of services,
for example printing 500,000 books
in a few weeks right down to a single
copy for one consumer overnight,
involves adapting the culture and
behaviour of the people who are
using the new technology.

Paul Nulley
Managing Director - Clays

"We ve got to stay on top of supply
chain evolution on behatl of our
customers Thal evolulion can
be hard to predict If we confidently
provide the nght layers of serce
for the physical books market,
our clients will also remain conficant
We hava to take nto account
developments m the publishing
landscape as well For nstance,
we ve recently mtroduced a seti-
publishing sernce that is seeing
rapid volume growth ”

In Paul's view, Clays Is a logistcs
business capable of getting small
batches of books nto shops or
smgle copies to consumers at high
speed He explans "ths minimises
the need to hold large amounts of
stock n a warehouse, Increasing
efficiency while ensunng avaiability ™
He says the company distributes
halt of the books it makes directly
to retalers but also consolidates
runs from overseas pnnters to
speed arrval on retail shelf

Clays aims to extend its logistecs
offenng by takng more ownership
of the decision-making process
Paul describes thus as "the
publishar's repnnt management
transitioning to an inventory

management capabnity, enabled
and supported at Clays as

wa understand demand and
collaborate with our clents

for smart and trmely dacisions ©
Customers are afready buying
into the concept and are kean
for it to be rofted out

The next yaar will see Clays

hone its skills to become a

shcker operation as it leams

from tha challenges and
investment of the last lew years
To that end, the business has
employed its first performance
wnprovement techn:Can (o ensure
processes are robust across

all levels of serice

Meanwtule, further change

hes ahead with the proposed
Installaton of equipment to enable
full-colour book printing within the
next twelve months Tuming over
a naw leal s not aways easy in
business, but Clays s ready to
wte the next chapter in its story

B2Clays

Find out more about Clays
www.clays.co.uk




Flarper Collins

BRINGING BOOKS TO LIFE

Clays has been working with
Harper Collins for more than

20 years [thas aremit to
produce all of the publisher’s
monochrome books in the UK
and to acl as a southemn hub for
storage and distnbution into the
UK retail trade

In addition to this longstanding
relationship, Harper Collins 1s
also engaged with other Group
companies For example,

Amaze One in partnership with
QOccam has supporied Harper
Collins to better understand its
data with the completion of a
subscnber segmentation project
By dissecting data from past
purchase bahaviour, chichstream
analysis and browsing data, more
highly targeted communications
are being delivered to customers

St lves plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 21
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STRATEGIC REPORT
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING OUR R

INTERNATIONALISATION

PERFORMANCE B

L H
Operational
Collaboration inlernationalisation Health and Safety
106 3 447
a2 24
202
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
106 31% 282
Collabaration wiltun the Group is a key pllar of our Wa have seen a growang contabubion from our We have seen a reduction lom 447 to 282 0
orgamc growth siralagy Clienls working with more inlernational operations over the past year, with tha total number of days stafl were unabie to
than gne business in the Group rese from 82 o 31% of Marketng Services revenue coming from work dua 10 a work relaled aceident
106 over tha course of the year dients based outside of the UK
_
Financral
Group undertying revenue Group underlying operating Strategic Marketing
{£m)” profit (Em)* underlying revenue (£m)*
327 6 344 6 s 354 107
882
2014 205 2014 2015 2014 2015
£344.6m £35.4m £110.7m
Group underying revenue has mcreased over Group operaiing profit has increased by £3 9m Underiying revenus in Strategic Markeing
tha year lo £344 6m. 1o £35 4m grew lo £110 7m as a result of acqusbons
and organic growih
Group underiying revenue Group underiying earnings Strategic Marketing underlying
growth (%) per share {p)° operating profit (£Em}*
5 18.70 20.32 163
186
3
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
5% 20.32p £16.3m
Undertying revenua growth of 5% compared Undlertying eamings per share have increasod Undlertying operating proftt in Strategic Marketing
1o 3% in the pravious year by 9% 10 20 32p has increased by £4 Sm1o £16 3m

Bedore non-underiyr) Bems. Sea nots 3 on page 19
22 St tves plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015




CASE 5TUDY

Phase Esght
DESIGNING AN

INTERNATIONAL STRATEGY

British women's designer
clothing brand Phase Eight
owns stores and concessions
throughout the UK and has
also expanded infernationally
It approached Pragma about
a market entry strategy for
the US and Germany

The consultancy identified

roil cut opportunities across
several channels, conducting a
detailed analysis of internationai
market dynamics, customers,
competitors and requirements

for operational support As a
result, Pragma dewised an optimal
channel strategy for the business
covenng a five-year penod

Based on Pragma’s roll cut
strategy, Phase Eight has
established a successful mix

of stores and concessions In
Germany, which has served as a
template for turther internabonal
expansion Today, the business
operates more than 130
international Points-of-Sale in
mora than 15 different markets

St Ives ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

MANAGING
OUR RISKS

The Group’s ability to achzeve 1ts strategic objectives
and implement its business model may be affected
by a number of risks and uncertainties, some of
which are beyond its control. The Group’s risk
management framework is discussed on page 31.

A Group Risk Register ts reviewed
by the Audi Commities and the
Board twice-yearty i mcludes nsks
which are speaific to the Group
and nsks escalated from the rigk
registers of ndmdual subsidanes
where they might have a matenal
aftect on the Group as a whole

In preparation for reporting on
nsk managemant for 2015/2016
under the 2014 UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Board
conducted a robust assessment
of the pnncrpal asks facing the
Group and reduced the number
of nsks reported on, below In so
doing, the Board has recognised
that & number of nsks reported
on previcusly do not represent
principal risks as defined under

tha new Code that could,
specifically, inhibit the Group

In achuaving s strategic
objectives The pnneipal nsks

In the following tabie fall into the
following categones - Strategic,
External, Organsational, Financlal
and Reputational The possible
consequencas of sach and
examples of mitigating achons
arg sel out below

Dunng the year, the processes
put in place to mitigate the
potential impact of these nsks
and uncertainties on the Group
ware effective, and none of them
had a matanal unpianned affect
on the Group's results for the
prenod under revew

COLLABORATION
INTERNATIONALISATION
ACQUISITIONS

Strategic
RISK & IMPACT ON STRATEGY

MITIGATION

Acguisitions may not Il in 1o tha Group’s stralegic direchion and may (a1 1o defiver
growth and successiul integraticn as a result

A strngen! selection cntena lor pursueng acquishions that i tha Group § sirategy
ard its culture Detalad due diligenca underiaken using external aovisors. Board
sirategic revigws held annuatly to monitor progress against the business modet
to as necessary refresh end adap! the Group's stretegy lor defivenng growth
Periogic wsils by intemaf Audil Meetings held with seror managament of the
subsicharies to determine cross seling opporiunities

Organc growth, mchuding oversezs expansion, may not be pursued m tha right
sactors or terilones whsch may resull in sigmeficant incremenlal casts Lo the Group

Regutar discussion of sirategy &l Board meetngs and mestings of representatives
from the businesses to davelop the Group's propasiion and growth opportundies
and coflaboraiive behawour Detaited budgets and three year plans ara submitied
to the Board lor review

lssues ansing within Markating Actvation and Books rmay disiract or inhitil
tha Board's focus on growth withn the Strategie Marketing segrnent

24 St tves plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Consobidavon of businesses and managemaent wathin the Markaung Actvavon
segment has created greater synergies with a senlor management team across
the segmant that oversees each of the subsidlaries




L .

External

RISK & IMPACT ON STRATEGY

MTIGATION

Challengeng economic condihons bt growth and creato uncentanty

Deversificanon mto markets that ere capabile of delivenng profil growth wath

an ncraasing rangs of marketing companies Onporiunities pursuad 10 opan
overseas offices, whers ciert demand warrants i Investment in a wader range

of serwces ofisred 1o clents A contrua! ewaw of the Group's cosl basa Secure
long-tenm client relabonships  Seek o Ncreass markel share by investing in
sophistcated and targeted sales lead generation A reguiar raview of perforrnance
of gl businesses agains! ther buogets and implement timely remedial action,
wherm needed

Compeiitive prassure resutting m the loss of a key chont

Encourage coliaborative behaviour across the Group's businesses and creale

a commitment to cross seling that will distinguish the Group’s markating offenng
from ils compettors’ Acheve or exceed service level egreements with cents
Broagen our capabiitias prowding marketing soluions in support of our cients'
markating sirategies Avoxd over refiance on any single clent Implement bespoke
proposhions lor sacuring the ranewal of key client conlracts provding Group
support where appropriate Conduct chent satisfaction surveys

Organisational

RISK & IMPACT ON STRATEGY

MITIGATION

A Ialure 10 attract, develop end retan employess wilh the necessary lafent
for our businesses

Implament appraisals and fulfil training needs where identified Develop a
colleboratve culture across the Group's busmesses Operaie discrebonary

LTIP share-based ncentrve schemes and olher benefits Pay part of considaration
n shares to vendor dwectors of acoured businesses, with lock-n' obfigatons

Financial

RiSK & IMPACT ON STRATEGY

MITIGATION

The Group's ebiiity to trade may be compromused by lack of cash funds

Conduct going concern' reviews on a twice yearly basis continually monilor the
Group's peripnmance eganst its banking covenanis Undenake monthly rewews of
working capital cash forecasts and headroom on banking covenants Penocdically
rgvigw the Group's financial KPIs wilh its bankers

The volatlity of the Defined Benefits Penson Scheme defict

Reputational
RISK & IMPACT ON STRATEGY

Agreo deficit racovary plan with tha pension Scheme Trustee Regularly engage
the Trusige directors m giscussions on the Group's performanie Mandyy possiliy
Section 75 dabis arising trom business disposals and closures Contribute 10
discussions on tha Scheme's rwastment stralegy Proactivety seek (o bt the

growth in tha pension iablity

MITIGATION

Exposurg 10 repulational or fnancral damage due to acciden! unethical trading
non-compliance with legsiation or regulation or despules

Ingrain robust heatth end safety cuiture throughout the Group supported

by rigorous health and safaty and envrormental policies martor compliance
measure perfomnancs and investigate Major incidenls Monilor changes in
legiglation and regutations, take legal advice and provide ralnlng whara necessary
Place a strong emphasis on compliance with local taxation niles by embedding
tha Group's processes and procedures Apply the Group's policres on Ethical
Trading Share Deafings, EQual Opportunities Digruty at Work and Whistie-blowing
Have n place business continlaty plans and a procedurs for dealrg with 'leaks

o tnsider Iniprmation

St Ives ple Annual Report and Accounts 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE AND S50CIAL RESPONSIBILITY

FOCUS:

OCCAM'’S TREKFEST

Occam's TrekFest s an
endurance trekking challenge
organised and run by Global
Actventure Challenges Their goal
t8 to help individuals to realise their
ambitions whilsl rasing money for
UK chanties After heanng about
the 2015 TrekFest challenge in the
Brecon Beacons Occam fielded
two teams as empioyees seized
the opportunidy 1o stretch thewr
legs test their rits and raise
money for a good cause I took
thermn no time a{ ail to dece to
supporl Cancer Researeh UK

Challenge 54 miles n 24 hours

“Afler maching the hegh pont

of Pen-Y-Fan, the highest point

in Snowdonia at 886 metres

a tough clmb through 30 mph
winds, the first leam go! info its
stnde averaging 3 6 mph between
the 27 and 40-mile markers

“As darkness fell thay soon found
out that the light of four head
torches did little to pierce the
Brecon mght but a good rate of
progress was maintaned The
torches proved more effective

at the rest point in helping to

duminate the laudable efforts of
the local Mountain Rescue Team to
get the feet of alt 170 of the 54-mie
trekkers in good encugh shape to
set off once agan

“Aftar hawng one team member
drop out at the 48 rmile mark on
doctor's orders, the remalning
three struggled on through the
dawn 10 the firush, crossing the
ineal 50T am~-20hrs at a
respectable average speed ol
2 8 mph - to the rousINg cheers
from a weilcoming' commitiee

“The adventurg resutted in a taded
knee, four pairs of very bruised and
blsiered fest, several packs of used
blister plasters and a few metres of
strapping tape, but tius was more
than out-weaighed by a massive
sense of achigvement Would the
teamn do it again? No comment!™
(Grant Wiliams - Occam)

Challenge 13 milas in s hours

“As a team of eight we set off

on the shorter 13 mile trek after
cheenng on the 54 mule tsam

Wae intially kept a farty bnsk pace
as we enjoyed a pciurasgue stroll
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along the Brecon canals, heading
towards Talybont and amving

at the seven-milg checkpout
together and in good spints

After a shorl s\op to refill waler
bottles and consume a faw cereal
bars and swests, the team spit
into smaller groups to compiete
the return leg

“All efght of us made it back to
the TrekFest basecamp within
15 minutes of one another, wilh
the first group back afier a
respectable time of four hours and
30 muinutes We wers walcomed
back with a glass of cold bubbly,
Weilsh cakes and a tasty bulfet
lunch - all very plgased with

otr accomplishment and that
we'd raised some money for

a rpally good cause "

(Ryan Mazt Thomas - Occam)

St ves funded entry fess and
matchad gengrous donations from
colleagues and inends, raising

a total in excess of £3,100

Our relationships
awith stakebolders

The Board recogrises that,

in managng the Group's actvities
1 has responsibiibes to a broad
range of stakeholders

In this report we outine how we
seek to meel these responsibilties
and measure the Group's
performance, now and in the future
The Group has had no human nghts
ssues and has ssved no polictes
that need to be disclosed ior an
understanding of the development,
performance or position of the
Group's busmass




Chents and supphers

in its dealings with cfients and
suppliers, the Group attheres
10 an Ethucal Trading Policy

What we are doing

All subsichanes repont on how

they manage ther ralabonships
with key clients Ther CEQ or
Managing Director, as the case
may be, has signed up {o the
Group's Anti-cormuption and Bribery
Policy which, together with the
Ethlcal Trading Pokcy, 15 pubicised
to all employses

The Group deals with its clients
and suppliers on g&n arm’s length
commercial basts, delivenng
consstency and refiabilty of servce
and quality No chant 1s et in

to an agreement that canngt be
terminated in the event of undar-
periormance

Payment terms granted to clients
are negotiated according to the
amouni a1 nsk and the linancial
strength of the chent concerned

It is the Group's practice to

agree payment terms with all
suppliers, which will be adhered
10, provided that they perform mn
accordance with the agreed terms
It 15 a disciplinary offence for any
employee to breach the Group s
Anti-corruption and Bribery Pohcy

How we are performing

The average creditor days
outstanding at 31 July 2015

for the Group was 76 days

(2014 - 73 days} The Company
Secretary maintains a Bribery
Risk Register which s refreshed
annually and then reviewed by the
Board togsther with a report trom
the Head of Internal Audst and
tha Company Secretary on how
the Group's Anti-camuphon and
Bnbery Policy has been applied
dunng the year

Employees

The Group s an Equal Opportuniies

Employer and no job applicant or
employee recetves less favourable
treatment on the grounds of age,
sax, marital status, race, colour,
refigion or betief Indnaduals with
disabilitiss, whether registered
disabled or not, recewne fuli and
faw consideration for all job
vacancies for which they are
sunable applicants Empleyees
who become disabled dunng
thesr working hfe wall be rstained
n employment wherever possible
and wil be gven help with
necassary rehablitation ang
retraining Wherever practicable
the Group will modidy procedures
or equipment so that full use can
be made of an ndmdual’s ability

What we are doing

The Group seeks to pay

its empkyees competitive
remuneration packagas and
incentves Wa operate a Dignity
at Work Policy 1o ensure that
the Group prowvides a working
emvironment free from harasament
and bullying and In which
employees do not behave

n 8 manner which may be
offensive 1o cthers

By gender, the Group's employees
are 69% male (2014 - 70%) and
31% female (2014 - 30%), itg
senior management 15 63% male
{2014 - 56%) and 37% female
{2014 - 34%), and the Board 5
made up of 83% male and 17%
fermale (unchanged since 2014)

Employees are reguiarly consulted
by local managers and kept
ntormed of matters affecting them
and the overall development of

the Group This 18 supplemented
by regular emails and other
communscations from the CEQ on
how the Group 18 performing, plans
for the future and how ndwiduals
can contnbute to achieving the
Group s aims Detals ol the Groups
pension schernes are set out in
nale 28 to the financial statements

How we are performing

Wea measure gender split, overall,
within senr management and

at Boand level, voluntary employes
tumover; sickness absence

and absence from work due

to accents or work-related
iness Each subsiciary applies
apprasal systems relevant to
thewr business and dentfies
trareng needs, as thay anse

Charitable donations

In agdition to focusing on one

or two thames or projects each
year, tha Group favours making
donations to a broad range of
chanties Donations are usually
made in cash but may include

the prowision of time and materials
to provide added value services
tor chanhes

What we are doing

The Group supports chantigs

in four ways by setting and

then donating an annuat budget
to chanties sening commurnities
in which the Group operates

or to which employees or clients
have a pariicular atfirty, matching
the total contnbution made by

the Charman from foregoing a
proportion of his faes, supporting
fun fund-raising events for
chamties nomunated by employees,
and, finally, adopling a particutar
chantable project each year

Thus year we directed 35%

of tha Group's total donation

to cancer research, treatment

and patient support {(see below)

How we are performing

During the year the Group donated
a total of £55,747 (2014 — £54,920)
to 60 chanties In addition to
focusing thes year on cancer-related
chanties in particular, donations

of varyng sums werne made to
awide spectrum of other chanties
including the Alzhaimar's Society,
Contact the Elderly, CEBRA

{which supports indmduals and
{arniies aflected by Epidermolys:s
Bullosagenetic — a skin condtan
which causes the skin lo blister

and tear at the shghtest touch),
Great Ormond Street Hospral,
Help the Burmese Delta {completing
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the Group’s three-year commmtment
to funding the bulding of two
schools), Special Effect (which
uses vdeo games and technology
to enhance the qualrty of life of
people with disabiliies} and the
Stroke Assoclation

Shareholder relations

The Board attaches considerable
importance to maintanng good
relationshps with shareholders
Effective two-way communication
walh nstiutional shareholders and
analysis s estabished through
regular presentations invoving
the Chref Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer

What we are doing

Tha Board recetves an investor
relations report at each of ds regular
meatings The Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer conduct bi-annual analysts'
brefings and, where appropnate,
maest with the Company's major
sharehoiders to further explan

the Group's Investment proposition
A number of mgor sharsholders
have accepted the opportimnnias
to mest with the Non Executive
Directors

How we are performing

The Company's top 20
shareholders hold approximately
67% {2014 - 65%) of the
Compeny's 1ssued share capital
Those which have an obligation to
notify the Company of ther voting
interests are shown on page 55

The Annual General Mesting

15 regarded as an opportunity

to commurucale direclly with
sharehoiders and the Charr

of tha Audit, Nomnation and
Remuyneration Committees will
each be availabie at the meeting
to answer sharghokiers' questions
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY CONTINVED

2.7

175§ 185

2013 2014 2015

06
05

03

203 2014 25

Total Group Carbon amissions
{inousand tonmas)

16.5t

Strategic Marketing Carbon
emisaions ((housand ornes)

0.6t

12.7

a1
63

2013 2014 2015

87 8.9 96

2013 2014 2015

Marketing Activation Carbon
emissions (thousand 1onnas)

6.3t

Books Carbon gmissions
{thousanrd tonnes)

9.6t

Scopa 1 - emissions from actmbes
ownad or conintliad by the Group
3 6 Ihpusand 1onnes (2014 -3 1)

Scopse 2 - amissions sssociated
with our consumption of purchased
elecincity heal steam and cooling
12 9 thousand tonnes {2014 - 14 4)

CO @ intansity measure
- grams per E of revenue

Group 479
2014 - 52 1)

Strategic Marketing 50
(2014 -56)

Marketing Activation 37 5
{2014 - 44 q)

Books 144 6
2014-1326)

1,668

688  2g2

2m3 2014 2015

63 64 59

2013 04 2015

Total Group waste seni to landfill
{lornes)

262t

Total Group water consumption
{thousand cubic metres)

59m3
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Enuironment

St tves s committed to continuous
Improvement in its environmantal
performance and accepts that

s responsiblities with regard to
environmental protection rank
equally in imporiance wath other key
business objectives The Board is
respansible for sething the Group's
Environmerial Pohcy

What we are doing

Wae continually monitor and
work o reduce tha Group's
carbon emissions, waste sent to
tandfill and water consumption

What we report

We report our CO,e emissions n
tine with the requirements of the
Comparies Act 2008 (Strategrc
Report and Girectors' Report)
Regulations 2013 In doing so
we have adopted the following
methodology

a) An operational boundary
approach has been apphed on
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emssions
n the UK using DEFRA's Standard
Set converston factors for 2015

b} Where actual energy
consumption data cannot be
cobtained we have estmated
arnissons, pro-rata, based on
the data recorded by similar
sites In the Group Using this
mathodology the estmated
emissions from these sites
equate to 0.3% of the Group
total emussions

€) Scope 3 Emissions are not
reported on as they are oulside
our oparathonal control The
Board will, however, keep this
under review

d) This reporting year's armissions
from Solstice are excluded as we
have yet {0 finghse the processes
required to oblam relable data
for this new subsidiary

How we are performing

The charts show the Group's
Scope 1 and Scope 2 COe
emissions and our CO,e ntensity
measure (which 1s grams of CO,e
per £ of revenue) The COe
emissiong performance of each
reporting segment - Strategec
Markating, Marketing Actvation
and Books - are also disclosed

The Group chart shows
improvemnent, year on year,
whuch is dnven by an improved
performance in tha Marketing
Actvation segment This is due
to the exclusion of the Bradford
site {two months’ production
consumption having been
included in the perlormance

for 2013/2014) and the closure
of the Burnley production
faciity dunng 2014/2015

The other two segments have
shown 3@ year On year ncreasa in
emssions The Books segment
shows an increase following

a correction ta one of the fuel
corversion factors used Appiying
the pnor year tactor wotild,
however, have shown Books'
ermissions to be lower than 1as)
year, at 8 6 thousand tonnes’ CO.e
The rise in Strategic Marketing's
emissions follows the inclusion of
Hive and Realise for the first tirme,
having been acquired last year
This segment represents cnly 3%
of the Group's overall emissions

Two further charts show that the
Group's wasly senl W la xdill has
continued to 1all and 1S approaching
a level of relatve wnmatenality
which will prompt a review of

how we measure and report on
wasie in future The Group's water
cansumption continuas to follow

a downward trend

The Group s Environmental
Pohcy and further informaton
about the Group's emaronmenial
perlormance durng 2014/2015
can be viewed on the Group's
websnte from 30 Oclober 2015




Health and Safety

The Board regards the health and
safety of the Group's employees
while they are at work as a
pre-eminant duly

What we are doing

The Board ensuras that
responsibilhes for Health and
Safety are properly assigned,
accepted and fulfiled within the
organisation A Statement of the
Board's approach to Health and
Safety 15 publicised at alt of the
Group's sites and each subsidiary
company's CEQ or Managing
Dwrector, as appropriate, has
formally acknowiedged thewr
role n ensunng that managers
and employees ai each site arg
adequately conversant with ther
legal duties under heahh and
sataty legislation

The first itern on the agenda

for each parent Board meating

is to receve a report on Heatth
and Salety-related KPis, selected
10 measura and manage the
Group's Health and Safety
periormance, which are as follows

manthly and cumulative

statistics on near misses,

all lost ume accidents and
Reportable Accidents, the
Group's Accident Frequency
Rate, the Group's Injury Incidence
Rate and a report on employmant
hatulity insurance clams,

the rrumstances of any
Reportable Accidents and
management action taken as a
result are also conserad, and

* Group intiatves lor improving
Health and Safety periormance

The Group operales a bespoke
on-ing Health and Safety
Management System for

* reporting accidants and near
miss incidents,

* hosting a Health and Salety
document kbrary, and

* apphing standards of
accredtation to contractors
who apply for consent 1o work
at our sites

A dnver safety awareness
programmae s in plage throughout
the Group which 15 an impotant
part of managing Tactcal Solutions’
maotor vehicles which are driven

by 11s field marketing slafl

How we are performing
The total number of accldents
at the Group's sies for the year
endead 31 July 2015 which resulied
n at least seven days' absence
each was three {2014 - eleven) and
the number of days’ work st from
&l acodants at work was 282 days
{2014 — 447} Wa recorded 1,347
near miss” evehts dunng the year
(2014 - 1,250)

A copy of the Group's Health

and Safety Policy and performance
data for 2014/2015 will be made
avahable on the Group's websie
from 30 October 2015

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on i1s behalf by

Matt Armitage
Chief Executive

€ October 2015

FOCUS:

FIRE AND ICE

Service Graphics’

‘Fire and lce' Trek

“Abson and | have now completed
our seven day 'Fire & lce Trek
across Iceland tor Great Ormond
Stresl Chidren's Hosptal We flew
back on Wadnesday evening, and
asde from a few aching kmbs,

we are pleased to say imunes
susianed by the team ware
mnimaill

“It was a very challenging trek
through a lot of snow and In some
very chully temperatures! Throw m
a few volcanoes, lava fields, a kot
of high mountains, and even some
nver crossings {(water straight off
a glaceer 15 extremely cold by the
wayl), and we all made it to the
firssh ne

“Perhaps what is most supnsng
Is that | managet 1o survive sx
nghts i1 a tent!

“Wa raised in excess of £11,500
towards the £37,000 that a total
group of seven raised from the
trek | would ke to take ths
opportunity 1o thank everyone
for thelr support, kindness and
encouragement dunng bath our
training and atso throughoul the
trak, it really is appreciated’

“The money raised will make
such a huge difference to the
hospital, and 1o the Iives of the
patents and 1hewr farmibies *
{Sarah Bate — Service Graphees)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

& October 2015
Osar Sharsholder

The Board invesls a sigruficam amount of ime on mantaning high slandards ol governance, in recognilion of the value that sound corporale
governance can add to the success and sustainablity of the Group's business | am pleased, therefore, to ntroduce our Corporate Governance Report
{or the 52 weeks ended 31 July 2015 ('the penod'), which tncludes indmidual reports from the Char of each of the Audit Commities, Nommation
Committee and Remuneration Committee on pages 34 o 39)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS MEMBERSHIP
The Board's membership throughout the penod and the Dwectors® attendance at pre-aranged meetngs of the Board 15 set out in the table opposte
on paga 31

The Board meets at regular intervals and 1s rasponsible to the shareholders for overall Group strategy, acquistions and dvestments, major capria
projects, nsk and financial matters Senor execulves within the Group make regutar prasentations 10 the Board to eppnse the Directors on ther markets
and how they serve them, growth opportunities and future chaflenges and how they propose to address them All Direclors receive agendas and papers
in advance of gach meeting, detaled minutes are recorded and actions followed up

It s the opinion of the Board that, throughout the penod, each of the Company’s Non-Executive Directors was mndependent for corporate governanca
purposes and free from any busmess or other relationshp which could matenally interfere wath the exercise of us Or her judgamant In reaching this
opirion, the Board has carefully considered potential conflicts of interest and the balance between applyng good practice and what i beleves s in
the shareholdars” best interests The Non-Executive Directors have a clear understanding of thewr roles and responsibiiies, which are appropnately
documented The Non-Executive Drectors met dunng the penod, without any Group executive bemg present Mike Butierworth fulfifled the role of
Senwr Independent Director

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and distinet and an appropnate dwvision of responsibiities between the two has
been sl cut In wnting and approved by the Board The Charman has responsiity for the management of the Board and refated matters whilst
the Chwel Executive Officer has responsibiily for overall execulive leadership of the Group, overall responsibility for strategy implermnentation and profil

Tha Company's arlicles of association set out detaled provisions for the retirerant of Directors and therr re-appointment or appointment at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting Although not reguired under the Coda, all of the Duectors have, however, voluntarily agresd to retire at the 2015
Annual General Meeting and seek re-alection

BOARD ACTIVITY

Dunng the penod, the Board camed out a review ol matters ressrved to t for decision  The Executive Directors meet reguiarty with the chief executive
officers and managing directors of the subs:dianes wathin the Group's business segments 1o discuss magor cusiomers, sates growth including cross
seling opportunties), knowledge shanng peopla iIssues and Group wide procurement infiatives

All Owactors have full and timely access 1o all relevant information needed 10 enable them to properly discharge thelr responsibéitias and have
unrestncted access to other axecutves within the business to discuss any matter of concemn to them A procedura exists for Directors 1o seek
independent professionat advice in the furtherance of ther duties and to be resmbursed their reasonable legal 1ees and each has access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary

The areas of focus for the Board dunng the penod were Health and Satety perdormance the Group's growth strategy, the acquistion of Solstica
Consulting LLC, the appraisal of other potential acquisitions, nsk, and Governance and Board performance The Board also held an annual strategic
review away-day al which, inter alia, presentations were receved trom the Chiel Executives of the Group's Strateglc Marketing businesses from which
significant organic growth has been targeted

BOARD PERFORMANCE
The Board confirms following a performance review (hat all of Lhe Direclors slanding for ra-election continue o perform efieciively and demonstrale
commitment 1o their roles

Having last year underiaken a formal evaluation of the electiveness of the Board with support from a third party consultancy, The People Stufl this year
the evaluation was conducted on a less formal basis, taking the form of one-10-one interviews between the Chairman and each Director The Board is
satisfied thal the Board 1s operaling etecively and agreed 1o mplemenl 2 number of recommendzations that arose from the interviews The Board has
engaged The People Stuff to facilitate the 2015/2016 evaluation Interviews with the Uirectors and the Company Secretary have been conducted and
actions will be debated and agreed by the full Board

On appointment, each Director receives an induction appropriate to their previous expenence as a Director and thelr knowledge of the markets in which
the Group operates

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audn, Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the Board exsted throughout the period, sach of which is serviced by the Company Secretary from
whom copes of the terms of reference for these commiltees can be obtained or may be viewed on the Group s comporate website (www st-ves ¢o uk)

The Audit Committee Report on pages 34 to 36 discussas the pnncipal acimhies conducted by the Committes dunng the panod and sigruficant financial
matters which were considered by the Commuttee and actions taken i respect of these

A report on the work of the Nommation Committee s s6t cut on page 37
A Statement trom the Charr of the Remuneration Committes and the Dwrectors’ Remuneration Report can be found on pages 38 to 53

Evaluations of the eflectiveness of the Board's Commuttees ware camed out dunng the penod and the outcoms m each case was that they ware deemed
effective in camrying out therr terms of reference and recommendations ansing from the evaluations will be implemented

The membership of each Commuiitee throughout the period under review 15 comimented on in the aforementioned reports
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE
In the opirvon of the Board, the Board and its commutises each met sufficiently frequently 10 properly discharge the responsibiines set out in thelr
raspactve terms of reference Recommendations from evaluation of the effectveness ol the Board will be implemented i the forthcoming year

Details of Drractors” attendance at Board and committee meetings based on ther maximum possible attendance dunng the penod are as follows

Audit Nomination Rermuneralion
Board Committes Commities Comimittes é
Matt Armitage 9/ - 272 -
Mike Butterworth a
{Servor Non-Executve Director and Chalr, Audit Commities) 98 313 272 44 2
Ben Gordon 9/9 33 212 a8
Brad Gray 9/9 - 272 - 3
Patnck Martel 373 - - -
Helen Stevenson
(Char, Remuneration Commitiee) 9/9 3/ 272 4/4
Richard Stiftwell
{Char Nomination Committes) 9/9 - 2/2 -

Thia table only showa detaila of aT1endance &l mostings in the pre-avanged annual Mmeetng Calendar Other ad hoe meatings ware hesd ouring the period
Throughout the period at least three Independant Non-Executive Directors servad an gach of the Audit, Nommation and Remuneration Committees

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group has in place a corporate reporting and nsk management framework in comphance with Principle C3 of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(September 2012) {'tha Code’) after hawng due regard to the Financial Reporting Councll Guidance

The Board 18 responsible for the Group's system of internal control, inchuding financial, operational and comphance controls and nsk management, and
tor reviewing s effectivenass A workable and realistic system can only be designed to manage and migate, rather than eliminate, the ask of falure to
achieve business otyectves and, therelore, can only provide a reasonable and not absolute assurence agamst matenal misstatement or io8s
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The Directors consider themselves collectively responsible for ensunng that strategic, market operational inancial and legislative, reguiatory, contraciual
and reputational nsks are sutably managed and are referred to the Board, as necessary

Tha Group recogrusas that 1aking and managing risks is inharent in any business and n delvering its strategy On pages 24 and 25 we set out the
prncipal fsks and uncertainties that have been \dentfied from the reponting and nsk managemen frarmawork ther possible impact on the business,
and what mitigating actions tha Board has approved

$3¥NOK INO

The Board cames out reviews twice per annum, both from a top-down and bottom-up perspecive, and considers the mpact that thase pancipal nsks
mught have on the busingss and on the Group's abiity to meet is strategic obyectves

The process by which the Board exercises control 1s by holding (a) nine schedulad Board meetings per annum, {b) regular meetings of senior
managemant drawn from each of the Strategic Marketing Marketing Actvation and Books segments which are chaved by an Executive Director, and
(c) ragutar management meelings of each operation withm these segments Risk is reported on and moniored with senior managemant and any new
areas 0! significant nsk 1o the busnesses are then raised at the next meeting of the Board if considered approprate

The Group's Internal Audhit function consests of two qualiied accountants who, as necessary, draw on additional resource from professional services
firms The work planned for the Internal Audhit team to undertake 1s linked closely 1o the nsk management framewcrk, with the internal audit plan
designed to gre assurance around key nsk areas

Dunng the panod the Internat Audh functron performed work on the Group's intarnal controls, reviewing the controd environment and the testing of those
controls Controls testing of procurement, accounts payable, payroll, accounts receivabie and credit control cycles took place gt selected stes including
work at the Group's shared senvices centre which provides centralised accounts payable credit control and general ladger sennces to a number of the
Group s companies

Annual mlernat control questionnares, supplemented by a hall year questionnarre, are completed by abl the Group s bustiesses and reviawed by the
Company Secretary and Head of Interna! Audiil Any nconsistencias with the Group's established corporate governance regimes which are entified
are disclosed to the Audit Committea

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT
The Company is reguired to comply with the Coda, to the extent that 1 applies to ‘small-cap” companies, or explain the reasons for non-comphance
The Coda can be read n full on the Financial Reporting Council’'s websie (www frc org uk)

In the opruon of the Board the Company has, with the exception of Code Provizion E 2 4 {iming of the maling of Netice and accompanying documenis
to shareholders), throughout the 52 weeks ended 31 July 2015 been in comphance with the Code The non-compliance arose fram hawng 16 reprnt the
Annual Report and Accounts for 2014, panted by a thed party which despite using the same paper and inks as those used the previous year, resulied in
a product of unacceptable quality The document was reprinted on different paper and the maiing to shareholders was completed on 4 November 2014,
within the relevant prowisions of the Companies Act 2006 and Company's articles of association, but three calendar days later than that provided under
the Code In future, proof copres will be examined to ensure, at an early stage, the produc! s of acceptable quality

This Corporate Governance Report, logether with the reports on pages 34 1o 57, descnbes how the Board has applied the other Main and Supporting
Prnciples contained m the Code and, where appropnate, where it has adopted elements of corporate govemance good practice

Approved by the Board of Cirectors and signed on its behalf by

Richard Stiltwell

Chalrman
St tves plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 N




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

STRONG
LEADERSHIP

Member of the
Audit Comrmittee

Member of the
Remunerauon Commuttea

Mamber of the
Nomination Committee
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Matt Armaitage
Chief Executive

COMMITTEE.

APPOINTED 1 August 2014

EXPERIENCE. Matl Armiage, ACMA joined the Board on 3 September 2007
as CFO having previously worked lor Tequila London Lid - a below-tha-fine
markating services business owned by Omnicom Inc - or Tve years as ther
Finance Diacior Matt headed up the Group s Marketing Senaces businesses
{rom March 2012 until his appointment as Chiet Executve on 1 August 2014
Pror to oinmg the Company, Matt had held vanous financial management
postions with comparves operating in the telecommumcations 1echnology
and fasi-moving consumer goods industngs, including ten years with

Untever pic

Mike Butterworth
Incdependent Non-Executive Director

COMMITTEE-

APPOINTED- 1 August 2010

EXPERIENCE. Mike Butierworth, ACA served for eight years as Group Finance
Dwractor of Cookson Group ple, a FTSEZ50 company uniit December 2012
whan Cookson was de-merged Prewously Mike was Group Finance Orector of
Incepta Group pic for five years, an nternalional markeing and communications
group paor 10 which he spent five years as Group Financial Controller at BBA
Group pic, tha international awvahon and matenals 1echnology group Mike i the
serior Non-Execuinve Director and chairs meelings of the Audn Committes

Ben Gordon

Independent Non-Executive Director

COMMITTEE.

APPQINTEDr 15 July 2013

EXPERIENCE. Ben spent ning years as Cruaf Exacutve of Matharcare

pic uni 2011 and the previous three years as Senior Vice President and
Managing Director Disney Store, Europe and Asia Pacilic Ben had previousty
held semor positions within WHSmith Group in the UK and USA and with
L'Oraal S A in France and the UK.

OTHER ROLES Ben s a Non-Executive Director of Batwic pic a Serwor Partner
and Non Execuive Director of Powerlgague Group Lid and a Trusiee of the
Canal and River Trust




Brad Gray

Chief Financial Officer

COMMITTEE.

APPOINTED 1 August 2014

EXPERIENCE. Brad Gray, ACA joned the Group from Grant Thornton

n 1988 and held a number of fnance possions for the followng six years

In 1994 he was apponted Finance Dyector of the Group's Magazine printing
business before serving as its Deputy Managing Drrector unil 2007 Brad

then continued n general management as Managng Dwector of SIMS, and
subsequenily as the Group's Operations Director in 2010 he was appointed
Corporate Devetopment Dwector playing a key role in implementing the Group's
acquisition sirategy in 2012 Brad's responsitwiiies were broadened to include
the responsibites of Deputy Finance Diractar He was appainted Ched Financial
Oificer on 1 August 2014

Helen Stevenson
Independent Non-Executive Director

COMMITTEE.

APFPOINTED 1 May 2012

EXPERIENCE. Helen Stevenson was Chef Markeing Olficer UK at Yel
Group PLC from 2006 to 2012 and, pnor 1o this, served as Uioyds TSB Group
Marketing Owector Helen staried her career with Mars Inc whera she spent 19
years culmnaiing n her role as European Markeling Dvecior leading calegory
siralegy development across Eurape Helon has n the past served as 8 Non-
Executive Dwactor on the main board of ihe Depariment of Work and Pensions

OTHER ROLES Helen currenly hokis Non-Executive Durecterships with
the Skipton Bullding Society and Tnnity Mirror pic, serves on the Strategec
Adwsory Board of Henlay Business School and 13 a partner n Shirlaws
Group Helen chalrs the Remunaraiion Commuties

Ruchard Stillwel!

Chairman

COMMITTEE

APPOINTED- 26 Apnl 2011

EXPERIENCE. Richard Stilwell joinad the Board on 1 September 2006 and
was appoired Chairman of the Company on 26 Aprl 2011 Richard was
Execuive Vice President of ICI pic, whare ha had held vanous posts

for 26 years until 2000, before changing career and qualiying as a barnstar
More recently Richard has held Non-Exacutive Drrectorshps at Panna
Consulting plc, Scon Bader Lid, TB! Ltd and Fibrewely plc

OTHER ROLES Rwchard 1s curently a Non-Executve Director of Albertrs
Motorways UK Lid and Alberlis Qverseas (UK) Lid Richard chars megetings
of the Nomnation Commitiee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Commuttee’s key rote 1s 10 gam assurance around processes that support financial reporting, including internal control,
risk management and legal and regulatory compliance, together with financial reporting Rself

6 October 2015
Dear Sharehgclder
| am pleased to prasent a report on the rols of the Audit Committee and its actmiy dunng the pencd ended 31 July 2015

CURRENT MEMBERSHIP

| charr the Commitiee and bning recent and relavant financial expenence 1o 1 having served as Cheef Fmancial Officer of a FTSE250 company for enght
years until December 2012 Throughout the pencd under review and the cumrent financial year to date, the other members of the Commities wers
Ben Gordon and Helen Stevanson

In addiion to the Commitiee members, the Charman and the Executive Directors of the Board and the Head of internal Audit are invited to attend
each mesting The Commitiee members do howevar, meet saparately at lsast once a year with the external auditors and the Head of Internal Audt
and | am in {requent contact with the external audh partnar and the Haad of Internal Audit

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE
The Committee carnes out the functions required by DTR 7 1 3R of the UKLA Disclosure and Transparency Rulgs The pnnclpa! responsibilties
of the Commitiee are set out in the Commitiee’s terms of reference, which are avalable from the Group's wabsite (www st-wes o uk)

MAIN ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE IN 2014/2015
The Commattee heid three scheduled meetings i the period at which it

* agreed an internal audit plan,

* considered reports from the Group's Head of Internal Audn,

* considered the appropnateness of the Group's nsk management process, including the results of an internal controls questionnaire, completed
by management within the Group’s operaling sites,

¢ considered the ra-appointment of the external auditors, ther reports to the Commitiee, therr ises and ther independence including an assessment

of the appropnateness to conduct any non-audt work,

reviewed the Group's trading updates and Half Year Report pnor {o refease,

considered significant accounting and reporting 1Ssues pertinent to the preparation of the Halt Year Report and the Annual Repon and Accounts,

monitored and reviewed the mndspendance and objecimty of the exierna! auditors and the eflectiveness of the external audit,

conducted a review of the Committee's effectveness,

reguiary rmoniored tha quality of work performed by 1he Internal Audn tunction,

reviewed the Group's Whistle Blowing Policy and the effectveness of the Group's Anti-corruption and Bribery Policy,

recaved a raport ssting ot tha Going Concern rewew undartaken by managament, and

undertook a roview of the etfectivenass of the external audr process by reviewing reples to questionnawes completed by the management and

Audit Commdtea mambers

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

The Committee also undertook a review and assessment of the Annual Report 2014/2015 in order 1o determine whether in its opinion, the Annual
Report and Accounts for the period, taken as a whole 13 far balanced and understandable and provides sharehoiders with the information they need

to assess the Group's performance, busmess modal and strategy To provide addibional support to the Board in makming this assessment, the Commitiee
approved and monitored an enhanced rewiew and verification process of the Annwal Repon and Accounts underiaken by management and provided
confirmation to he Board thal this process was both iollowed and effective In thus respect, the Commulies

* racened reports on the requirements of Prowision C 11 of the Code which were updated as an ongoing par of the year end process,
reviewad a full draft of the Annual Report and Accounts, using an avaluation 100! to help judge what constitutes 'far”, ‘balanced’ and
‘understandable’, how performance 13 reported, the explanation of the business model, and the arbiculstion of the Group's strategy and whether
the Annual Repor and Accounts, In the opinion of the Committee, complies with Prowision C 1 1 of the Code, and

* reviewed the outcomes of reviews performed by the exiernal auditors

34 St Ives ple Annyal Report and Accounts 2015




SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES

The Committee has assessed whether suitable accounting policies have been adopted and whather management has made appropnate estimates and
judgements m respect of significant financial issues The Commattee considered accounting papers which provded deatails on the main inancial reporting
judgements, which were addressed as folows

Significant matters considered How the Commttee addressed these issues
The assessment of the camying value The Commuttee recenvext reports in relation to the assessment of the carmying value of tha goodwill
of gootwll and intangitle assets for each cash generating urit ('CGU") The Commuttes considered key judgements mciuding the

discount rate, long-lerm growth rate, and the projecied fulure cash Nows of each CGL to which
goodwill and iInvestments are allocaled, based upon the projected financial plans approved by the
Board The conclusion of the rewew and the key assumphions are disclosed i the notes to the
consohdated financial statements

Dunng the penod. the Commuttee reviewad the imparment assessment of the acquired intangible
assets and goodwill for Tactical Solutions that was carned out by management and concluded that
an impairment charge of £1 5 milion should be recorded in relaton to the goodwall and customer
relationship asset The charge has been recorded as a non-underlying tem in the Consoldated

Incomsa Staternent
The classdication of non-undertying ftems The Commuttes reviewed reports from management outining the nature and size of each
nen-undertying dem, and concluded that the Rems conformed to the Group's accounting policy
The valuation of the St ves cefined benefits The valualion of the St Ives defined benefits pension scheme 15 judgemental due to underiying
pension scheme assumptions in determining the discount rate, inflaton and Ife expectancy for the Scheme as at the

balanca sheet date The Committes reviewed reports from the management and from the Company's
and the Scheme's actuanes cuthming the assumptions used, and agreed with those assumptions

The kay judgements refating 10 the assumphons  The judgments largely ratate o the assumptions usad to denve the value of the acquired intanglble
used In valuing the acquired Intangible assets assets The Committee recelved and reviewed reports from management cutlining the basis
for acqursitions of the assumplions used mcluding the discount rate, attntion rate, useful bfe and valuation

of contributory assets

GOING CONCERN
The Committea receved a report setting out the Going Concern revew underiaken by management that forms the basis of the Board's going concern
conclusion on page 54

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Tha axternal auditor's appointment Is raviewead regularty and, in accordanca with the Audiing Practices Board standards the Lead Audtt Partner is
rotaled at leasl once every five years A full tender process was last conducted by the Company mn 2009 which resutted in Deloitte LLP ( Deloitie )
being re-appanted The current Lead Audt Partner has complated four annual gudits The Board continues to monrtar any tagal or regulatory changes
proposed or made i the UK which affect Small Cap companies There 1s no present intention to conduct an audit tender

The Committee's policy wihich was raconfirmed dunng the pentod, for determining the level of fees for non-audit services that the external auditor can
provide 15 as follows

a) relevant sthucal gudance ehall be taken mio account regardng any proposal 1o request the Group's external audtors to performn non-audi services,
b) it Is mappropriate to set a ixed percentaga balance between audit and non-audit fees paid to the Group's extemal auditors for project work,
¢} subject 1o {d) below, the Board shall appont whoaver, n its opiion, will provide the most cost effective and timely service for undertaking
a particutar proect, and
d) the Cheef Financial Officer is to consult with the Charman of the Audit Committes in advance of any non-audit work in excess of £25 000 per project
that the external auditar may be invited to periorm for the Group, so that an agreed view might be taken on whether o put the project oul 1o tender

The Committee has sausfied dself hal this policy has been appropnately epplied The split belween audil and non-audi fees for Lhe penod 18 disclosed

m note 5 1o the consofidated finzncia! statements The non-audi fee was of a type and leve! thal they are nol considered by the Commiitee to
compromise the objectnvity and ndependence of Deloitte
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AUDIY COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

The Committee also considered the robustness of Delorte's safeguards and procedures to counter threats or percaved thraats to therr objectmvity,
the application of ther independence policies and therr adherence to the Ethical Standards published by the Audiing Pracbces Board In all these
raspects the Commuttee was satisfied with Deloitie’s objectmty and independence The Commitiee 15 satisfied 1hat there are no relationships belween
the Company and Deloille, i1s employees or ils affifiales thal may reasonably be thought 10 mpan the auditors’ objecivily and independence Prvate
maetings are held with Delorita 1o ensure that no restnctions are placed on the scope ol ther audit and to offer the external auddor opportunities

to discuss any items the auditors dd not wish to raise with the executives being present

A reviaw of the effectiveness of the external audit tor the 2013/2014 year end was performed during the penod which invoived the completion of
two questionnares containing assertions of best practice’ - ana by eéach member of the Audit Commuttés conaning ten assertions - and another
completed by the management of each subsichary containing 15 assertions The areas coversd included the audit team expertise and experience,
the audit ptanning process, audit execution, communication, adding valua, responsieness, reporting tmefiness and focus Parbcipants were
requested 1o score gach assertion between one and four to indicate ther lavel of agreement or disagreement The results were then reviewad by the
Audit Committas and Chiet Financial Officer before beng discussed with the external audilors The completed guestionnares showed in aggregate
that the external audit had achieved a clear majonty of the assartions in each area of focus

In the absence of any adverse findings as to the objecimty and ndependence and efiectveness of Deloitte, the Commuttee has recommended 1o tha
Board that Delodte be re-appownted for 2015/2016

Mike Butterworth
Charr of the Audit Commiltee
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

L - i

The Nom:nation Committee's key role is to lead the process for Board appointments and make recommendations to the Board
6 October 2015

Dear Sharghotder

On behat of the Nomnation Commuttee, 1 am pleasad to report 10 you on the work it undertook dunng the penod ended 31 July 2015

CURRENT MEMBERSHIP

The Board has decided that @ Nomination Committes, consisting of all the sening Board Directors, 8 workable given the size of the Board and, ndeed,
deswable All Dwectors are given an equal voice in dectding on the method for reachung a short list, norminating and deciding on the selecton of new
members of the Board It 18 important to a small board such as ours that the process of selection 1s nght to suit the particular circumstances and that
any decision made to nominate a new member of the Board 1s unammous Directors interview all candidates for appontmernts which come under the
auspices of the Nomination Committes

The Board is aware of the increasing focus on the compostion of boards and the emphasis on dversity and does not feel t appropnate to set targets
for diversity in the boardreom or, in particular, 10 set a percentage of women it aspres to having on the Board The Board has recognised, however,
that diversiy within the boardroom s important to the success of the business and the Cormnmuttee seeks to reflect this view

The Group's policy on alfording equal cpportunities to all emptoyees and sultable apphcants extands to the Board Anyons appoinied to the Board will,
however, be selected on ment against objective criteria, taking into account the skills, expertise, and experience of the candidates

When we look outsida the Group to racruit wa make clear that we ame keen 1o conskler candidates from all parts of the community In terms of gender
ethnicity disability age and 50 on We intend to continue with this policy

Our disclosure on diversity generally can be found on page 27 within the Strategic Report

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The pancipal role of the Committee 15 to consider and recommend to the Board candidatas who are appropnate for appontrment as Executve or
Non-Executve Directors 50 as to mantan an appropriate balance of skills and expenenca represented on the Board and ensure that the Board
18 refreshed as appropnate

MAIN ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE IN 2014/2015
Dunng the penod the Committee’s main tasks were to consider the composihion of the Board and a Board level succession plan

In considenng the compasition of the Board, the Committes has recegresed thal the Group has undergone sigrificant acceleration in the past four years
in s transiion 1he continued implementation of our sirategy by the acquisition of Strategic Marketmg comparnes and the opening of overseas offices

Shape changs will continue through further acquisiion and, ncreastngly importantly, from orgamic growth and investment In the acquired businesses

The Board already includes a wide spectrum of expenence and expertise among its Non-Executive Directors Notwathstanding this, however, the
Commultes has concluded Lhat, given the challenges descnbed above the Board would benefil irom the appointment of an addibonal Non-Executive
Dwector who would add to the knowledge and capabiliies of the existing Board members With this in mind the Committee has approved a profile for
the type of candidate 10 be sought and the selection process 1o be followed in finding the nght person The Board's view on diversity will be laken into
accounl dunng the selection process. Whilst such an appointment 1s regarded as beneficiat in the longar lerm the appointment 15 no! seen as being
urgent, gven the current composition of the Board

Foflowing the promotion of Matl Armitage and Brad Gray Lo the posilions, respeclvely, of Chiel Execulive Officer and Chief Financral Officer, during Lhe
penod the Committes started the process ol formulating a succession plan in respect of the Executive Directors A thid party consultancy, The People
Stutf, was engaged 10 perform a Talent Audit dunng the year which involved nteniews with 15 servor employees m the Group The purpose of the Talent
Audit was to raview the rasources in placa to help the Group deliver Its overall strategy

The Committee discharged s other prncipal dutes by

¢ ensunng that an appropnate review of Board, Committeg and Director effectiveness was undertaken dunng the penod,
= consdenng whether the Non-Executwe Crrectors ware sufficiently mdependent for corporate governance purposes,

« deciding on which Cwectors should retre at the forthcomng Annual General Meating, and

« approving the dwvision of responsibities batween the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The Commmttee s pronties for 2015/2016 will be to progress the possible recruitment of a further Nen-Executive Drrector and to finalise a Board level
succession plan

Richard Stillwell
Char of the Nomination Commitiee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
LETTER FROM CHAIR OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committea’s key role is to set the broad policy for remunerating the Executive Directors and recommend
a remuneration policy which supports the creation of value for shareholders and the delivery of the Group's strategic priorities

6 October 2015
Dear Shareholder

On behatf of tha Remuneration Committes, | am pleased to prasent the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the penod ended 31 July 2015 covenng
the remuneration of Executive and Non-Executive Drectors

Similar to last year, this report 15 spit into three parts this Annual Statemant, a Polcy Report and an Annual Report on Remuneration As our
remuneraticn policy for Drrectors 1s unchanged from that approved by shareholders a1 the November 2014 AGM, we have provided an abbreviated
Policy Report to give context to decisions taken by the Committee dunng the year The full Policy Report as approved by shareholders, can be found
in our 2014 Annual Report and Accounts availlable on the Company's website As reguired by legistation, we will be submitting this year's Annual Report
on Remuneration to an advisory vote at the Annual General Meeting on 26 November 2015

PERFORMANCE AND REWARD FOR 20142015

Dunng the period we continued with the successfut execulion of our strategy 10 grow our Strategic Marketing segment The acquistion of Chicage
based Solstice has enhanced our digital and mobile marketng capalyity whilst supporting rternational expansion Collaboration across the Group
continues 10 strengthen with an Increasing numbar of clients working with more than one business in the Group as our ofienng expands

Good progress has been made agamns the linancial key performance indicators (KPTs), with undertying Group revenue increasing by 5%, undertying
PBT increasing by 10% and underiying basic EPS increasing by 9%

tn kght of the 2015 perdormance, Executive Directors wil each recewve bonusas of 69 7% {irom a possible 100%) of basic salary A summary of actuat
performance agamnst the targets set 15 ncludad on page 46 Consistent with the policy operated in pnor yaars, any bonus eamed which exceeds 50%
of basic satary will be paid in shares which will be held in the Company's employee benefit trust for iwo years

The Annue! Report on Remuneration also gives details of LTIP awards granted n Novembar 2012 which are due to vest in Novemmber 2015, subject
10 achieverment of the performance condions  The Company's undertyng basic EPS performance in the final year of the three-year penod ended
31 July 2015 warranted 50% {from a possible 50%) vesting Further datails, together with comments on the Company's Relative Total Shareholder
Return performance 10 the start of September 2015 on which vesting of the remaining 50% of the award 15 dependent, are gven on page 47

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2015/2016

Durnng the year the Committes reviewed the remuneration policy approved by shareholders at the November 2014 AGM, and congluded that the
rermuneration structura continues 10 be appropnate  Foliowing consultation with the Company's major shareholders for 2015/2016 the Commitiee
has introduced {)) & second performance maasure to complemsnt EPS for annual bonuses in ine wih bast practice, and (i} an additional periormance
measure for the LTIP to help reinforce and accelarate delivery of the Company's strategy Further details of these changes are detailed below

In recent years, the Company has used underlying EPS as the sola performance meastire for Executive Director annual bonuses For 2015/2016,

the Committee has suppltemented EPS with an element on bke-for-ike growth in undertying revenues from the Strategic Marketing segment with a
25% werghting 1o remnforce orgarsc growth i thus area To ensure these revenues are 1n shareholders’ interesls the Commitiee must be satisfied wilh
the quality of revenua growth for this element to pay out, laking into account factors such as the gross margin arising from these addional revenues

LTIP grants in recent years have vesied after three years based 50% on underying EPS i the final year of the performance penod, and 50% on thres-
year retalve Tolal Shareholder Return ('TSR') The Commiltee has supplemented {hese measures with an element based on underying operating profil
{rom the Strategc Marketing segment, with 2 25% weighting This element will be based on the percentage ol the Group's undertying aperaling profil
from the Group's Strategic Markeling segment i the finat year of the performance penod, underpinned by the achievement of 8 mimmum level of EPS
The Committee balieves that this will resnforce and accelerate a reshaping of the portfolio towards the targeted growth area of Strategic Marketing

The weighting on underying EPS wil be reduced 1o 25% to accommodats this change and the balance (50% of the total LTIP award) will continue

to vest on relative TSR, to further renforce alignment with sharehoider interasts

As disclosed i last year's report, the Commiites ncreased the basic satanes of the Chiet Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectvely,

1o £400,000 per annum and £230,000 per annum aflacive 1 August 2015 In confirming these increases, the Commuttee 100k into account the
strong performance of both Matt Arritage and Brad Gray since ther appointment inlo their new roles and s satisfied that such increases are justried
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SHAREHOLDERS' VIEWS

The Commitiee actively seeks to engage with shareholders and takes close account of developments in ‘best prachce’ guidance In parhicutar this year
we shared with the Company's major shareholders the Commuittee’s changes to the short-tenm and long term ncentves for the Executive Directors
referred to above

We continug 1o value any feedback from shareholders and hope to receva your support at the forthcomng Anrval General Meeting

Helen Stevenson
Char of the Remuneration Commitiee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

R N

This Directors' Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with Tha Large and Medwm-sized Comparves and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) (Amendment) Regulabons 2013 The report 1s also tn accondance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and the relevant recommendations
contained within the UK Corporate Govemance Code (September 2012) {'the Code’) refating 1o Directors’ remunaration and takes into account the
wviews of our major shareholders The legislation requires the auditors to report to the Company's members on certain disclosures contaned in this
Report and to state whether in ther opiion that part of tha Report has been properly prepared n accordance with the Comparnies Act 2008

The sections, between pages 40 and 53, which are subject to audt have been highlighted

POLICY REPORY

SUMMARY OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY
St ves' remuneration policy was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Mesting on 27 November 2014, and took effect from that date

We republish below the policy table from last year's repont, updated as necessary, 1o give context 1o dacrsions taken by the Commattee duning the year
The full policy report, as approved by sharaholders can ba found in the Annual Reporl and Accounts 2014 available on the Company's website

BASIC SALARY
Purpose and Link to Stratogy Operation Maximum Polentisl Value Performance Metrics
To provide competitive lixed Normally reviewed annually with As dascnbed in last year's report, Not applicable

remuneration that will atiract and
retain kay empiloyaes ol a high
calibre and wivch will reflect their
expenance and postion in the
Company

increases effective from 1 August,
salaries ara pard monthly

In setting salaries, the Committee
takes into account the following

« capabiity of the ndivicdual,

+ any changes n responsibility,

increases awarded across the

workdorca, and

+ gxternal economic factors such
as mfiation

tha Executwe Directors’ salanes
eflective 1 August 2015 are
as follows

* Chief Execulwve Officer
£400,000p a, and

+ Cheef Financigl Officer
£230,000pa

Future increases will genarally be

n kng with the range (in percentage
of salary terms) awarded across
the Group

in accordance with normal practice
at all levels in alf parts of the Group,
increases above this level (in
percentage of salary terms) may
be made in certain crcumstances
such as where there 1 a change

n responsibility or a significant
increase (n the scale of the rols or
size and complexity of the Group

BENEFITS

Purpose and Link to Strategy

Operation

Maximum Potential Value Performance Matrics

To provide market compettive yet
cost effectve bensfits 1o attract
and retan high calibre executives

Benelils generally include provisicn
of a car, fuel aiowance and privale
med:cal and life assurance cover

The Committes may introduce
other ancillary benefits which are on
surular terms to those offered to the
wider worklorce or requirad n order
to remain market competrtrva

Overseas recruiment o7 an
international assignment may
require the benefits package to
be more tailored Lo reflect cultural
norms and/or local legisiation
and may include relocation

costs and/or tax equalisation
aangements as necessary

The maximum annual car and
fuet allowance 1s £15 520

Not applcable

The maxamum overall cost of
total benefit provision (including
but not limited to annual car and
fuel allowance) may vary each
year subject to changes in the
Company's insurance premiums
or changes 10 the terms of the
benefils prowded

Tha values for the year under
review, axpressed as a cost to the
Company of prownding the benefils,
are describad In the single figure
table on page 46
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PENSION

Purpose and Link to Strategy Operation Maximum Potenilial Yalue Performance Metrica
To prowige market competitva, yet  Only basic salary 15 pensionable Up to 15% of basic salary Not applicable

cost-eifective benelis, 1o act as a
retention mechanism and long-term
reward service

A company contribubion to a
defined contnbution pension
scherne a personal pension or
provision of a cash payment in
lieu of a penston contnbution
for combination of such) may be
prowvidad at the chscretion of the
Remuneration Committee

ANNUAL BONUS
Purpose and Link to Strategy Operation Maximum Potential Value Performance Metrics
Incentvises achievement of annual At the stari of each year the 100% of basic salary Performance 1s measured over

objectives which support the short-
term performance goals of the
Company

Commities determines the choice
of annual bonus measures and
largets to ensure they reflect the
short-larm KPIs of the buginess
at that tuns

Paymaents under the annual borws
plan are subject to

« compulsory payment of any
bonus earned over 50% of
salary {on an after tax basis)

i the Company's shares under
the Company Deferred Bonus
Shares ('DBS') arrangement
which are subject to a holding
penod of two years and

+ the element of the annual bonus
paid In shares is subject to
clawback prowisions in the event
of a matenal migstatement of tha
Compeany's financial posihon

Ceterrad shares wiil generally be
forteited 1if a Director leaves the
Group (unless In certaln good
leaver situations or if the Commuttee
determmes ctherwise)

Dradends and/or dividend
equivalerd ze payable on the
deferred bonus shares dunng
the two year holding penod

one financial year

Bonus awards are subject to
achievernent against a sliding
scale of challenging financial
targets and may also be
subject to challengng personal
objectves

The majonty of any bonus will be
sarned for achiving challenging
financial 1argets aligned with the
Company’s key performance
ndicators (g g undariying basic
EPS) A minonty may be subject
1o achieving pre-set parsonal
objectives which reflect the key
pnormies of the rote at the tme

Bonuses becoma payable once
a8 threshold ievel of performance
1s achieved agamnst the targets(s}
which tnggers a bonus payment
of 25% of sakary, nsing to

100% of salary for mesting

(or exceeding) the maximum
1arget(s) set Measurement of
financial metncs s made on the
hass of audited figures Where
personal targets are set it may
not always be prachicabie to est
these using a sliding scale

Page 50 of the Annual Report on
Remuneration provides details
of the performance measures,
targets and weghtings to apply
for the year ending 29 July 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

e S S ———
LONG-TERM INCENTIVES
Purpose and Link 1o Stratogy Operation Maximum Potentlal Value Performance Metrics

Incentmses executives to achieve
supenor financial growth and
returns to sharehoiders over the
longer-term

Provides alignment with
shareholders through awards
of shares

Promotes retention of key
individuals

The Long-Term Incentva
Plan ('LTIP7) was approved by
shareholders in 2010

Elgnbifity to receve awards is at
the discretion of the Committee
each year

Awards are normally made on an
annual bases and vest threa years
from granit subject to continued
employment and the satistaction of
challsngmg three-year performance
targets

The Commitiss reviews the
quantum of awands annually and
monitors tha continuing surtabdity
of the performance measures

Participants banefit from the value
of dwdends paid over the vasting
penod to the extent that awards
vest This benefit 1s delvered in the
form of cash or additional sharas at
the tme that awards are exercised

All Awards granted after November
2013 are subject 1o clawback in the
event of a matenal misstatement of
the Company's financial postion

Awards with a face value of up to
125% of bask satary (or 200%
the Committea believes there are
exceptional creumstances) can
be mage on an annual basis

The Company operates within a
10% in ten years ABI {new shara
1ssug} diuhion kit

Performance 18 measured over
a three-year penod

A balanced approach 1o target
sattng s {aken with at least

halfl of an award subjgct 10
challenging financial largels inked
to the Group's key performance
ndicators (e g underiying basic
EPS, targets set 1o reflect strateqic
objsctives, et¢ ) with the batance
of an award subject to a relatve
Total Shareholder Return measure

25% of an award vests at

thrashold performance {0% vests
below thig), ncreasing pro-rata to
100% for maximum performance

where TSR performance
condiions are sel, pericrmance
against the condition is monttored
ndependently on the Committee’s
behall and whera financial targets
are sal performance agamst the
condition is tested based on
numbers derived from the audited
financial slatemanis

Page 51 of the Annual Report

on Remuneration provides details
of the performance measures,
targets and weightings tc apply
for the year endng 29 July 2016

ALL-EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

Pumose and Link to Strategy

Operation

Maximum Potential Value

Performance Motrics

Encourages long-term sharsholding
in the Company

Inwitations made by the Committee
under the Approved Sharesave
Scheme

Executive Directors may participate
in a monthly savings contract on
the sama terms as other employees
of the Group

As per HMRC krmits (8 g current
maxenum monthly savngs towards
share purchases s mited to £500
per calendar month)

Not apphcable
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SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

Purpose end Link 1o Strategy Operation Maximum Potantial Value Performance Metrics
To provide alignment between A sharehokding of 200% of salary Not appicable Not applicable
executives and shareholders for the Chuef Executive Officer and

150% of satary for other Executve
Drrectors 13 expected 10 be
achieved over a penod of five years
commencing 1 August 2013 or
date of appointment, if later

50% of the nel of tax nuanber of
deferred bonus sharas or vested
shares under the Company's LTIP
will normally be required to ba
retained until the gudebne s mat

The Commuttes may take account
of progress towards this target
when datermmuning LTIP awards

Netes

1 While the rerruneralion policy for Exacatve Directors is designed having had regand 16 the policy lor employess acrosy the Group as a whole thare &re some ciftarences in the siructure for
senior gmployees which the COMMINas DEtieves 10 DE NOCESarY 10 refiect tho afferant levals of rRSHOASIDEY wilhin the Company Tha iolowing kay tilterences dxds! Batwaan tha Company’s
policy for the remuneration of Executive Cirectors and its approseh 10 the paymen of employess gensraly

* there is anr phesis on perk retatad pay 2nd In particudar for share basaed incentives 81 1he Exacutive Deckor leval®
* ghoblity 10 panicipgle in and the maxmum opportunity in retation 1o annusl bonus vary basad on indivichual rola and local practice
-WMthWhmwwWWmemmmmm and
* benefits otlered 10 other empioyees vary by subsickary 1D taka sccount of relavani merket conditions

2 The share lrvels gre o abova The shanes thad an Exacutive Direcior may cowrl I0wards the sharehoiding guidelings incluctir 1hose held i thé nama of the Direcior
lhosahddhﬂunmonhebmclnthm paringr or chigren any shanes hekt in a igmily st ko the Denafit of the Director and/or hiy/har s0ouse partnar or children and any chares held
'n a personal pension ptan on betaf! of the Diracior The Cor may In ity phsok jon eporove the holding ol shares by ellernale mezns (e g shares heid under B delerrad stere boma.
eward} end, il permitied on auch terms determinad by the Comimitioe acting feldy and reasonatbly

3 For the avoidance of goubt in epproving This Directors Rerunenation Policy Buthority i ghven to the Company 10 honour ary confsritments #ntensd into with current or lormer Direttors (such as the
payment ol 8 pension or tha vasting/sxertiss of HAS! Shars Awaros) that have bean disclosed 10 and approved by shivehoiders I previous remuneraton reports Detalts of any paymernds 1o former
Cireciors wiil D set oul in tha Annugl Repeet on Ramuneration as thay aiss

4 The Commities operaies the annual benus LTI and Shaveseve plang in accordance with thekr nides HMRG guidance and, whers relevertt the Listing Fases 7o ensure these inceniive plana operate
In 2n eficlent mannar tha Commiites retaing a number of stanciard marked praclice discrelions which inckuds

+ peteninng the eSgiolty 10 particlpate in the plans

« getermining the timing of gram of swerds and any paymenis

+ the size of awars and payments aXhough with quantum resirciad 10 thaoss detalied In the 180k above ardd the REOACtve pian el
= tha retarmineilnn of whather the periormancs conaltions have bean met and the reauking vesting/pay out

= desing whh a change ot control {ior exampie 1he timing of 1a3ling performance 18rgaie) of restnuciuing of Ing Group

* deisrminung & pood or bad kaver for incenive pisn purposas, hased on the rules of sach pian and the agproprisie treatment chosen
* adjustmants required in cenain capital events such as rights issums, CoMOrale RStUCING, events and epockl dvidonds sng

s the anmual review of pertormance conditions for the annuat bonus pian and LTIP

N s0me ckCumsiances, such as 8 material acquistiion/dvestment of a Group business, & & change In Accounting Stanciards and imferpretations. which mean the origine! performance condifions:
@rd no longer appropriste the Comumitieo can adust the targats sel diftarent and afler woighlings o3 10 e the congilions achiove thelt ongaal pLUpnse and are not matestaly
ks ditticull 10 salsty
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The following sets ocut the fee policy for the Chalrman and Non-Executive Directors

Purpoase and Link to Strategy Operation Maximum Potential Value Performance Metrics
To attract and retan high calibre Non-Executive Direclors’ For 2015/2016, the fees compnse  Not applicable
indmduals without prejudica to the  remuneration s decided by abase fee of £42,500 p a plus
appiication of independent views the Executive Directors and the additional fees of £5,000 p a for

Chalrman, the Chairman’s fee is the Senlor independent Director

set separately by the Committee poshion and £7,500 p a for

Feas are set penodicatly by

taking account of the tme required

to fulfil the role and fees payable
at similar srzed compames

Any increases in fees also take
account of any ngreases payable
to Executive Directors and to the
general worklorce

Non-Executve Directors may
not participate mn the Group's
cash or share-based incentve
arangements

Non-Executive Directors also
receive remmbursement of travel
and office related expenses

chainng the Remuneraton and
Audit Commttees The Chairman’s
feg1s set at £130,000p a

These fees may be revised
penodically i1 Eng with the
Company's policy Grven the
pencdic nature of the review any
mncreases (as a % of total tees)
may be greater than that awarded
to the wider workforce in any
parhcular year

The maximum aggregate fees
ara sel n accondance with the
Company's arncles of association

ANNUAL REFORT ON REMUNERATION

The following section provides dstails of how St Ives’ remuneraton polhcy was implemented during 201472015

MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE

Mike Butterworth, Ben Gordon and Helen Stevenson, all independent Non-Executive Directors, served on the Committes throughout the year
Helen Stevenson chared the Commutiee throughout the year The number of meetings held, attendances and a descnplion of the pancipal matters
considered by the Committes in carrying out its dulies during the year are descnbed on pages 31 and 45

Dunng the year under review, the Commuttes, where appropriate, sought adwice and assistance from the Company Secretary and members of tha
8oard, including the Chairman of the Board, the Cheef Execulve Officer and the Cruef Financial Otficer in connection with carrying out s duties
None of these persons 10ok parl in decisions relating specifically o their own remuneraton

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee 1s responsibla for determining and agreemng with the Board the overall ramuneration policy and ds implementation,
including settng the indwvidual remuneration packages and contractua! arrangements for tha Executve Drectors, semor management and the
Charman of the Board which support the creation of value for shareholders and the delivery of the Group's strategic prionties

When undertaking its duties, the Committee ensures that due account s taken of pay and employment condttions throughout the Group by keeping
abreast of matiers such as {i} the general leve! of satary increases (if any) applied throughout the Group, (1] the levels of bonuses paid (and bonus
opporturuty offared) to the workforce as a whole, and (i) any widespread changes that are proposed to Group wade employment condiions

The full terms of reference for the Cormimittee are avalable on the Company’s website (www sl ives co uk)

COMMITTEE'S ADVISERS

Dunng the year, the Committee received advice on axecutve remunearation matters from Kepler Associates, a brand of Mercer which s part

of the MMC group of companies (Kepler) and New Bndge Street {NBS), an Aon plc company Kepler was appointed to tha role of independent
adwisers 10 the Committee, in succession ta NBS, fellowing a competdve tendenng process n early 2015 Both Kepler and NBS are signatones
to the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants i the UK, detalls of which can be found on the Remuneration Consulting Group's website

at www remunerationcensultantsgroup com

QOther than i relation to advice on remunaration, neither NBS, nor any other part of Aon pic provided other serices to the Company Dunng the
year, one of MMC's olher companes, Marsh, acted as St ives' commercal insurance brokers The fees pad to NBS in relation to advice prowded
to Committes for 2014/2015 were £30,707 Kepler's fees were £43,400 for 2014/2015

The Committee has reviewed the advice provided by both Kepler and NBS dunng the year and 1s satisfied that it has been obective and independent
The terms of engagement between the Company and Kepler are available from the Company Secretary upon reguest
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES
During the period the Committee approved

the payment of bonuses to the Executve Drectors for 2013/2014,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report for 2013/2014,
the structure of the Executive Directors’ bonus scheme for 201472015,

& & * =

1o ther vesting.
* the Executive Directors' salanes and pension provision for 2015/2018, and
* the Charman's fees for 2015/2016

SUMMARY OF SHAREHOLDER VOTING AT THE AGM IN NOVEMBER 2014

the grant of awards in November 2014 under the Company's 2010 LTIP to cerain executives and the performance conditions attached

The following table shows the results of the vote on the remuneration policy and the adwsory vote on the 2013/2014 Remuneration Report at the

Annual General Meeating m November 2014

Votas lor Yolss Tota! Yoles
Rasolution {nale 1) {note 1} agalnsi % agaunsi voles cast withheld
Remuneration Policy 77,151,712 89 5% 367,185 05% 77,518,907 16,240
Remunaration Report 74,470,025 96 1% 3,051,082 39% 77,521,107 14,040

Nots
1 inchades Discrationary votes

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Summarnes of the Executive Directors’ contracts and Non-Executive Director letters of appointment are disclosed below These documents are avalabie

for Inspection in accordance with Provision B 3 2 of the Code

Cata of contract Notee peniod
Executive Director
Matt Armitape 10 July 2014 12 months
Brad Gray 10 July 2014 12 months
Patnck Martel 1 August 2003 12 months®
Patrick Mariel resigned wilth eftect from 27 Novernber 2014
Date ot latier of
oppontment Nuotice period

Non-Executive Diractor
Mike Butterwarth

Ben Gordon

Helen Stevenson

Richard Stillweh

14 July 2010 3 months

4 July 2013 3 months
3 Apnl 2012 3 months
11 August 2006 6 months

St Ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 45
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS* REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 JULY 2015

DIRECTORS' SINGLE FIGURE TABLE {Audited)
Set out below, In a singla figure, 1s the total remuneration of all Directors for the financial year

Share Share
Tamble  Taxable plans plans  Ponson
Bamc Basic  benefts  benefits Borws Borus  vesing vesting  bensfits  Pension
sdlaryfoo  sataryfog {note 1) {note 1} [note 2} (note 2 (note 3) ole 3 {nolo 4]  benefis Total Tolel

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 205 2014 2015 204
£ 000 £'000 £000 £000 000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 €000 £0m

Executive
Matt Armtage 3500 2757 17 4 144 2440 2757 4300 4880 525 414 10939 11052
Brad Gray (note 5) 2000 08 137 - 1394 - - 1163 460 - 8991 1171
Non-Executive
Mike Butterwonth 450 450 - - - - - - - - 450 450
Ben Gordon 350 350 - - - - - - - - 350 350
Helen Stevenson 400 400 - - - - - - - - 400 400
Richard Stiwell (note 6) 1100 1100 - - - - - - - - 100 1100
Past Directora
Patrick Martell (note 7) 1167 3500 58 172 - 3500 - B787 175 525 14300 16484
Notes
1 Taxable benafits constitute sddiional pay in teu of the provision of a company car and fuel benefil and Medical BXPENSEs INEUYANCS Cover

2 In respect of Mgl Astritage end Exad Gray bonus samed In excess of 50% of basic satary shal ba satisied wilh Delergd Bomuy Shans Awands equivaiont (0 the value aflar deucbon of income tax
and emgloyess national isurance contdoutions, of £38 544 and £20 682 (gross pay ol £88 850 and £30,400) respecively, which will be held uncler the termas of the DBS A descrption of 1he DBIS
I given on page 41

3 Figures Jor share plans vesling ere now based on Iha number of shares vesting for perfonTance periods subsiantiaty completed o3 Bl vear end  This includes an asimzte of the vaue ol the retaiive
TSR sternent for which the parfomnances penod &3 shortly atier year end - &3 was the Case for LTI swards grenind prior 10 2014 W hava resined te 2014 lgure shown above for this change
in mathodiology For 2014/2015 (he gure epresents the valus of chames vesting undar the acfusted EPS elament of the 2012 LTIF award {performance period ended on 31 July 2015) and sn estimale
at 15 September 2015 of the cutcome of the relalive TSR elament of the 2012 LTIP award (the performance pariod o which will and in November 2015) The valses shown ere based on the aversge
shane price over the Bs1 quaner of 20142015 of 178 5 penca This vatuation will D2 updaied in Pext yoar's Digciors Remungration Report 1o mkacl the aciual vesting oulcome of the TSR element in
Novamber 2015 and tha mid-markai shars prica on dals ol vesting For 201272014 the igure repressnts 1ha aciust vesting ouicoma of the 2011 LTIP awerd velued at the mic-market share price
on that dale of vesiing (189 4 pence on 13 Novesriber 2014)

4 Pansion banalls were in parl paid in1o & Group Persong! Pension Plan and parl pald 3 B cash supplemend & Mall Armilage and Brad Geay and wholly 25 a cash supploment to Palrick Mangt
Brad Gray parscipaled bn ihg Group's oafined benetlts scheme unil it was disconiinued on 1 Seplember 2008 and ts entited 10 8 deferred pension under is nags This scheme has 8 normal retrement
ege of 65 His pension entllemani from the scheme Increased dunng the year 1o 31 July 2015 by £788 per annum, et of CPlinflation 16 £47 970 per emurn. £15,960 of the figure shown for
Brag Gray relates 10 1he capiiaised incraase in ha Cefinac benetl ponsion entivement caicuigied in accomance with the reporting requiremonts

5 Brag Gray was appoiniad on 1 August 2014

§ Richard Sulwell has eteciad 1o lorego £ 10,000 per annum of his tee of £120 000 per annum  Richard Stllwell's fees s shown abaove Aftar Krogoing this proporion of hix (s during 201472015,
The Company donsias this sum a0 wihhedd 10081her with & matching sum nam the Company 10 registerad Chartiey

7 Pairick Martel resigned a5 Chig! Executive on 10 July 2014 and remained s Director vl 27 Novamber 20014 My Manghl contiumd 10 receive salary and benefis unid 27 November 2044 thd od
nol participate in 1he Company's variabla incantivwe otans in respact of tha 201472015 financlal year Ful delails of WMr Marials payments or loas of office ara inchuded i the 201372014 Direclars
Remyneration Repon  During the year Patrick Marted rocaived 5 loo of £13,000 rom R pic for his sarvices 23 a Non-E e Diractor 11 August and 27 November 2014

INCENTIVE OUTCOMES FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 JULY 2015 (Audited)

ANNUAL BONUS
Executive Directors’ bonuses 1or the year ended 31 July 2015 prowided for a payment of up to 100% of salary based on underying EPS performance
over the financial year

The EPS targels were adjusted upwards to neulralise a change mn accouning pobicy of excluding tha St ives detimed benelits pension scheme
charges in order 10 reflect the underlying performance For achievernent of threshold performance of 18 98 pence, 25% of lhe maximum bonus was
avalable The {ull bonus was payable for EPS of 21 23 pence Actual pedormance was 20 32 pence resuling in bonuses of 69 7% of maximum for
the Executve Cuectors Al bonuses in excess of 50% of basic salary are deferred nto Company shares in ine with the overall remunaration pobcy
Further details are prowided n tha table below

Threshokd Swetch % ol % of

{25% of (100% of Actual maedmum bonus earnod

Maasura Wasghting maxirrem) maximyem) parformance bonus earned  deferred n shares
Undertying EPS 100% 18 98p 2122 20 32p 69 7% 28 2%

Details of the 2014/2015 bonuses pad 1o Executive Dreclors are disclosed in the single figure table above

46 St lves plc Annual Repont and Accounts 2015




—— ———

2014 LTIP Award

As reporied last year, 73 5% out of 75% of the 2011 LTIP awards subyecl 1o EPS and the former Markeling Services segment operating profit condrtions
vested on performance to 1 August 2014 The remaining 25% was based on TSR retative to the constituents of the FTSE All-Share Support Senices
saclor (exciuding FTSE100 compan:es) over the three-year penod to 11 November 2014 Having reviewed the Company’s relatve TSR performance
over the three-year penod, the Committee concluded that the Company's ranking warranted vesting of 100% of this elernent, resulting in an overall
vesting of 98 5% out of the polential 100% m respecl of these awards The (otal value of 2011 LTIP awards vesling i1s ncluded in the single figure table
for 2013/2014 opposite

2012 LTIP Award

Vesting of the 2012 LTIP awards 1s dependent on two equally-weighted measuras over a three-year penod, underlying EPS and TSR relative

to the FTSE All-Share Support Services sector Further details, including vesting schedules and performance aganst each of the metncs is prowided
in the table below

180438 HOALYULS

Total vesting Estimated vesting 100%

Maasure Weighting Targels Outcome Vesting %
Underting EPS n 50% 0% vesting below 17 8p 20 32p 100%
20t4/2015 25% vesting for 17 8p o
100% vesting for 20 Op or more S
Straight-line vesting between these points é
TSR relstive to the 50% 0% vesting below median performanca Performance penod ends in ?—:
Afl-Share Support 25% vesting for performance In fine with median November 2015 8
Servces sector 100% vesting for upper quartite performance or greater Estmated vesting 100% RS
(excl FTSE100) Straight-lne vesting between these points E
>
S
m

With regard to the outcome of EPS performance, the Committee, as part of testing the condition, also assessed the poatential impact on the targets

of the adopton of the amendment to LAS 19 and the impact of the change n accounting policy to treat {AS 19 charges relating to the St ives defined
benefits penslon schema as non-underlying iterns  The underying growih rate in EPS over the three-year perforrmance periad was such that the targets
were axcaeeded mrespective of the basis of testing the target | @ f the largots had been restated to afiow for the impact of [AS 19 and tha change

in accounting pohcy this would not have affected the vesting result and so the Committes was comioriable that the extent of achievernant was not
impacted by the change in accounting standards and changs in policy}

Q
[=
]
e
[a]
c
o
m
v

The TSR porton of the award s measured over three years from the dale of the award and s01s nol due to be measured until 12 November 2015
Accordingly an estmated vesting ks given in the 1able above based on TSR periormance to 15 Septembar 2015 The Company's TSR exceeded the
upper quarlile of the comparator group and as a resull, for the purposes ol Lhe 2014/2015 single hgure, il is estimated Lhat 100% of this porlion of Lhe
award will vest Final vesting shall be determined on complation of the perdormance parod for tha TSR portion

SUMMARY OF LONG-TERM INCENTIVES VESTING IN 201372014 AND 2014/2015 {Audited)
The total number of shares which vested in relation to performance penods ended in the linancial year under review, and which are refiected in the single
ligure table opposite, is as folows

% sharas vesling Sharp price on Transder of

Totad rumber  for periormanca MNumbier of vesing (pence) Tols! vatua evwarc/earbost

Date of gram ol shares [note 1) ewards vastng {ote 2 on vesting (0} vesiing date

Matt Armatage 11 Nov 2011 266,800 98 5% 262,771 1895 497,952 11 Nov 2014

12 Nov 2012 240,800 100% 240 800 1785 429,920 12 Nov 2015

Brad Gray 11 Nov 2011 62.300 98 5% 61,359 189 5 116,276 11 Nov 2014

12 Nov 2012 - na - - - 12 Nov 2015

Patrck Martall 11 Now 201 470,800 08 5% 463,690 1895 878,694 11 Nov 2014
12 Nov 2012 - va Awards lapsed on cessation of employment

Noles
1 Total vesting of 2012 LTIP awards Is estimated based on TSR perdormance o 15 Seotember 2015
2 Sharg price on ¢a1a of ransier for 11 November 2011 awarts and e tTyes month 2varage 10 31 July 2095 for the 12 Novernber 2012 swards cue 10 veest on 12 Novambar 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED DURING THE 2014/2015 FINANCIAL YEAR
In November 2014, Mait Armitage and Brad Gray were granted awards under the Company’s LTIP, as follows

Shares over which  Value of shares % of salary

Date of grart.  awards granied gwarded (£} awarded

Matt Amitage 12 Nov 2014 179,718 £350,000 100%
Brad Gray 12 Nov 2014 102,668 £200,000 100%

Faos veua ks basad on a chare prica of 184 75 ponce

Consistent with awards made in 2013, vesting of the LTIP awards granted in 2014 s dependent on two equally-weighted measures over a three-year
perod, adjusted EPS and ralatve TSR As described in last year's report, the Committee reviewed the TSR comparator group and concluded that

this elemant of tha Novamber 2014 LTIP awards should be based on performance relative to the FTSE All-Share Media sector (excluding FTSE100
comparyes) as this comparator group belier reflects St vas’ business and s more n line with the comparators used by external brokers than the FTSE
All-Share Support Sences sector Addtionglly, and as i prewous years, the relative TSR element will be subject to an EPS underpin

A summary of the performance conditicns is shown i the 1able balow

Measure Wesghting Targets Performance measyrament period
Adjusted EPS n 50% 0% vesting below 21 0p Adusted EPS in 2016/2017
2016/2017 25% vestng for 21 Op

100% vesting for 24 Op or more

Straght-line vesting between thase points
TSR relatve to the 50% 0% vesting below median performance 3-month average to
All-Share Media sector 25% vesting for performance in na with median 28 Juty 2017 as comparad
(excl FTSE100) 100% vasting for upper quartile performance or greater to 3-month average to

Straght-ine vesting betweean these ponts 1 August 2014

Vesting of this element is subject to the satistaction of an EPS underpin of 20 Op

All awards made after 1 October 2013 are subject to a ‘clawback’ provision, which will enable the Commities 10 reclaim vatue that should not have
been racaved n the event that, f within the two-year penod following the year of vesting a matenal misstaternsent of the Company's financial resufts
relating to the year of vesting 1s identified In such circumstances a clawback would be based on the extent 1o which the first vesting was overpatd
based on new information

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUYIVE COMPARED WITH OTHER EMPLOYEES

Al Ernployees.

Chief E ive P ) Percentage

Otfficor change change

2015 vs 2014 v5 2014

£000 {rote 1} {note 2)

Salary 3500 0 0% 44%
Benelts in kind 174 10% 31%
Annual bonus 244.0 =30 3% 00%

Notes

1 Chisl Exscutive remunaration in 2013/2014 comparison year refiects tha! of tha previcus Chist Execulive  Palrick Marled.

2 Rafiects the change In sverage pay lor Group Heso Ofice employaes amploysd in both 2014 and 2015 This subsel of empicyees b el 1o be the most approprisle comparator 10 the
Chigl Exaoutive 25 they Ndve 4 similar remunenstion ginchue
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REVIEW OF PAST PERFORMANCE
The chart below lustrates the Company's Total Shareholder Return for the six years endsd 31 July 2015, relatve to the performance of the
FTSE Small Cap Index and FTSE All Share Index The FTSE Small Cap represents a broad equity ndex of which the Company Is a constituent member

Source Datastream
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The table below details the Chief Executve Officer's single figure of remuneration over the same six-year penod o]
o
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 s &
Patrick Marial Patrick Manefl Painck Martel Patnck Martall Palfick Marteil  Matt Armitage
Total remuneration £°000 7253 8020 1,246 6 13350 1,648 4 1,0939
Annual bonus as a percentage of maxamym 1000 1000 1000 963 1000 697
Shares vesting as a percentage of maximum Nit Nil 1000 938 985 100 0"

* 50%% from tha EPS pariomnance condition snd en sslimelsd 50% om tha TSR congition (ses page 47 for full detsiis)

As dhscussed i note 3 10 the Single Figure tabla, the Chrel Exacutive Officer's Totad Rarmunaration in 2014 has been restaled due to & change in Ihe methadolagy ior S10Catng vesting long (arm
Incentves 1o Anancial yesrs.

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON FAY
Thus table shows overall expenditure on pay, excluding employer's NICs, for all employees, shareholder distnbutions (payments of dividends), and capial
expenditure, with the percentage change in each

2015 2014 Percentage

£000 £'000 changs
Owverall expenditure on pay 124,920 106,865 16 9%
Dhividends paid in the year 9,455 B170 15 7%
Capiial expenditure 6,075 11,674 -48 0%

EXIT PAYMENTS MALDE IN THE YEAR {(Audited)
No exit payments were made in the year
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS (Audited)

As previously disclosed, a settlemeant agreement was signed by the Company and Lloyd Wigglesworth on 25 June 2013 seting out the treatment

of hus entitlemaents under the Company's LTIP Under the agreement, two-thirds of Mr Wigglssworlh's 11 November 2011 LTIP award and one third

of his 12 November 2012 LTIP are eligible 1o vest provided that the relevant performance targets are met In tha case of Patrick Martef), under the terms
of s resignation, the 11 Novemnber 2011 LTIP award 15 eligible to vest prowvided that the relevant performance targets are met All of Mr Martet's other
outstanding LTIP awards tapsed in full on 27 November 2014

As disclosed on page 47 98 5% of the November 2011 LTIP awards vested based on EPS, the former Marketing Services segment operating profit
and refatve TSR perfonmance condions, with 175,181 and 463,690 shares released to Messrs Wigglesworth and Martel respectively on 11 November
2014 as aresult The final vesting outcome of Mr Wigglesworth's Novemnber 2012 LTIP awards will be delermmed following the end of the TSR
performance pariod in November 2015, and disciosed in next year's report Vesting of these shares will be dependent on Mr Wigglesworth's

continued adherence to the terms of the seftlement agreemsent

IMPLEMENTATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2015/2016

BASIC SALARY

As disclosed n lasi year's repont, the Committse increased the basic salanes of the Chuef Executive Officer and Chiet Financia! Officer 1o £400,000p a
and £230 000 p a effective 1 August 2015 respeciively In confirming these increases, the Committee took Into account the strong perfarmance of both
Matl Armilage and Brad Gray since Lhelr appontment into therr new rofes and s satisfied thal such increases are jusufied

Current basic salary levels are as lollows
From 1 August  From 1 August

2015 2014 % wwroase
Matt Armitage Chief Executive Officer £400 000 £350 000 14 3%
Brad Gray Chuef Financial Officer £230,000 £200,000 15 0%

PENSION AND BENEFITS
No changes m pension contnbution rates or benefits provision to the Executive Directors were applied dunng the year

ANNUAL BONUS

The annual bonus for the 2015/2016 linancial year will operate on broadly the same basis as in 201472015 Bonus opportunilies lor Executive Direciors
ramain al 100% of salary, with any amount earned over 50% of salary deferrad in shares for two years and subject to clawback provisions in the avent
of material msstatement

For 201572016, the Committea has introduced an element based on like-for-like growth in underlying revenues from the Strategic Marketing segment
with a 25% weighiing 1o help resnforce organic growth in this business erea To help ensure these revenues are in shareholders® interests, the Comnuttea
must be satisfied with the quality of revenue growth for this element 10 pay cut 1aking (nto account factors including tha gross margin arising from

thase addihonat revenues Tha remaining 75% of Executive Director bonuses continues to ba based on underlying EPS There ara no other changes

in framawork for 2015/2018

A summary of performance measures and weightings 1s included n the table below

Measurs Waelghting
Underiying EPS 75%
Like-for like growth in underhing Strategic Marketing segment revenues 25%

Whist actual targets for the annual bonus measures are considerad to be commercially sensdive at the current time, retrospective disclosure waill be
provded in next year's Dwractors’ Remuneration Report
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LONG-TERM INCENTIVES

Awards under tha 2010 LTIP are anticipated to be at 100% of basic salary for both Executive Directors, with performance measured over & three-year
penod and shares subject to clawback for two years after vesting in the event of matenal missiaterment

For the 2015/2016 awards, the Commuitiee ntends 1o supplement the existing ERPS and relatve TSR measures, with an glement on underiying operating
profit from the Strategic Marketng segment, with a 25% weghtng This elemeni will be based con the percentage of the Group's undertying operating
profit from our Stralegic Marketing segment in the final year of the performance penod, underpinned by the achuevemnent of a mirimum level of EPS

The Commuttes befisves that this will help acceterate a reshaping of the portfclio towards tha targeted growth area of Strategic Marketing The weighting
on underlying EPS will be reduced to 25% to accommodate this change and the balance (50% of the LTIP award) will continue 10 vest on relative TSR,
to further reinforce akgnment wath sharehoider interests A summary of performance measures, weghtings and targets for the forthcorming grant are
ncluded in the table below

Measure Wasghting Targets Pariarmanca measuremant period
Adpsted EPS in 25% Q% vesting below 22 23p Adsted EPS in 2017/2018
2017/2018 25% vesting for 22 23p

100% vesting for 25 23p or more
Straght-ine vastng betweean these ponts

TSR relative to the 50% 0% vesting below median performance 3 month average to

All-Shara Media sector 25% vesting for pedormance in ine with median 27 July 2018 as compared

{excl FTSE100) 100% wvesting for upper quartde performance or greater to 3-month average lo
Straght-kne vesting between these points 31 July 2015
Vasting of this elament s subject 1o the satsfaction of an EPS underpn of 21 73p

Proportion of operating 25% 0% vesting below 55% Operating profit from Strategic

profit from Strategc 25% vesting for 55% Marketing as compared

Markeling 100% vesting for 65% or greater 1a total Group operating profit
Straght-line vestng between thess ponts n 201772018

Vesting of this element 15 subgect to the satisfaction of an EPS underpin of 21 73p

SAVE AS YOUR EARAN SHARE OPTION PLAN {'SHARESAVE PLAN'}

The Company operaies a standard HMRC-approved all-employee Sharesave Plan under wiich Executive Directors may from hime to me participate
on the sama terms as any other ehgible employes The Directors’ interests ansing from the award of options under the Sharesave Plan are disclosed
on page 53

IMPLEMENTATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTCR REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2015/2016

During the year, the Commuttee roviewed the Charman's fee in kght of the tme commitment and fees payable at comparues of similar size and creased
thig from £120,000 p a 1o £130,000 from 1 August 2015 With effect from the same date the Committee implemented a decision made by the Board

to pay the Non-Executive Directors a base fee of £42,500 p a (2014/2015 - £35 000} wath an addtional feg for the Audit and Remuneration Committes
chairs of £7,500 p a {2014/2015 - £5,000) Tha fee for acting as the Senior indapandent Dwector remains at £5 000 p a The Charman has elected

to forego his £10,000 p a increase which the Company shall donate, togather with a matching sum from the Company, to registered chanties

SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES AND DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Audited)

Shareholding gudehines are in place that require Executive Directors to acquire a holding equivalent 10 200% of basic satary for the Chiefl Executive
Officer and 150% of basic salary for the Chief Financial Officer These levels are considered appropnate 10 ensure that there 1s robust tong-term
akgnment achieved between Executive Dimectors and shareholders 1t s expected that the guideline wall be met by the Executnve Directors withm

five years Irom tha dale of ther respeciive apponiments Direclors’ share dealings must be conducted in accordance with the Company's Direclors’
Share Deating Code

Interests of Directors and thelr connected persons n 10 pence ordinary shares {futly paid) of the Company at 31 July 2015 were as follows

Unvesied LTIP Expressed as 8
ewards (subject Unwested Beneficial Benoficial peceontags of
¥ d 1 perf -] dafarmad bonus holding holding ennual basic
shars options condlions) share awards A July 2015 1 August 2014 salary (note)
Execulive

Matt Armitage 6,596 570,518 88,568 286,149 205,879 178%
Brad Gray 6,596 102.696 - 47,235 12212 39%

Non-Executive
Mike Butterworth ~ - - 11,000 11,000 -
Ban Gordon - - - 10,000 10,000 -
Helen Stevenson - - - 1,000 7.000 -
Richard Stillwell - - - 52,000 42,000 -

Note Cacuiatad by reference 10 the number of unvested defermad boren share awards soded Lo benalicial holdings, the mid-mirken cosong prica of the Campany's ortingry shanes
on & Qclober 2015 {189.5 ponce), 8nd the Decior's sl rate of basic satary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS* REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS' OUTSTANDING SHARE INCENTIVE AWARDS

Details of the share options held by Drrectors who served dunng the year are shown below All options were granted under the LTIP for Nil consideration

Markotl prica
per shars
o gate 1 August Exareisad Laped Awarded 31 My Viasing Expwy
Data of sward of award 2014 during year during year dunng year 2016 date date
Matt Armitage 11 Nov 2011 85 25p 266 BOO 262,771 4,029 - - 11 Nov 2014 11 Nov 2021
12 Nov 2012 104 00 240,800 - - - 240,800 12 Nov 2015 12 Nov 2022
12 Nov 2013 184 25p 150,000 - - - 150,000 12 Nov 2016 12 Nov 2023
12 Nov 2014 192 00p - - - 179,718 179,718 12 Nov 2017 12 Nov 2024
657,600 262,771 4,020 179,718 570,516
Patnick Martell 11 Nov 2011 85 26p 470,800 463,680 7,110 - = 11 Nov 2014 11 Nov 2021
12 Nowv 2012 104 00p 338,900 - 339,800 - - 12 Nov 2015 12 Nov 2022
12 Nowv 2013 184 25p 190,400 - 190,400 - - 12 Nov 2016 12 Nov 2023
1,001,100 463,680 537 410 - -
Brad Gray 11 Nov 2011 €5 25p 62,300 61,359 841 - - 11 Nov 2074 11 Nov 2021
12 Nov 2014 192 00p - - - 102,698 102,696 12 Nov 2017 12 Now 2024
82,300 61 359 a41 102,696 102,898

Details of the qualifying performance conditions in relation to ouistanding share mcentve awards are summansed below

ABSOLUTE UNDERLYING BASIC EPS

12 November 2012 Award 12 Novermber 2013 Award 12 November 2014 Award
Performance maasurement penod EPS for 2014/2015 fmancial year  EPS for 2015/2016 financial year  EPS far 2016/2017 financial year
Weghing (% of awargd) 50% 50% 50%
100% vesting 20 Op or more 23 Op or more 24 Op or more
Betwean 25% and 100% vesting From 17 8p to 20 Op From 200p 10 23 0p From 21 Opto 24 Op
RELATIVE TSR

12 Nowember 2012 Awand 12 Novamber 2013 Award 12 November 2014 Award

Performance measuremant penod

12 Nov 2012 to 12 Nov 2015
FTSE Al Share Support Services

Compargtor group
(excl FTSE100 companles)
Weghing (% of award) 50%
100% vesting Upper quartle or above
Between 25% and 100% vesting Between median and
upper guartile
EPS underpn 16 5p n the

2014/2015 financial year

12 Nov 2013 t0 12 Nov 201
FTSE Al Share Support Services
(exc) FTSE100 comparues)
50%

Upper quartile or above
Between madian and

upper quartite

19 0p i the

2015/2016 hnancial year

1 Aug 2014 to 28 Jut 21/
FTSE All Shara Media

fexgl FTSE100 companies)
50%

Upper quartile or above
Between median and
upper quartie

200p in the

2016/2017 hnancial year

The market pnce of St ves plc ordmary shares of 10 pence each at 31 July 2015 was 177 38 pence and the range dunng the financial year was

163 5 pance to 222 5 pence
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I S R
SHARE OPTIONS - SHARESAVE PLAN
Oate
1 Augpust Exercised Lapsed Granted 31 July Exmrrsse trom which Expury
Osaie of grant 2014 aunng yer during year during year 2015 price pence exercisebie date
Matt Armitage 18 Apr 2012 2,576 2,576 - - - 6567 1Jun2015 1 Dec 2015
23 Apr 2013 6 596 - - - 6,598 10860 1Jun2016 1 Dec 2016
8172 2,576 - - 6,596
Brad Gray 18 Apr 2012 2,576 2576 - - - 8567 1Jun 2015 1 Dec 2015
23 Apr 2013 6.596 - - - 8,596 10860 1Jun 2016 1 Dec 2016
9,172 2576 - - 6,596

DILUTION

Under the ESOS 2001, LTIP and the Sharesave Pian, awards of options over no mora than an aggregate 10% of the Company's 1ssued share capal
may be granted over new issue shares i any roling ten year penod {with awands made under any other share plans also being counted)

As at 31 July 2015, excluding lapsed oplions and oplions exercised and salisfied from ullising existing ssued shares, oplions over 5,520,644 shares
{4 2%) of tha Company's 1Ssued share capital} remain outstanding under &l share plans and so count towards this fimit

Approved by the Board and signed on ts behalf by

Helen Stevenson
Char of the Remunsration Commiiee

6 October 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Direciors present therr Directors’ Report and the audited financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 31 July 2015 This Drrectors’ Report covers
this pertod and the pencd up to the date of signature

STRATEGIC REPORT, FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

The Strategic Report which the Company 1S required under law to prepare can be found on pages 2 to 20 That report also includes information required
in this Directors’ Report about (a) future developments and, on page 28, (b) the CO, emissions measurement disclosure, reguired under the Comparies
Act 2008 (Strategic Report and Directors' Report) Regutations 2013

Cenaln sections of this Annual Repon and Accounts contaln lorward-lookeng statements with respect to the strategy, financial condition, results,
operations and businesses of the Group or marksts in which the Group operates These statements and forecasts involve nsk and uncertainty

because they refate to events and depend on clrcumstancas that occur m the future and relate 1o events, not all of which ara within the Group's control
Although 1he Group beleves that Lhe expectations reflected in such forward-looking staternents are reasonable, there are a number of factors that could
cause actual results or developments to ditfer matenally from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements The Group undenakes
no obligation to update any forward-looking statement Nothing in the Annual Report and Accounts should be construed as a profit forecasl or an
invitation to deal in the ordinary shares of St ves plc

DIRECTCRS AND THEIR SHARE INTERESTS
The present membership of the Board 15 set out on pages 32 and 33 Each Director served throughout the year In addition, Patnck Martell served
as a Director until 27 Novemnbar 2014

Richard Stillwell holds a number of external Non-Executve Directorshups (st out oA page 33) which, in the opiruon of the Board does not prevent
hirn from davoting sufficient ime 1o his responsibifites as Chairman of the Board

The Directors’ mierests i ordmary shares of the Company are set out In Table on page 51 within the Directors' Remuneration Report

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group profit for the year before taxation amounted Lo £8,729,000 (2014 ~ £11,883,000) The Dweclors propose a final dmdend of & 55 perce
for each ordinary share payable on 22 December 2015 10 holders on the register as at 27 November 2015 If approved, the final dwmoend will make
tota! dmdends for tha year of 7 80 pence per ordinary share

£000
Ordmary dividends
Interim 2,865
Proposed final 7,239

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES, EQUAL OPFORTUNITIES, EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATION AND DIVERSITY

The Group is comsmitted to providing equal opportunities with regard to employmant free from discnminahon gnd harassmant and in a healthy and safe
working environment Details of how we deliver on these comuvitments and communicate with our employees are provided in the Report on Corporate
and Social Rasponsibility on pages 26 1o 28

GOING CONCERN
The Group's busingss actviiies, together with the factors Iikely to affect its future development, performance and posilion arg set out in the
Strategic Report

The financ position of the Group, 45 cash flows, Iiqukdity position and borrowing facilities are descnbed in the Financal Review In addtion, nole 29
10 the financial statements includes the Group's objectves, policies and processes for managing its interest rate nsk, forexgn exchange nsk, credit nsk,
hcpadity nsk and capital nsk The Strategic Report 1s to be found on pages 2 to 28 and note 20 to the financial statements on pages 95 to 97

As highlighted in note 23 te the tinancial statements, the Group meets its day-10-day working capital requiremnents through an overdrah facity
of £15 mifhon that 1s part of an overall tunding facility of £115 milion The faciity was renewed dunng the yaar from £90 mition {0 £115 milhion until
23 March 2019 wath the atwity to extend the term for a further year

The current economic conditions create uncertanty, particutarly over the fevel of demand for the Group's services, but the Group's forecasts and
projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to operate within the level
of ils current facitity and cbilan further financing when the current facifity expires

After making enquines, the Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources and bomowng faciiies to continue in operational existence
for ihe loreseeable fulure Consequently, Lhey have continued to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements
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ACQUISITION OF THE COMPANY'S OWN SHARES

At the 2014 Annual General Meeting, shareholders approved an authonty for the Company to make market purchasas of s own shares up to a
maamum of 12,485,165 shares Dunng the year the Company purchased 1,499,600 ordinary shares inio treasury and transferred out 1,125,818 shares
to satsly the exercise of exacutve and Sharesave share options and to vendars of Branded?, ReaBse and Solstice {to satisfy soma, or all of the shara
element of the imitial and final conskieration, as appropnate, paid (o them dunng the year) At the year end the Company held 452,732 ordinary shares
n treasury Since the year end no further ordinary shares have been purchasad and 362,095 ordinary shares were transferred to the vendors of Fripp,
Sandeman and Partners Limited, so that at the date of this Report, 90,637 ordmary shares are held in treasury

MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES
As at 6 October 2015, the Company had been notidied, in accardance with chapier 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the following voting
nghts as shareholders of the Company

Numbar of  caplisl camying
voting nghts voting rights

Standard Lite (nvestmenis Limited 12,628,838 9658
Delta Uoyd NV and subsidianes 9,132 935 5088
RWC Asset Management 8,187,608 626
JO Hambro Capitai Management Lirnited 6,515,000 4908

Tha percentage basod on orEnary chares In l5suad, exchuding iroasury shares, a8 81 6 October 2015

AUDITOR

A resolution to re appoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Company will De proposed at the forthcommng Annual General Meeting to ba held on

26 Novemnber 2015 Detalls about this proposal are set out in the Nobice of Mesting accompanying the Annual Report and Accounts In proposing
this resofution, the Board has taken into account the view of the Audit Commitiee on Audtor independence, discussed by the Chair of the Committes
on pages 35 and 36

Each of the Drrectors of the Company as at 1 October 2015 has confirmed that

¢+ so far as the Director 18 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and
s the Drrector has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make hmseli/herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establsh that the Company's auditors are aware of that nformation

This confirmation 1s gven and should be interpreted in accordance with tha provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2008

POLITICAL DONATIONS
The Company made no political donations dunng the year (2014 — CNIi) and the SBoard has no intenton 10 seek shareholders' approval to perrrut the
Board to make political donatons

DIRECTORS' AND DFFICERS' LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has made gualifying third party prowisions for the benefit of ils Directars (as defined by Section 234 of the Comparves Act 2006} which
continue in force at the date of this report The Company has entered into deads of indemnity in favour of each of ts Directors (on identical terms)
who served dunng the year, under which the Company has granted Directors an ingemnity, to the extent permitted by taw and the Company's
articles of association, i respect of habllies incurred by wirlue of ther office

DIRECTORS’ CONFLICY OF INTEREST

In accordance with the provisions of Section 175 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has procedures in ptace to deal with the siuation where
a Dwrector has a conflict of mierest and the Nomination Commitiee regutary reviews conflict authorisation Directors take no part in discussIons on
matters in which they ara interestad and they may be requested 10 leave a meeting at which a matter in wihwch thay are interested 15 to be discussed

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Tha Company’s share capital consists of ordinary shares, as set oul in nole 30 10 the financial statements on page 97 The shares carry no nghts to fixed
ncome All members who hold ordinary shares are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting On a show of hands at a general meeting
every member present in person and every duly apponied proxy shall have ona vote and on a poll, every member present in person or by proxy shall
have one vole for every ordinary share held or represented The Notice of Meseting specifies deadhiines for exeraising voting nghts and each share cames
Llhe nght 1o one vote at general rmeetings Al shares are fully paid There are no specific restrctions on the size of a shareholding nor on the transfer

of shares, which are both covered by the provisions of the artictes of association and prevailing legistation and regulations (such as nsider trading laws
and marke! requirements relating to close penods) and requirements of the Listing Rules whereby Directors and cartain employees of the Company

ara obfiged to oblain approval before dealing n the Company's secunties The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between shareholders that

may resull in restnchons on tha transter of secunties and voting nghts

The Company's articies of association may only be amendsd by a speaial resolution ol shareholders at a general meeting Directors are glected

or re-elected by ordinary resolution at a general meeting of shareholders The Board may appont a Drector but anyone so appomted must be elected
by ordinary rasoluticn at the next general meeting Under the articles of assoclation Directors retire and may offer themselves for re-glection at a general
maeting at Inast every three years
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The thity-Tourth Annual General Meetmg of the Company wil be held on Thursday 26 November 2015 The Nolice of Meeting 18 Included in a separate
document sent to shareholders

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Tha comorata governance slatement as requmed by the UK Financial Conduct Authonty's Disclosure and Transparancy Rules (DTR 7 2) compnsas

the Additonal Iniermation section of the Directors’ Repaort on page 55 and the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 and 31 of this Annual Report
and Accounts

Approved by the Board of Diectors and signed on its behall by

Philip Harris
Company Secretary

6 October 2015

BEAD GLAY
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

L L AR

The Drrectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financral staternents in accordance with apphicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Drectors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required to prepare the
Group linancial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Arlcle 4
of the IAS Regulation and have chosen Lo prepare the Parent Company financial slalemenis in accordance with Uniled Kingdom Generally Accepled
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satished that they gve a true and farr view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profil or toss of the Company for thal year

In prepanng the Group financial staterments, Irternationat Accounting Standard 1 requires that Drectors

* properly select and apply accounting policies,

» present information Including accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, rebable, comparable and understandable informahion,

* provide additonal chsclosures when compliance with the specriic requirements in IFRSs are nsufficient 1o enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial perdommance, and

» make an assessment of the Company's abilrty to continue as a going concern

In prepanng the Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required 10

+ selact suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+ mazke judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonabig and prudent,
* stale whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disciosed and explained in
the fmancial statements, and
+ praparg the financal staternants on the going concern basis unless it 1s nappropnate to presume that the Company wall continue In business

The Directors are responsible for kesping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy al any ime the financial postion of the Cornpany and enable themn to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevantion
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integniy of the corporate and financial information included on the Company'’s webstte
Legislation i the United Kingdorn governing the preparation and disseninabion of financial slatements may differ rom legislalion in other junsdictions

Directors’ responsibility statement
We confirm that 1o the best of our knowledge

* the financal statements, prepared n accordance with the relevant financial reporting ramework, give a true and far view of the assets
habiities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings includad in the consolidation taken as a whole and

* the stratege report includes a farr review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the
undertakings Included in the consolidation taken as a whole, togethar with a desenption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties that they face, and

+ the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whaie, are ar, balanced and understandable and prowds the nformation necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company & performance, business modal and strategy

Thus responsibidity statement was approved by the Board of Drrectors on 6 Octeber 2015 and 1s signed on its behalf by

Matt Armitage Brad Gray
Chiel Executive Chiaf Financsal Officer
6 October 2015
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OUR FIGURES
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST IVES PLC

—— . I e

Opinion on financial statements In our opinion
of St ives plc
+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and
of the parent company's affairs as at 31 July 2015 and of the Group's profit for the
52 weeks then ended,
« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ([FRSs) as adopted by the Eurgpean Union,
* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Compamies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financia!l statements, Article 4
of the IAS Regulation

The flinancial slatements compnse the Consclidated Income Slatement, the Consoliciated
Staternant of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance Sheets,

the Consoldated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, and the
related notes 1 to 27 of the Consolidated Financial Statements end notes 1 to 15 of the Company
Financial Stalements The financiat reporting framework that has been applied in the praparation

of the Group financial statements Is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union
The financial reporting framework Lhat has been appled m lhe preparaton of the parent company
financial stalements is applicable law and Uniled Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdam
Generally Accepted Accounting Prachice)

Gong concern As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the Directors’ statement on page 54 that the
Group 1s a going concern We confirm that

* wo have concludad that the Directors’ use of the gong concern basis of accounting in the
praparation of the financial statements 15 approprate, and

* wa have not enthied any matenal uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to conlinue as a gong concern .

However, because not all future evenis or conditions can be predicted, this statemant 18 not
a guarantes as to the Group's abiity 1o continue as a going concem

Independence We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors
and we confirm that we are independent of the Group and we have fuliilled cur other ethicat
responsbifites in accordance with those standards We also confirm we have not provided any
of the prohubited non-audit servces referred to in those standards

Our assessment of nsks of material The assessed nsks of matenal mussiatement descnbed below are those that had the greatest
misstatement effect on our augt strategy, the allocation of resources in the audt and dwecting the sfforts of the
angagament team
Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the risk .
The assessment of the carrying value We chalenged management’s assumplions used n ther impairment assessment of the Group's
of goodwill and intangible assets goodwill and intangible assets Our procedures included

The assessment of the carmying value of
goodwall (£124 7 mitlion) and ntangible assets + assessing the short-term cash flow projections against recent performance, histoncal

{£34 1 milion), (both excluding the amounts forecasting accuracy and ganing an understanding and challenging the key assumptions
recogrused refated to the Solstice acquisition, mvohved in the iorecasts from management, including finance and thoss outside of finance,
assessed separately as descnbed balow) + comparng the long-term forecasts aganst long-term economic growth rates from external data,
as descnbed in note 16 to the conselidated = companng the discount rate apphed aganst a broad comparator group as well as mvolving our
financial statements involves considerable nterngl valuation specalists to assess the key components of the discount rate calculation, and
judgement due to the challenges in accurately = considenng the reasonableness of, and recalculating, the sensdmty assessment apphed by
forecasting future cash flows in the changmg management and reviewing the sensiwily disclosure included i the Annual Report and
market environment Key assumptions n Accounts, and performng further sensitivty anatysis of our own on the impairment mode!

management’s analyss include short and long-
term growth rates and the ciscount rate apphed
to the future cash flows Managemeni disclose
this as a cntical accounting judgament in note 2
10 1the consolidated linancial statements
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Risk (Continued) How the scope of our audit responded o the risk

Accounting for business combinations We have reviewed management'’s prelmmnary purchase price allocation for the Solstice acquisition
St Ives pic has acquied Solstce in the year, and challenged the key nputs Qur procedures ncluded
for consideration of £28 1 million, recogrsing
£11 6 mibon of intangble assets and * engaging internal valuations specialbsts 1o assist In our review of the undertying assumptions 5
£12 8 mihon of goodwill on acquesttion supporting the modsl, ncluding the methodology used to calcubate the value of propnetary ﬁ
The purchase pnce aliocation prepared by techniques, customer refationships and trademarks, the value of the assembiled workforce, o
management to determine these values the internal rate of return and the royalty rate used in valuing the trademark, and o
conlans judgements such as the denufication * reviewing the accounting for contingent amaounts payable to the previous owners of Solstice E
and valuation of ntangible assets and an particularly the dvision between consideration and deemed remunaration for both cash
estimation of contingent consiieration as set and shares 3
out in note 12 to the accounts Management
acknowleoge the udgemental nature of this
by including 1 as a crical accounting
Jjudgement in the accounting pohcies note 2

[a)
The classification of non-underlying items  Wae challenged the appropnateness of the classihication of non-undertying tems Qur procedures ]
Non-undertying tems amount 10 £24 2 milion  mcluded o
In 201472015, which consists of the items 3
disclosed In note 8 Management has also + assessng whether thera s sufficrent justificatron for temns to ba classed as non-underlying, m
changed ther accounting pokicy to include particularly in the context of management's accounting polcy, as descnbed In note 2, 8
defined benelit pension scheme cosls as 2 * challenging tha justification for defined benefit pension scheme costs being ncluded as ]
non-undertying tem this year There 1S a nsk non-undertying items, and companng this treatment to other companies, and z
that costs refating to the undertying busingss * rgviewing the non-undertying disclosure n note 8 of the accounts 10 ne with 1AS 1 g
are beng discicsed as non undertying and that ‘Presentation of financal statements’ ]

terns are not being splt out m Iing with St ves
group accounting policy, which could distort the

nformation presented to shareholders g
Accounting for retirement The audit proceduras we periormed in respect of this nsk included E"
benefit obligations £
The net pension defict on the Consofidated = using internal specialists to consider and challenge the actuanal assumptions adopted v
Balance Sheet 15 £27 6 millon Tharg by the Group for the valuation of ts retirernent benefit obligations  This includes benchmarking
significant judgement involved in the valuation the assumphons agamst a relavant comparator group,

of the relirement benefit oblgations, paricularly  » testing member data to the most recent agreed tnennial funding valuation in 2013, and

in relation to determining the assurmptions, * analysing third party fund manager reports to support the camying value of the plan assets

inchuding q:scwm rate, inflation rates, mortally at 31 July 2015 and testing a sample of asset values to indspendent market pnces

assumptions {disclosed in note 28) undertying
tha valuation of the habiiies of the schemes,
with management acknowledgmg this through
s inclusion as a cnical accounting judgemsnt
in the accounting policies note 2

The vatuation of strategic marketing We have considered management’s apphication of revenue recogmition poficies to assess
revenve recogmsed comphiance with 1AS 18 ‘Revenue’ In parhcutar, this involved

in the strategic marketmg businesses there

are projacts where revenue i3 recognised * reviewing the underiying contracts to assess whether revenue was cormrectly recogrised in ine
on a percentage completion basts as noted with the contract, and

n the revenue recognibon policy in note 2 to + selecting a sample of projects spanning the year end and understanding and challenging

the consolidated financial statements There the judgements used by management in determining which penod to recogmise revenue and
8 a nsk that revenue may be misstated due corroborating the judgements made to supporing informaton

1o the degree of judgemsnt exercised by
management in estimating tuture costs

The descrnption of nsks above should be read in coryunchon with the signelicant 1ssues considered
by tha Audt Commiftee discussed on page 35

These matlers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and n forming our opimon thereon, and we do nol prowde a separate opimion on these matters
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OUR FIGURES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST IVES PLC CONTINUED

Our application of matenality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial statemenis that makes

it probabig thal the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabls person would be changed
or mfluenced We use matenality both in planming the scope of our audit work and in evaluatng
the results of our work

We determuined matenalty for the Group to be £1,580,000 (2014 - £1,450,000), which 15 below
5% {2014 - 5%) of underlying pre-1ax profil, and approxmately 1% {2014 - 1%) of equily

We have used underlying pre-tax profit, adjusted for certan recunng items, as this 15 a key
measure used by invastors and 1s the measure which i1s focused on in the front hat! of the
Annual Report as thes s how management morstor the busmness

Wae agregd with the Audt Commites that we would report 1o the Committee all audit dfterences in
excess of £31,000 (2014 - £28,000}, as we!l as differences below thal threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on gualitative grounds We also repori to the Audit Commities on disclosure
matters 1hat we idenlified whan assessing the overall presentation of the financial stalements

An overview of the scope of our audit

Qur group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its ervironment,
Including group wide controls, and assessing tha nsks of matenal nusstatement at the Group level
Based on that assassment, and ai the request of management and the Audit Commuttea, all actve
entiias were subject to full scope audit, with dormant enthies and start-up operations m the US
angd China excluded Saolstice has also been exciudied from full audit scops, although as noted
above, we have performed procedures on the acquisiion accounting for this entrty to address
our signuficant nsk  These focations reprasent the prncipal business units and account for 39%
(2014 — 99%) of the Group's net assets, 97% (2014 — 99%) of the Group's revenus and 96%
{2014 — 99%} of 1he Group's undertying profit before tax They were also selected Lo provide

an appropnate basis for underiaking audit work to address the risks of material misstaternant
wentfied above Our audit work ai Lhese locations was executed at levels of matenably applicable
to each indnadual entdy which were lower than group matenabty and ranged from £113,000 to
£943,000 {2014 - £115,000 to £1,040,000)

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and camed out analytcal
procedures 10 confirm our conclusion thal there were no significant risks of matenal misstatement
of the aggregated financiab nformation of the remaining components nol subject 10 audit or audit
of spacfied account balances

The group audit team have ensured that they have maintained aversight of the work performed
a1 the componenis by involang key companent team members in our planning bnefing, ncluding
a discussion of risk assessment, 1o ensur@ an inlegrated approach was followed We have
maintained regular commun|cations with ach component throughout the audit, attended closing
meetings for sach component, and reviewed documentation of the findings from therr work

Opimion on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and
accounting records

Dwrectors’ remunsration

In our opirion

+ the part of the Directors’ Rernuneration Report to be audited has been property prepared
n accordance with the Compames Act 2006, and

= the miormation given i the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the financial yaar
tor which the financial stetements are prepared 1s consistent wath the financiat statements

Under the Companiles Act 2006 we are required {0 report to you if, In our opinion

we hava not receved all the mformation and explanations wa reguing for our audi, or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate
for our audht have not besn recerved from branches not visited by us, of

= the parent company financial statements are not in agreemant with the accounting records
and returns

Woe have nothing to raport in respect of these matters

Under the Companies Act 2006 we ate also required to report  in our oplnon certain disclosures
of Directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of the Owectors’ Remuneration Report
to be audiled is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns We have nothing to
report ansing from these matters
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Corporate Governance Statement

Our guly to read other information in the
Annual Report

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the parl of tha Corporate Govarnance
Statemnent relating to the Company's comphance with ten provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code We have nothung to report ansing from our review

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and lrefand), we are requirad to report to you ff,
n our opirvon, mformation in the Annual Repont is

* materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements, or

* apparently matenally incorrect based an, or materaly inconsistent with, our knowledge of the
Group acquired in the course of performing our audil, or

+ otherwise misleading

In particutar we are required 10 considar whether we have identified any inconsisiencres between
our knowledge acquired during the audrt and the Owectors’ statement that they conslder the
Annual Report 1s far, balanced and understandable and whether the Annual Repont appropnately
discloses those matters that we communicated 10 the Audi Commitiee which we consider
should have been disclosed We confirm that we have not ddentified any such inconsisiencies

or misleading statements

Respective responsaibilitles of Directors
and auditor

As explained more fully in the Dwectors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial staterents and for being satisfied that they give a true and

far view Qur responsibility 15 10 gudil and exprass an cpinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and Internatonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Irgland) We also
comply with International Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and Ireland) Ouwr audit methodology
and tools aim to ensure that our quality control procedures are effactive, understood and applied
Qur quality controls and systems include our dedicated professionat standards review team and
independent partiner reviews

This raport 1s mada solely 1o the Company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3

of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audrt work has been undertaken so that we might state
{0 the Company's members those matters we are required to state to tham in an auditor's report
and for no ather purpose To the fullest extent permitted by taw, we do not accepl or assums
rasponsibilty to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our
audit work for this report, or for the opinions wa have formed

Scope of the audit of the
financial statemants

An audi nwolves obtaining evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatament, whether caused by fraud or eror Thig inctudes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the parent company's circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequalely disclosed, the reasonableness of signfican
accounting estirmates made by the Dreclors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In additon, we read all the financial and non-financial nformation n the Annual
Repori lo deniidy malenal inconsisiencies with the audited financal statements and 1o identily
any inforrmation that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the course of perlormung the audd i we become aware of any
apparart matenal misstatements or wiconsistencies we consider the snphcations for our report

Kate J Houldsworth FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

& October 2015
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OUR FIGURES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

A
52 weeks to 31 July 2015 52 weeks 10 1 August 2014 {Restated )

Underlying  Non-underlying® Total Undarking  Non-underyng Totad

Nota £'000 £©000 £'000 £000 £000 000

Revenue 3,4 344,553 - 344,553 327,587 3,007 330,684
Cost of sales (229,654) - {229,654) {224,755) (3.049) {227.804)
Gross profit 114,899 - 114,859 102,832 48 102,880
Selling costs (23,569) {210) (23,779} {21,855) (396) (22,251)
Administrative expenses {56,047) {23,983) (80,040} (49,346) {19.879) {69,225)
Share of results of joint ventures (88) - {a8) {120 - {120)
Other operating mcomsa 180 541 T21 23 2,185 2208
Profit/{ioss) from operations 4,5 35,375 {23,682) 11,713 31,534 (18.042) 13,492
Panslon inance {charge)/credn ] - {373) (373) - 57 57
Other finance costs 10 {2,398) {213) (2,611) (1.666) - (1,666}
Profit/{loss) before tax 32,977 {24,248) 8,729 29,868 {17.985) 11,883
Income tax (charge)/credit 1 {7,014} 3,841 3,173) (6,886} 5,608 (1.378)
Net profit/{loss) for the period 25,963 (20,407} 5,556 22,882 {12,377} 10,505

Attributable to

Sharahoclders cf the parent company 25,963 (20,407) 5,556 22,879 (12,362) 10.517
Non-controlling interests - - - a3 (15) (12)
25,963 {20,407) 5,556 22,882 (12377} 10,505

Basic earnings per share (p) 14 20 32 {1597) 435 1870 {1010) 860
Diuted earnings per share {p) 14 1982 {15.58) 4.24 1810 (G 78) 832

Non-undartying Hems compriss BoQastion costs restructunng cosls prowsion relgases, opardiing results of non contineng sites, net profil on disposal of property plant and
oequipment profh on disposal of subsidtary consideralon /ecured 10 be irsaled as remuneration; emortisation or impaiment of soquired intangbles remeasuramani of daterrad
consansiion, costs refatad 10 the 5t ives defined benefits penson scheme and olher one off tems (note 8)

Figures are restated for 1he 52 Waeks to 1 August 2014 1o rectasstly the costs related 10 the St ves defined benefits pension scheme a3 non-undariying tems (note 6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT Of COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

T
52 weeks to 52 weeks 10
31 Juty 1 August
2015 2014
€000 £000
Profit for the penod 5,556 10,505
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuangt losses on defined benefits pension schems (19,691) {11.677)
Tax cradit on tems taken dwectly 10 aquity 3,925 2,366
{15,766) 9,311}
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Transfer of lossas on avadable for sale financial assel - ltems rectassiied 10 Consolidatad income Statement 1,540 -
Transfers of lossas on cash fiow hedges to hedged tems 60 50
Lossas on cash flow hedges {127) 60)
Losses on avaiable for salg financial asset - {1,540)
Tax credit on items taken directly 10 equity - 13
1,473 {1,537
Other comprehenswve expense for the period {14,283) {10,848)
Total comprehensiwve expense for the period {8,737) {343
Attributable to
Shareholders of the parent company (8,737) {331)
Non-controling Interests - 12}
(8,737) (343)
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OUR FIGURES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

T N
Additional Shara Hodging and Non.
Shoare paid-in ESOP Treasury opton  translation Other Retained  controlling
capital capita! TeRETVG shars asena resene rasprves samings Inferest Total
£'000 000 £'000 £000 £ 000 [1.04] £'000 £'000 £1000
Balance at 3 August 2013 12,179 £1.865 (200) ©62) 6,269 (F4) 57,798 77,941 279 145,188
Profit/loss) tor the penod - - - - - - - 10,517 {12} 10,505
GCther comprehansve
ncome/{expense) for the penod - - - - - 3 3 {10,851) - {10,848}
Comprehensiva
ncoma/{expense) for tha penad - - - - - 3 (334) {2} (343)
Dmdends - - - - - - - {8,170) - (8,170}
Acquisihons an 825 - 1,030 - - 1,955 {1,526) (267) 473
Transfer of share-tbased
conbingent conswdaeration
deemed as remuneration 35 444 - 396 {3,687 - (2,847} 3,688 - B76
Exchange differences - - - - - ki 37 - - 37
Purchase of own shares - - {235  {3.169) - - (3,404) - - (3,404)
Racognition of
share-based payments - - 424 1,642 4,427 - 6,493 (823) - 5,670
Tax on share-based payments - - - - 180 - 190 789 - 989
Balance at 1 August 2014 12,517 53,234 (11) (163) 7.169 (34) 6,225 71,575 - 144,317
Profit for the penod - - - - - - - 5,558 - 5,558
Other comprehensve
expensa for the penod - - - - - 67) 67) (14,226) - {14,293)
Comprehensive expense
for the penod - - - - - 67) 67)  {8,670) - {8,737)
Dradends - - - - - - - (9,455) - {9,455)
Acguisiions 213 1,731 - B45 - - 2,576 [ca k] - 1,872
Transfer of share-based
contmgent consideration
deemed as remunegration 144 249 - 856 (4,437) - (3,232} 3,810 - 722
Exchange differences - - - - - 528 628 - - 528
Purchase of own shares 160 - (382 (2,458) - - (2,840} - - (2,880)
Recogntion of
shara-based payments 55 307 393 - 4,467 - 5,167 1,204 - 6,426
Tax on sharg-based payments - - - - (456) - {456) 345 - {111)
Balance at 31 July 2015 13,089 55,521 - {820) 6,773 427 61,901 57,892 - 132,882

Addiional pald-n capital Includgs share prerium, merger reserve and! capita! redemption reserva {nole 31)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEEY

A———
31 duly 1 August
2015 2014
Nots £000 £1000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 15 48,242 53,360
Goocwill 16 137 488 123,254
Other ntangible assets 16 45,652 43,881
Available for sale 17 3 2
Investment v ot venture 18 109 11
Deferred tax assets 27 139 -
QOther non-current assels 20 1,086 671
232,719 221,279
Current assets
Inventones 19 6,679 5,732
Trade and olher recelvables 20 75,945 79,554
Deanvatve financlal instruments 21 185 18
Assel held for sale 15 412 -
Cash and cash equwvalents 20 16,392 12,336
99,493 97,840
Total assels 3az.212 318,919
Liabilities
Current hatiiies
Obligations uncter fnance leases 24 - 1
Trade and other payables 22 71,070 76,885
Dervative financal instruments 21 4 14
Income tax payabis 355 1,786
Ceferrad consideralion payable 4,879 12,587
Deferred ncoma 25 6,976 5,927
Provisions 26 408 1,276
83,692 98,486
Non-current liabilitles
Loans 23 79,225 55,000
Obhgations under fnance leases 24 - 17
Ratrement benalits obligations 28 27,597 8,833
Deferred consideration payable 3,487 1,406
Other non-current habidties 698 -
Provisions 26 1,732 1,273
Deterred income 25 a1 -
Deferred tax babities 27 2818 8,587
115,638 76,116
Total liabilities 199,330 174,602
Net assets 132,882 144,317
Equity
Capital and reserves
Share capital 30 13,089 12,517
Other reserves 61,901 60,225
Retaned earnings 57,892 71,575
Tota! equity 132,882 144,317
Thesa financial statements were approved by the Board of Dwectors on 6 Qctober 2015 and signed on s behatl by
Matt Armrtage
Chigt Executve Chief Financial Officer
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OUR FIGURES
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

. ]
52 wareks to 52 works o
31 July 1 August
2006 2014
Note £'000 £000

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 32 35,510 31,218
Interesi pad (2,398} (1,508)
incomea 1axes paid (8,595} 3.711)
Net cash generatad from operating activities 26,517 25,907

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,542) {11,108}
Purchase of other Intangibles {533) (566)
Proceadis on disposal of property, plant and equpment 4,751 1,236
Acquisthion of subsidianes nst of cash acquired 12 {19,854) {35,214)
Deferred consideration paid for acquisihons made 1n pnor penod (14,628) -
Disposal proceeds of subsidianes, net of cash disposed - 3289
Invesiment in financial assets - (158}
Net cash used in investing activities {35,804) (42,521)

Financing activities
Dmdends pad 13 {9,455) {8,170}
Purchass of treasury shares {2,680) {3,404}
Decraase in fnance lease obhgatons 32 (28) (48)
Increass In bank lcans 32 24,225 25,000
Net cash generated from financing activities 12,082 13,378
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,715 (3,236)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the penod 12,336 15,581
Efiect of foraign exchange rale changes 1,281 9)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 20 16,392 12,336
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I ki

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
St Ives plc is a company incorporaled in England and Wales under tha Companes Act 2006 The address of the registered office is One Tudor Street,
London, EC4Y DAH The natura of tha Group's operations and its principal actmtres are set out In the Chuef Executve’s Performance Review,

pages6to B

These consohdated financial statements (‘the financial siaterments’) are presented in Sterkng because Lhis is the cumency of the pnmary economic
environment in which the Group operates

In the current pencd. the olowing revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopled

1AS 19 (amendments)
IAS 32 (amendments}
IAS 36 {amendments}
IFRS 10 (amendments)

{FRS 12 (amendments)

Employee Benefils,

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilibes,
Impairment of Assets,

Consohdated Financial Statements,

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities,

IFRS 13 Far Value Measurement, and

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments asset and liabliity offsetting

Al the date of authonsation of these financia! statements, 1he following Standards, Amendments and Inlerpretations which have not been apphed
m these financial statements were in ssue but not yet etfective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU) The Group has not applied
these standards in the preparalion of the consolidated financial stalements

1AS 1 (amendmenits)
A5 10 {amendments)
IFRS 12 {amendments})
lAS 28 (amendments)
I1AS 16 {amendmentis)

IAS 27 {amendments)

IFRS 9
IFRS 11 {amandments)

IFRS 15

Disclosure Intratve etfective atter 1 January 2016,

Events after the reportmg period efiective after 1 January 2016,

Disclosure of intarest in Other Entities effective after 1 January 2016,

Investment ¢ Associates effective after 1 January 2016,

Property Plant end Equipment, this amengdment s mangdatory for accounting periods effective after 1 January 2016,

Equity Mathod in Separate Frnancial Statements, this amendment s mandatory for accounting periods eftective after
1 January 2016,

Finanoal Instruments, this slandard 1s mandatory for accounting penods effective after 1 January 2015,

Jont Arrangements, 1his amendment 15 mandatory for accounting penods effective after 1 January 20186, and

Revenue from Contracts wath Customers, this standard is mandatory for accounting penods effective atter 1 January 2018

In addition, ‘Annual Improverments 2012-2014 Cycle' includes amendments to a number of Standards and Interpretations including IFRS 5, IFRS 7,
IAS 19 and IAS 34 The effeclve date of all the amendments s for annual penods beglnning on or after 1 January 2016

The financial statements have been prepared n accordance with Inlernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS?) adopted by the European Union
and IFRSs as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board { IASB’) and Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cosl basis, except for the revaluation of financial nstruments The significant accounting
policies adopted are set out below

In the process of applying the Group's accounting pokcies, management has made judgemants as Lo Lhe policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recogrused n the financial statements The accounting estmates and assumptions thal management considers (o be iis cntical accounting

estimations are detailed and explained in the Audit Committee Report

Going concermn

The Directors have, at the time of approving the inancial stalements, a reasonable expectatron that the Company and the Group have adequate

resources 1o continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concearn basis of accounting in preparing

the financal siatements Further datail 1s containad in the Directors’ Report on pages 54 to 56
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entites controled by the Company (its subsiciary
undertakings) for each penod Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power io govern the financial and operating policies of an investee
eniity so as to oblain benefits from its actvities

The resulis of subsidianes acquired dunng the period are included in the Consolidated tncome Statement from the effectiva date of acquisition
or up to the effectve date ol dispesal, or disposed of, as appropnate

Wherg necessary, adjusiments are made to the results of subsidianes to bnng ther accounting polciss nto ine with those of the Group  All intra-Group
transactons, balances, mcome and expenses are eliminated on consofidation

(b} Columnar classification in the Consclidated Income Statement

Income statement tems are presenied in the mddle column under the heading 'nan-underlying iterms’ if they are signidicant n size and de not occur

in the normal course of business or if they compnse of restructunng costs, or f they compnss the operating results of a site ansing efler a formal
decision on s closune has been 1aken where thal ste does nol meet the definition of a discontinued operation under [FRS 5 - Assets held for sale

and discontinued operations (in which case the site and 8 actwities are refarred to as a ‘non-continuing operation’}, or If they compnse of setup costs

of a subsdiary, or if they compnse of costs related to acquisitions, or  they compnse impairmant or amortisation charges on acquired infangible assels,
or If thay compnse of conlingent consideralion required to be treated as remuneralion, or if they comprisa of costs related lo the Group's defined benelils
pension schame

(c) Change in accounting pohcy

The Group operates a defined benefils pension scheme ( the Scheme’) which was closed to new entrants frem 6 Apnl 2002 and closed 10 future benefits
accrual with effect from 31 August 2008 Al the penod end, 7% of the Group's employees are deferred members of the Scheme The Group has closed
and sold a numbar of busingsses that were parlicipating employers of thg Scheme and has made aleven acquisiions since June 2010 thal are not
particlpating empioyars The Board has concluded that the Schems income and expenses do not relate to the underlying tradng actmlies of the Group
Furthermore the undertying assumptions used In the Scheme’s vatuation are detenmuined by reference to external market data (notably discount and
inflation rates) that are outside The Group’s control and can vary sigricantly betwesn penods The Group has changed its accounting policy to record
the income and expense related 1o the Schema as 2 non-undertyng dem As a result, the comparatve perlod has been restated

{d) Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue 15 measured at the far value of consideration receved or recervable and compnses amounts recevable for goods and services, net of trade
discounts, up-iront payments, VAT and other sales-related laxes

Revenus for goods is recogrised in ine Consolidated Income Statement when the significant nsks ang rewards of ownership are transfermed to the
customer, normmally on shipment of the product

Revenue lor servce is recogrused as senices are delivered or i proportion 1o the level of sennces performed Revenue for tha lavel of services
performed s recognised uging the stage of completion method when the outcome can be maasured reliably The stage of compiation 1s determmed
using relevant criena including service parformed as a percenlage of total services or as a propavtion of costs ncurred

Income from advance tilkngs is dolerred and released to revenus when conditions lor its recogrution have been fulfilled

Interest income
Interest income s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the pnncipal outstanding and at the effectve interest rate applicable
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{e}) Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of the atquistion over the nel far value of the identfiable assels,
Iabiities and contingent liabities of ihe subsidiary at the date of the scquisition Far vatue 15 finalised within twelve months of the date of the acquisition
Goodwall 13 not amortised but rewewed for imparment annually in accordance with the impairment of gocdwill policy set out below

Other intangible assels - computer software
Computer software that is not integral to an itam of properly, plant or equipment Is classified as an intangible asset end is held on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet al cost These assets are amortised over ther estimated useful lves, which s generally wo to five years

Other intang:ble assets - customer relationships
Customer relalionstups mentdied as separable ntangible assets in the context of business combinations are capdalised at therr fawr value at the date
of acquisitton They are amortised over thar estimated useful Iives, which i1s generally five to ten years.

Other intangible asesets - proprietary techniques
Proprietary techrmiques entfied as separable ntangible assets n the conlext of business combinations are capitalised at their fsrr value at the date
of acquisiion They are fully amortised over therr estimated usetul ife which 1s generally three to eght years

Other intangible assets - trademarks
Traclernarks identified as separable inlangible assels in Lhe conlexl of busmess combinations are capilalsed at ther lar value al the dale of acquisiion
They are armortised over ther estimated useful hves, which is generally ten years

{f) Property, plant and equipment
Property, ptant and equipment hefd for usa in the production or supply of goods o for admirustration purpases 18 stated in the Consofdated Balance
Sheet at deemed cost less any accumidated depreciahion and impairment losses

Costs are recogrused as an assel only when it is probable that future econormic benefits assocated wath the lem wall flow 10 the Group and the cost
of the Hlem can be measured reliably All repairs and mauintenance are chargad to the Consolidated Income Statement dunng the pencd in which they
are ncurred

Assets in the course of construction are camed at ¢cost tess any recognised impairment loss  Cost includas professional fees Depreciation of these
assets commences when the assets are ready for ther intended use

Freehold land 13 not depreciated

Oepreciation is charged, other than on freshold tand and assets under the course of construction, so as 1o write off the cost or valuation of assets over
ther estimated useful ives, using the straight-kne method, on the following basis

Freehold buildings 2% - 4%
Long leases Penod of lease
Plant and machinery 10% ~ 33'4%
Fedure, fittmgs and equipmant 109 — 33'4%
Molor vehicles 20% - 25%

The gain ¢r loss ansing on the disposal or relirement of an asset 15 determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of tha asset and 15 recogrised n the Consolidated income Statement
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

{g) Impairment of proparty, plant, equipment and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balancse sheet date the Group reviews tha camying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangibla assets to determnine whether
there 1s eny indication that those assets have suffered any mpairment loss

if any such ndication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated i order {o determing the extent of the imparment loss (# any) Whare the
assel does not generate cash flows (hal are ndependeni from cther assels, the Group esimales the recoverable amount of the cash-generating wst
10 which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount s the higher of fair value less coslts to sell and valug-n-use In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted 1o ther present vahue using a pre-lax discount rate thal reflects current market assessmend of the time value of money and the nsks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of fulure cash flows have not been adusied

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) 5 estimated to be less than ds carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assel
{cash-generating unit) is reduced 10 its recoverable amount An impaiment koss 1$ recognised snmediately as an expense in the Consolidated
Income Statement

Where an imnpaimment l0ss subsequenily reverses, the camying amaount of the asset {cash-generating uni} 1s increased to the revised estmate
of ts recoverable amount, but so that the ncreased carryng amount does not exceed the camying amourt that would have besn determined
had no imparment loss been recognised for the asset {cash-generating unit) in prior pencds

A revarsat of an impairment loss 1s recogrused as income immadiatety in the Consolidated Incomg Statement

{h) impairment of goodwll

Goodwill ansing on acquisihon is allocated 10 the group of cash-generating uruts that are expected to benefil from the synergies of the combenation

A cash-genarating unit represents the lowest level at which goodwill is manitored by the Group's Board of Directors for mternal managemsant purposes
The recoverable amount of the group of cash-generaing unis to which goodwill has been sllocated is tested lor imparment annuzlly on a consistent
date duning each financlal pernod or more frequently when such events or changes n crecumstances indicate that it may be impared

Any mparment is recognised immaeadiately in the Consolidated Income Statement Imparments of googwall are not subsequently reversed

{i) Inventories
Inventones are stated al the fower of cost and net realsabla value

Cost compnses direct matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those production overheads that have been incurred in bringing
the invenlones 10 ther present locatson and condiion Cost is valued on a first n, first ou {FIFO") basis Net realisabla value 1S the estirmated sefing
pnce less the estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in seling and distnbution

) Tax
Tha tax expanse n the Consolidated Income Statement comprises tax currantly payable and daterrad tax

The lax currently payable 1s based on the taxable profil lor the penod Taxable profil ditfers from nel profit as reporied n the Consoldaled Income
Statemant because ¢ excludes items of income and expanse that are taxable or deductible in othér penads and it further excludes tems that are never
taxable or deductible The Group's liability for current tax 13 cakculated using tax rates that have bean enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date

Defarred 1ax 13 recogrised on differences betwean the carrying amounts of assets and iabities 1n the accounts and the corresponding tax bases used
in the compuiation of laxable profil, and 15 accounted for using tlw talance sheet tabrlity method Deferred tax habiliies are generally rerogrused lor
all taxable 1emporary diterences and deferred tax assels are recognised 1o the extent that # 15 probable that taxable profils will be available aganst
which deductible temporary differencas can ba utlised Such assets and bablities are not recognised If the temporary differences anse on goodwil

or from thea inilial recognton (other Lhan business cominnations) of other assets or kabihes m a ransaction that affects neither the 1ax profit nor the
aceounhing profit

Deferred 1ax habitres are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on invesiments n subsidianes, axcept whera the Group s able to control
the reversal of the temporary ditference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresecable future

The carming amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and 1s reduced to the exdent that if s no longer probable that
sufficient laxabte profits will be available lo allow all or part of the assel 1o be recovered

Delerrad tax is calcuiated at the tax rates that are expecied 1o apply 1n the penod when tha llabilty 1S seftled or the asset s realised Deterred tax
1s charged or credited 10 the Consolidated Income Statement, except where it relatas to tems charged or credited diractly to equity, n which case
the delerred tax s also dealt wath In equlty

Deferrad tax assets and labilities are ofiset when there is a legally entorceable nght to offset current assets against current llabdiiss and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends 1o seftle its current tax assets and liabiities on a net basis
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{k) Provisions

Prowisiong are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it s probable that the Group will be required to settle
the obEgation, and its value can be rebably estmated When a provision needs to be released, the provision 1s taken back to the Consolidated Income
Statement within the fine where it was nitially booked

Prowisions for repairs
Prowisions for raparrs are made where the Group 18 committed under the terms of the lease to make reparrs to leasehold property The provision 1s made
{or the estimated cost over the penod of the lease

Provisions for restructuring costs
Prowisions for restructuring costs are recognised when the Group has a detaded formal plan for the restructuning thal has been communicated
1o affected parbes

1¥043Y JIDALYHLS

{l) Foreign curvencies
Transactions n foreign cumencies other than Starling are transtated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
liabities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to Sterling at the exchange rata ruling at that date

Foreign currency differences ansing on translation or settlement of monetary dems are recognised in the Consolidaled income Statement
Non-monetary assets and habiities that are measured in terms of tustoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction and not retransiated each penod end Non-monetary assets and babilities denorrunated in foreign currencies that
are stated ai {ar value are translated to Sterling at exchange rates ruling at ihe date the far value was determined Exchange gains and iosses
arising on the reiranslation of non-monetary assets and liabilittes are recognised directly in a separate component of equity

On congolidation, the assets and babilties of the Group's foreign operations are translated into Stering at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date
income and expense tems and the cash flows of foregn operations are transtaled at the average exchange rates for the penod, except for mdnadually
matenal dems which may be translated at the exchangs rate on the date of the transaction Exchange difierences ansing on retranslation of
non-monetary assets and liabiltes are recogrsed directly in a separate component of equity

FONYNHIADD LLVHOIHOD

Such translation ditferences are recogrused in the Consolidated Income Statement 10 the penod in which the foreign operation 18 disposed of

Goodwil and far value adustments ansing on the acquisiiion of a foresgn operation are treated as assets and llabilites of the forexgn operation
and translated at the closing rate
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{m) Borrowing cosis
Investment income eamed on the lemporary nvestment of specific borrawings pending therr expenditure on qualiiying assets Is deducied from
tha borrowing costs elpible for capitahsaton

All other borrowang Costs are recognised m profit or 10ss m the penod in which they are incurred

{n) Financial mnstruments
Financia) assets and financial rabilities are recognised in the Consclidated Batance Sheel when the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual prowisions
of the instrument

Trade recelvables
Trade recenvables do not carry any interest and are stated at ther nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated wrrecoverable
amounts Allowances are recognised In the Consolidated Income Statement when there s objective evidence that ther asset s impared

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and demand deposits

Bank borrowings

Interast-beanng bank loans and overdraits are recorded as the proceeds recenvable net of directissue costs Finance charges are accounted for
on an accruals basis in the Conschdated Income Statement using the effective interest rate method and are mcluded n creditors to the extent that
they are not settled in the penod in which they anse

Available for saie investments

Uniisted shares held by the Group are classified as being available-lor-sale and are staied at far value Far values of uniisted shares are calculaled
with reference 10 exit price  All avaliable-for-sale invesiments camed at far value have been fafr valued using a level 3 measurement as per the far valus
hierarchy defined n IFRS 7 Gains or losses ansing from changes in fair value are recogrised direclly in equity, until the secunly 1s disposed of or 1s
determined to be impaved, at which time 1he cumulaive gain or l0ss praviously recogrsed in equity 8 ncludad in the Consolidated Income Statement
for the penod
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

{n} Financial instruments continued

Trade payables

Trade payables are nol interest beanng and are stated at thelr nominal value

Derivative financial instrumants and hedge accounting
The Group s acimbes expose it pnmanly 1o the financial nsks of changes in forergn currency exchange rales and interest rales The Group uses denvative
financial mstruments to hedge ils exposure to foreign exchange lor Lhe purchase and sale of geods and services denominated in foreign currencies

The use of financial denvatives 15 governed by the Group's polites approved by the Board of Direciors, which provide wntten panciples on the use
of financral dervatves consistent with the Group'’s nsk managemant strategy The Group doas not hold or issue denvative financial instruments for

speculaive purposes All financiat denvatives camed at far value have been fair valued using a level 2 measuremenl as per the far vakse hierarchy

defined in IFRS 7

Changes n the farr value of denvatrve financial instrumenis thet are designated and elfective as cash flow hedges of forecast transachions are recogrised
directly In squity and tha ineffective portlon is recognised mmediatety in the Consohdated Income Statement

ti the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or lorecast transaction resufls in the recogrulion of an assel or habxbty, then, at the time the asset or fiability
s recognised, lhe associated gains and losses on the denvative that had previously been recogrised n equity are included in the inial measurements
of the asset or hatuiity For the hedges that do not resuli in the recognition of an asset or fiabiity, amounts deferrad in equity are recognsed n the
Consolidated Income Statement in the same period as gains or Iosses ane recognised on the hedged item

The gain or toss on hedging instruments relating 10 the effective portion of a net investment hadge is recognised in equity and the inetfective portion
is recognised mmediatety i the Consolidated Income Statement Galns or losses accumutated in equity are inctuded in the Consolidated incoma
Statement when tha foreign operations are disposed of

Hedge accounling is discontinued when lhe hedging nstrument expires or is sold termunated or exercised, or no longer quakfies for hedge accounting

At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging mstrument recogrised in equity 1S retained in equity until the forecast transtion occurs

I a hedge transaction 1s no longer expacted to occur, the net cumulativa gain or loss previcusly recognised in equity 15 nchuded m the Consolidated
Incorne Staternent for the period Dervalives embeddad i other inancial insiruments or other host contracts are treated as separate dervalives when
ther nsks and characteristics are not closely related to those of their host contracts and the host contracts are not carned at falr value with unrealised
gawns or losses reported in the Consolidated Income Statement

Those denvatves which are not designed as hedges are classified as held lor trading and gains and losses on Lhose nstruments are recognised
mmediately in the Consolidated Income Statement

A dervative with a posilve far value 1s recogrused as a financial asset whereas a dervative with a negative far value 18 recogmsed as 8 financial bability

{0} Retrement benotits
The Group operates both defined benefils and defined conmnbution schemes for s employees Payments to the defined contnbution schemes are
expensed to the Consolidated Income Stalement as they fall dus

For the defined benefits pension scheme full actuanal calculations are camed oul every Lhrea years using the projected urit ¢redi! method and updales
are performed for each financlal penod end Actuanal gans and losses are recogrused in full in the period in which they occur They are recogrused
outside the Consohdated income Siatement and presented in the Consolidaled Staternent of Comprehensive Income

The retrement benefits cbligation recogrised in the Consokdated Batance Sheel rapresents the present value of the defined benefils abligations and
unrecognised past service costs, and as reduced by the far vaiug of the scheme's assets

Any assst resulting from this calculation 1s imited to past service costs, plus the present value of avaldable refunds and reductions o the schems

Past service cost i5 recogrised immecdhately 1o the extent that the benelits are already vested, and olherwise 1s amortised on a straight-lna basis over
the average penod until the benefits bacome vested

{p) Share-based payments

The Group makes equity-setiled share-based paymenis to certamn employeas, which are measured at fair value al the date of the grant The faw
value determined at the grant date of the equiy settled share-based payments is expensed on a straght-kne bass over the vesting penod, based
on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest Tha fair value of share ophons issued 15 measured using a binormial maodel, for the effects
of non-transferabiity, exercise restnctions and behawioural considerations

The cumulative expense is reversed when an employee i1 recept of the share options termunates service prior to the completion of vesting pencd

Where the terms of an equily-settled award are modified on termnation of the employment, the total falr value of the share-based payments 1s recorded
in tha Consolidated Income Statement as non-underiying llem
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{q) Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the leass transfer substanially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the lesses
Al olher leases are classdied as operabing leases

Rental costs under oparating leases are chargad 10 the Congsolidated Incoma Statement i equal amounts over the terms of the lease

Assets held under finance leasas are recognised as assels of the Group at ther far value or, if lower the present value of the minimum lease payments
each determened at the nception of the lease The cotresponding kabiity to the lessor 1s included m the Consolidated Balance Sheet as a finance lease
obkgaton Lease payments are apporhoned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obhgation to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remalining balance of the hability

{r} Business combinations

Acquistions of subsidtanas and businesses are accounted for using the acquisiton method The considaration for each acquistion 18 measweed at the
aggregate of the far values {at the date of exchange) of assets gven, liabikies incurred or assumed by the Group together with the equity instruments
issued at the average mid-market share pnce for the five days pnor 1o complation, in exchange far control of the acquiree Acquisiion-related cosls are
recogrised m profit or loss as incurred

Where applicable, the consderaton for the acquisiion includes any asset or kabidity resultng from a contngent consderation arrangement, measured
at its acquisttion-date far value Contingent consideration carmed at fair value have been far valued using a level 3 measurement as per the far value
heerarchy defined in IFRS 7 Subsequent changes in such lar values are adjusled aganst the cost of acquisiion where they qually as measurement
penod adjusiments (see Delow) All olher subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consderation classified as an assel liabidy or equity

are accounted for in accordance with relevant IFRSs

Contingent cansideration payable to seling shareholders who continue to be employed by the Group, bul which 1s automatically forfetted upon
terminalion of employment, 18 classified as remuneration for post-combination serces and 1s recorded n the Consolidated Income Statement

Where a business combination 18 achieved In stages, the Group's previously-held interests in the acquired entity are remeasured 1o far value at the
acquistion date (e the date the Group atlans controd) and the resulting gan or loss, if any s recognsed in the Consoldated income Statement
Amounts ansing from interests in the acquiree pnor to the acquisiion date that have previously been recogrised in other comprghensve ncome
are reclassdied to the Consolidated Income Slaterment, where such trealment would be appropnate if that interest were disposed of

The acquiree’s identifiable assets Babilites and conlingent kabillies thal mee! the conditions for recogrution under IFRS 3 (2008) are recogresed
at thew far value at the acquisition date except that

* cdeferred tax assets or habities and liabiltes or assets retated to employee benefit amangemenis ane recognised and measured in accordance

wilh IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 13 Employea Benafis respectvely,

liabdhies or equity instruments related 10 the replacement by the Group of an acquires’s share-based payment awards are measured n accordance

with IFRS 2 Share based Payment, and

» agsats [or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sate n accordance with IFRS § Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard

If the inihal accounting for a business combmabon 18 ncomgplete by the end of the reporting period m which the combmation occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the tems for which the accounting 15 incomplete Thase provisional amounts are adjusted dunng the measurement penod
{see below), or addihonal assels or habibbes are recognised, to reflect new information oblained about facts and crecumsiances that existed as of the
acquision date that, d known, would have affecied the amounis recogrused as of that date

The measurement penod 15 the penod from the date of acquisiion to the date the Group obtams comptete mformation aboul facts and circumstances
that exasted as of the acquistlion date and is subject 160 a maximum of one year

The value of non-conirofing interests in subschanes s calculated inmally as ther share of identMable net assets, and 1s subsequently adjusied by thew
shara of comprehensive income

{s) Jont ventures

Jomnt ventures are jontly controlled antittas in which the Group has an interest The Group's shara of the post-tax results of its jont ventures 1s meluded
n the Consolidated Income Staternent using the equity method of accouning Where the Group transacts with a joint venture, profits and losses

are eiminated to the extent of the Group’s interast m the joint venture

Investments in joint ventures are carned m the Consclidated Balance Shest at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets
of the entity less any provision for ynpairment
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QOUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

I — A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

{t) Cntical accounting judgements

In the course of applyng the Group’s accounting polctes the fallowing estimations have been made which could have a ssgruficant effect on the results
of the Group were they subsequently found to be inappropnate

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill 1s mpaired requires an esimation of Lhe value-in-use of the cash-generating units for which goodwill has been identified
In armving al the value in use an estimabion of the lulure cash Nlows of cash-generating unils and selecting appropnale discount rales 1s required lo
calculate present values, a process which involves estimaton  The recoverabillity analysis indicates that the carrying amaunt of goodwil will be
racovergd in Tull The situation will be monitored closely should future developments mdicate that adjustments are appropriate The camying value

of goodwill at the balancs sheet data was £137 5 mullion {2014 - £123 3 million)

Impairment of acquired intangibles and plant and machinery

The Group considers the recoverabilty of acquired intangibles and plant and machunsery, which (s included within the Consolidated Batance Sheet ,
at £44 3 milhon and £42 3 miflion raspectively The Key areas of judgement when assessing the recoverabibty of these assats are in refation to the |
forecast growth rales and discount rates 1o be applied to forecast cash flows .

Contingent consideration and consideration required to be treated as remuneration
Contingent consideration and consideration required to be treated as remuneration have been based on the falr value of the most likely oulcome

Retirement benefits obligations
The calcuiation of retrement benefits obligations requires estimates to be made of discount rates, inflation rates, pension increases and marialty
The net defict In the Consohdaled Balance Sheel for rebrement benehits scheme s £27 6 million (2014 — £9 B miflon)

Allowances against amounts recervable

The Group considers the recoverability of certan customer and other recewvable balances Determuning whether an allowance against these balances
18 required nvolves an assessment of the ability of counterparties to make required payments If the financial positions of the counterparties were to
detenorate, aflecting ther ability to make payments, addiional allowances may be required n future penods The Group mamtains credd insurance
covenng tts larger trade debtors for its UK operations, a ngorous system of credit control 1s applied and amounts recenvable are continually monitored
Management specifically monttors historical bad debt, counterparty crediiworthiness, curent economis trends and changes in payment patierns when
evaluating the adequacy of the aflowances in place

-

3 REVENUE
An analysts of the Group's revanue from continuing operations as defined by Intermational Accounting Slandard 18 - ‘Revenue’ s as follows
2015 2014
£000 £ 000
Sals of goods 233,863 237 476
Rendenng ot sernces 110,690 93,208
Revenue from the sale of goods and rendering of services 344 553 330 684

4 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages ts business on a market segment basls, based on the Group's ntermal reporting to the Chiet Cperating Decision Maker ('CODM?)
The CODM has been deiermined to be the Chief Execuive Officer and Chiel Financial Officer as they are pnmanly responsible for the allocation of
resaurces 10 the segments and the assessment of performance ¢f the segments

As a resull of the reallocation of resources and a changa in the Group's rlemat reporing the segments have been redefined as Strategic Markeling |
Marketing Activation and Books

The Strategic Marketing segment compnses all the busingsses that were previously reporied under the Marketing Servicas segment other than the
Field Markating business which s now reported under the Marketing Actvation segment The Strategic Marketing segment compnses the Data,
Digital and Consutting businesses

The Marketing Actvation segment includes the Field Marketing business, and all the Group's Marketing Print businesses that were previously reported
under the Prnt Sernces segment other than Clays which 15 now reported under the Books segment The Markelng Activation segment compnses
the Group's Exhibitions and Events, Point-of-Sale, Pnnt Management and Field Marketing businesses

The Books segment compnses Clays that was previously reported under the Pnnt Services segmaent

Corporale costs are allocaled Lo revenue generaling segments as this presentation better reflects therr profilatilty

Comparatives have baen restated (o reflect the reclassiication of reporiing segments for the 52 weeks to 1 August 2014
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L _
Business segments
52 wasks to 31 July 2015
Stralegic Marketing
Marketing Activation Books Total
£000 £'000 £1000 £:000
Revenue
External sales 107,084 170,484 66,975 344,553
Group sales 4,639 9,822 28 14,489
Ellrminations {1,033) {13,346) {110Q) (14,489)
Underlying revenue 110,690 166,970 66,893 344,553
Result
Result before non-underying tems 16,340 10,947 8,088 35,375
Non-undertying tems {16,983) {4,719) {1,960) (23,662}
(Loss)profit frorm operations (643) 6,228 6,128 11,713
Pension financa charge {373}
Finance costs (2,611}
Profit befare tax 8,720
Income tax charge {3,173)
Profit for the period 5,958
52 waeks 19 1 August 2014 (restsiad)
Sirategic Markating
Marketing Acthvaton Books Total
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £000
Revenue
External sales 81,804 178,329 67,454 327,587
Group sales 4,448 231 18 4 697
Efminations {65) 14.545) 87} (4,6897)
Underhying revenue 86,187 174,015 67,385 327,587
Non-underlying revenue - 3007 - 3,097
Total revenue 86 187 177,112 67,385 330,684
Result
Resutt before non-underiying items 11787 11,356 8391 31,534
Non-underiying nems {14,421) (2,908) {715) (18.042)
({Loss)/profit from operations (2.634) 8,450 7.676 13,492
Pansion inance credit 57
Finance costs {1,666}
Profii before tax 11,6883
Income tax charge (1,378}
Profit for the period 10,505
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OUR FIGURES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

. L
4 SEGMENT REPORTING CONTINUED
Other information
52 weeks 1o 31 July 2015
Strategic Marketing
Ma ] Activath Books Total
£'c00 £000 £'000 £'000
Capital addions 1,280 1,233 4,262 6,775
Depreciation and amortisation 8,484 4,095 331 15,890
tmparments - 1,174 - 1,174
52 wagks to 1 August 2014 (restated)
Strategec Marketing
Markating Acination Books Totat
£'000 £'000 £'000 o0
Capital addtions 1,354 4,826 4,349 10,539
Depreciation and amortisation 68518 4,373 3416 14,307
Imparments 336 898 824 2,058
Balance sheet
3 July 2016
Strategic Marketing
Marketing Activation Books Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £1000
Assets
Segment assets 162,249 103,674 49,894 315,817
Unallocated corporate assets 16,395
Consolidated total assets 332,212
Liabilities
Segment habilities 33,872 39,179 16,284 89,335
Unallocated corporate habihes 109,995
Consolidated total liabilities 199,330
1 Augusi 2014 (restated)
Markating Aciwation Bocks Total
£ 000 €000 £ 000 £000
Assets
Segment assets 138,268 116,725 51,568 306,581
Unallocated corporate assels 12,338
Consolidated total assets 318919
Liabilhes
Segmeant Labilties 32,450 47 475 19,471 99,396
Unallocated corporate llabilnies 75,206
Consolidated total habilities 174,602
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Geographical segments

The Strategic Marketing, Marketing Aciivalion and Books segments operale primanly in the UK, with Group derving 90% of s revenue and profits

from pperations and customers located In the UK

The largest customer of the Group accounted for £30 9 mdlion (2014 — £35 O million) of revenue in the current penod

Reconcilistion of segment asseis and labilties

31 July 1 August
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Unallocated corporate assets compnse
Financiel assets 3 2
Cash and cash equivalents 16,392 12,336
Ratrement benefits surplus - -
Unallocated assets as per balance sheet 16,395 12,338
Unallocated corporate liabiities compnse
Delerred tax labiities 2,818 8.587
Current tax payabls 355 1,786
Loans and bank overdrafis (non-current) 79,225 55,000
Retrement benefits obligations 21,597 9,833
Unafiocated habilities as per balance sheet 108,085 75,206
5 PROFITHLOSS) FROM OPERATIONS
Profit/loss}) from operalions has been amved at alter charging/(creditng)
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Audrtors' remuneration
Audi fees
= Audit of the Company accounts 130 105
- Audit of the accounts of the Company's subsidianes 263 235
Cther assurance 28 26
Non-audit fees
Taxatlon services - 30
Corporate finance services 16 5
437 401
Staf! costs (note 7) 130,806 111,282
Dapreciation of property, plant and equipmeant {nots 15) 7,201 7,428
Imparment of property, plani and equipment ang mtangibles (notes 15 and 16) 1,174 2,058
Amenisation of intangible assets (note 16) 8,689 6,879
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 2,579 2,307
- plant and equipment B85 q24
- other 1,31% 1,297
Profit on disposal of a subsidiary - {1,345)
Profit on disposal of property, ptant and equipment (721) (863)
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

6 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The Group operates a defined benefits pension scheme {the Scheme”) which was closed to new entrants from 6 Apnl 2002 and closed to isture benefils
accrual with effect from 31 August 2008 At the penad end, 7% of the Group's employees were deferred members of the Scheme The Group has
closed and sold a number of businesses that are parlicipating employers of the Scheme and has made eleven acquisitions since June 2010 that are not
participating employars As a result, the Board has concluged that the Scheme income and expenses do not relate to the underying trading activiies

of the Group Furthermore, the underhing assumphons used in the Schema's valuation are detarmined by reference (o exiernal market data (notably
discount and inflation rates) that are outside the Group s contro! and can vary significanily between penods Therefore, the accounting policy for the

Group was amended to reclassly the Scheme income and expenses as non-underlying items {note 8)

The impact of the pnor panod adjustment on the previously reported Consolidated tncoma Statament 15 summansed as follows

52 Waeks to 1 August 2014

Prevousty
Reporied Adgrsiments Resiated
£000 £000 £ 000
Admnistrative expenses - ungierlying dems (49,893) 547 (49,3486)
Administrative expenses — non-undertying items (19.332) 547) (19 879)
Interest income - underlying temsa 13,054 {13,054) -
Financa cost - underlying items {14,663) 12,997 {1,668)
Net pension finance credt - 57 57
Attributable to
Shareholders of the parent company — underying tems 22,388 480 22,879
Shareholders of the parent company - non-underying tems (11.872) (490) (12,362)
Underlying basic earnings per share (p) 1830 040 18 70
Non-undertying tems (p) 970 (0 40} (1010}
Basic earnings per share (p) 860 - 860
Underlying diluted earnings per shara {p) 1771 039 1810
Non-ungertying items (p) (8 39) ©039) {978
Diluted earnings per share (p) 832 - 832
7 STAFF COSTS
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was
2018 2014
Number Number
Production 1,970 1826
Salas 807 625
Adrunistration 584 489
3,141 2,943
Ther aggregate remuneration compnsed
2015 2014
£1000 £ 000
Wages and salansas 109,616 54,662
Sacral security costs 10,705 9,023
Other pansion costs 4,509 3,190
124,920 106,865
Share-based payment 5,886 4,427
130,808 111,282
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B NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS

Non-undartying tems disclosed on the face of the Consolidated Income Statement mciuded m respect of contnuing operations are as follows

2015 2015 2004 2014
000 £:000 €000 £000
Expense/{income)
Restructunng items
Redundancles and other charges 2,408 1534
Impairmeant of praperty, plant and equipment (note 15) - 824
Costs associated with empty properties 671 738
Prowision releases - {45)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and egquipment {541) (840}
Net profit on disposal of a subsidary - (883
Operating kosses from non-continuing sites - 441
Remarning olher nan-underiying income - {149)
2,538 1,620
St Ives defined benefits pension scheme costs
Admirustraive costs 562 547
Other 268 -
B30 547
Acquisition costs
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 7,627 6,125
impaiment of available for sale asset 1,540 -
Impainmant of acquired ntangibles and goocwill 1,470 1,234
Costs associated with the acquismion and setup of subsidianes 686 047
Contingent consderation required 10 be treated as remuneration 5,233 7.569
Increass in defemed conseration 2,538 -
20,294 15,875
Non-undertying items before interest and tax 23,662 18,042
Net pension finance (chargel/crecit in respect of defined
benefd gension scheme {(note 28) 373 {57)
Accelerated amortisation of bank arrangement fees 213 -
586 (57)
Non-underiving items before tax 24,248 17,985
Income tax credit {3,841) {5,608)
20,407 12,377

Restructuring stems
Current period

The restructunng items n ihe cument penod nclude costs relating to the closure of the Burnley ste of £1 297,000, redundancy costs of £764,000

refating to the restrucluring of the formar Print Services segment to Marketing Activation segment and costs ralahing to the emply properies of £67 1,000
These costs are recorded within the Marketing Actwvation segment Redundancy costs of £347,000 were recorded n the Strategic Marksting segment

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment includes £411,000 relating to the sale of a properly recorded wilhun the Books segment, and

a net gan of £159,000 from the sale of properties in Blackburn Leeds and Plymoulh relating 10 the Markeling Actvation segment A loss of £29,000

on disposal of assets related {0 the closure of Burnley site was recorded within Marketing Activation segment

Prior period

Inctuded within redundancies and other charges are amounts totalling of £1,088,000 relatmg to restructuning acivitias in the Head Office, Poinl-ol-Sale and
Exhitytion and Events businesses and were recorded within the Marketing Activation segment Redundancy costs of £168,000 were recorded in the Books
segment Redundancy and resiruciunng costs of £446,000 were recorded n tha Consulling and Digrial busnesses, part of the Strategic Marketng segment

An impawrment charge of £824 000 and £738,000 of emply properly costs are recorded m respect of properties held by the Head Office The cosls

n respect of these sites ara recorded within the Marketing Activation segment

Protit on the disposal of fixed assets mcludes a £297,000 gam on the disposal of planl and machmery n the Pont-of-Sale and Print Managernent businesses

and a gain of £543,000 m respect of the sale of the bulding at the Westerham site These gains are recorded in the Marketing Activation segment

Revenue of £3,097,000 and operating losses of £441,000 arose in respect of the Bradford site, watinn the Marketing Activation segment
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

8 NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS CONTINUED

Other

Current period

Charges refated to amortisation of acquired customer relationships. propnetary techniques, trademarks and software intangibles of £7,143.000 and
£684,000 were recorded mn the Strategic Marketing and Marketng Actvation segments respectively Contingent consideraton of £6,233,000 in respect
of acquisitions required 1o be treated as remuneration rather than consideration and addfitional deferred consideration in respect of the acquisitions

of 2,538,000 are both recorded wathin the Strategic Marketing segment

The imparment charge of £1,470,000 relates to an impairment of goodwill of £296,000 and to customer relationship assets of £1,174,000, where thers
has been a lugher leval of customer churn in the Field Marketing busness An imparment charge of £1,540,000 was recorded on the disposal of the
Group's investment in Easypress Limited, tor a nominal amount i July 2015, and 15 included within Books segment

The St ves defined benefits pension schema adminisiratve expenses were recorded in the Books segment The pnor penod figures have been restated
to reflect the change in the classificaton of Lhe St ives defined benefits pension schema charges to non-undertying items (note 6)

The Group conducied a project 1o offer those members of the St ves defined benefits pension scheme over the age of 55 independent adwce on therr
pension options These costs of £268,000 have been treated as a non-underlying nem

Prior period

Amortisation of acquired mtangibles relates to propnetary techruques and trademarks acqured with Realtse and Hive in the pror penod as well
as to cusiomer relationships, propretary techniques and in-house developed software acqured with the Data, Ouglal, Consulttng and Field
Marketing businesses

The imparment charge of £1,234,000 relates to customer relationship assets where there has been a tigher level of customer churnin the Data and
Field Marketing businesses than anticipated at the date of acquisiion Costs associated with the acquistion of sutrsidianes includa £947,000 n respect
of Reakse and Hve Contingenl considgration payable 1o former owners of the acquisitions who continue to ba employed by the Group, of £7,569,000
15 requirad to be treatad as remuneration for post combmation senvices The above ilems are recorded within the Strategic Marketing segment

Other non-underiying items ncluda addibonal consideraton receved from the disposal of a USA business m December 2008 The credit was recorded
withn the Marketing Actvation segment

Tax
In the current penod, the tax credit of £3,841,000 (2014 - £5 608,000) relaies to the tems discussed above

9 PENSION FINANCE CHARGE

2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Expecied return on definad benefit pension scheme assets (note 28) 12,336 13054
Interest costs on defined benefit pension scheme obligations [(note 28) {12,709) (12.897)
{373) 57

10 FINANCE COSTS
2015 2014
£'000 €000
Interest on bank overdrafis and foans 2,611 1,664
Finance lzase charges - 2
2,611 1,666
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11, TAX
Incoma tax on the profit 2s shown in the Consoldated Income Statement is as follows
2015 2014
£000 £:000
Total current tax charge/{crecht) at 19 86% (2014 — 22 33%)
Current perog 8,14 65,038
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (19) (3.982)
Total current tax charge 6,095 2956
Deferred tax on origination and reversal of temporary cifferences
Detarred tax credn {2,411) {1,660)
Adjustments in respect of prior penods (511) a2
Total deferred tax credit (note 27) (2,922) {1.578)
Tetal tncome tax charge 3,173 1378
Income 1ax charge/(credit) on the profilloss) belore and afier non-underiying items 15 as follows
2015 2014
€000 £ 000
Tax charge on profit before non-undertying items 7,014 6,586
Tax credit on non-undertyng items (3,841) {5.608)
Total income tax charge 3,173 1.378
The charge can be reconciled to the profit before tax shown in the Consolidated Income Statement 15 as follows
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Proft before tax 8,729 11883
Tax calculated at a rate of 10 86% (2014 - 22 33%) 1,734 2,653
Non-deductible charges on Impairment of assets 664 147
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,564 2,718
Non-iaxatie ncome (363} (422
Effect of change in UK corporate tax rate 80 188
Adjustments in raspect of pnor pencds 530) (3.899)
Movement in deferred tax on mdustnal buidings {976) -
Utiisation of tax losses - 7
Total income tax charge 3,173 1,378
Income tax loss as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehsansive incoms is as (ollows
2015 2014
£'000 £+000
United Kingdom corporation tax cradit at 20 67% {2014 - 22 33%) {479) {447)
Defarred tax on ongination and reversa! of lemporary differences {note 27) (3,446) {1,832
Total income tax credit (3.925) (2 379)
Income tax charge as shown i the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity s as lollows
2015 2014
£'o06 £'000
Urited Xingdom corporation tax credit al 20 67% (2014 - 22 33%) 345 700
Deterred tax on origination and reversal of temporary differences (note 27) (456) 100
Total income tax (charge)/credit {111} 589
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

12. ACQUISITIONS

Solstice

Cn 17 March 2015, the Group acqurred 100% of all the issued stock of Solstice, a mobilte first marketing and technology business Gootwall ansing
on the acquisition relates to the value of future growth from new customers and of the assemblad workforce

Provisional purchase price allocation

Historical nel Folr valus Falr vatue of
assets adjustments net assets
£'000 £'000 £000
Prapnetary techniquas - 8,982 8,992
Customer relationships - 1,694 1,694
Trademarks - 961 961
Property, plant and equipment 285 - 285
Trade and other recevables 4,152 - 4,152
Bank balances and cash 645 - 645
Trade and other payables {1,459) - {1,459)
Deterred tax labilities - {4) {4)
Net assets acquired 3,623 11,643 15,266
Goodwil ansing on acquisition 12,630
Total consideration 28,098
The farr value of the components of the total consideration payabla are as follows
£'000
Cash considgralion payment in the current penod 18,960
Farr value of 417,284 St tves pic orcinary shares allocated from treasury shares as at 17 March 2015 860
Fair value of 2,125,254 St ves plc ordinary sharas Issued as at 17 March 2015 3,880
Working capital payment in the current penod 1,539
Working capital and future considaration payable n cash and shares 5,114
Less consideration treated as desmed remuneration (2,257)
Total consideration 28,096
The acquistion had the ollowing impact on invasting cash outflows in the current perod
£'000
Cash pad 20,499
Less cash acqured (645)
Net cash outflow 19,854

At the acquisition date, i was estimated that all the trade and other recenvables were collectible

Estimated deferred consideration is payable in three tranches which is dependent upon the level of EBITDA achieved by Solstice and s subsihianes
for the calendar years ending 2015, 2016 and 2017 The total consideration payabile s capped at £50,000,000 excluding a worlang capital adjustment
of £1,900,000

1 15 expecied that the goodwill will ba deductible for income tax purposes

The post-acquisiion imipact of Solstice on Lhe Group's revenue and operating profit ara as follows

2015

£'000
Revenue 8,418
Operating profit 1,570
Had Solstice beaen acquired at the beginrng of the current penod, i would have had the ioliowing incremental impact on the Group's revenue and
operating profit in the current penod

2015

€000
Revenue 10,061
Operating profit 1,357
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Hive

On 1 May 2014, the Group acquired 100% of all the issued share capital of The Health Hive Group Umited (Hive), a consultancy business Delerred
consideration for Hve will be payable m thres tranches, based on tha EBITDA achieved for the calendar years 2014, 2015 and 2016 The basis ot
estimated EBITDA for the calendar year 2014 was reviawed in the panod resuiting In an increase in the estimate of the deferrad consideration payable
The increase In the fair value of the consideration payabie of £1,476,000 has been reconded in the penod as an addibon to the goodwil Furlher
adjustments decreasing the far value of current assets at acquisibon by £223 000 were recorded as an addiion to the goodwill

The (inal allocation of the purchase price payable for Hve s as follows

Historical Falr vatue Fair vatue of
net assels adjustmenta net assets
£'000 £'000 £000
Propnetary techmques - 8,644 8,644
Trademarks - 522 522
Property, plant and equipment 183 {21} 162
Trade and other recevables 6,577 {223) 6,354
Bank batances and cash 2,560 - 2,560
Trade and other payables (4,351) 388 (3,963)
Provision for repalrs 21) 21 -
Oeferred tax liabiities - {1,833} (1,833)
Net assets acquired 4,948 7,498 12,446
Goodwill ansing on acquistion 15,062
Total consideration 21,508
The far velus of the components of the total consideration payable are as folows
£'00t
Cash consideration payment in the current penod 16,823
Fair value of 2,087,041 St ves pic ordinary shares 1ssued as at 1 May 2014 4,159
Working capital payment in the current penod 1,826
Working capital and future consideration payable in cash and shares 7,860
Less consideration treated as deemed remuneration {3,160)
Total consideration payable 27,508

The acquisiion has no impact on investing cash outflows in the current penod

The adusiments made in Lhe current penod lo the fair vatue of consideration payable and to the aliocation of considsration 1o acquired assets are
summarised as follows

Al 1 August Falr value A1 30 April

2014 adjusiments 2015

{000 £'000 000

Far value of consideraton 26,032 1476 27,508
Aliocated to

ldentfiable net assets acquired 12 669 {223) 12,446

Goodwill arsing on acquisition 13,363 1,699 15,062

26,032 1476 27,508

St Ives plc Annual Report and Accounts 2015 83

L40dTY DID3UVALS

FAINVNUIADD ILVHOLSIOD

STUNDIF YN0




OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

L I
13 DIVIDENDS
Per 2015 2004
share £'000 £000
Final dmdand paid for the 53 weeks ended 2 August 2013 450p - 5,570
Interim drnadend paid for the 26 weeks ended 31 January 2014 215p - 2,600
Final dwvdend paid for the 52 weeks ended 1 August 2014 500p 8,580 -
Intenm dividend paid for the 26 weeks ended 30 January 2015 225 2,865 -
Dividends paid during the penod 9,455 8,170
Proposed final dividend at the penod end of 5 S5p per share {2014 — 5 00p per share) 555p 7,239 6,590
The proposed final dwvdend 1s subject to the approval by shareholders at the 2015 Annual Generat Meeting and has nol beenincluded as a hability
n these inancial statements
14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The celculation of the basic and diuted earnings per share 18 based on the following data
Number of shares
2015 2014
000 000
Werghted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnmgs per share 127,784 122,318
Effect of diutve potentizl ordinary shares
Share ophons 3,232 4,088
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted eamings per share 131,016 126,406
Earmings per share
2016 2004
Earnings Earnings
Eamings per share per sharg
£'000 penco £'000 pance
Eamings and basic earnings per share from continuing activities
Underlying earnings and underlying earnings per shara {restated note 6} 25,962 2032 22,879 18 70
Non-underhying dems (rastated note 6) {20,407) (15 97) 12.362) {1010)
Earnings and basic earnings per share 5,956 435 10517 860
Earnings and diluted eamings per share from continuing activities
Undertying eamings and underdying earnings per share (restated note 6) 25,963 1982 22.879 1810
Non-underlying items (restated note B) (20,407) {15 58) (12362) 9 78}
Earnings and diluted earnings per share 5,556 424 10,517 832

Underlying earmngs 1s calculaled by adding back non-underlying ilems, as adjusled for tax, 10 the profil lor the penod (see nole 8)
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land and Land and Fixtures, itngs
buldings buddings Pront and BquDMEN and
Fraghoid Long leasas machnery motor vehuclas Total
£000 o0 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Cost or vatuation
At 3 August 2013 40,547 8146 99,673 9,830 158,196
Acquisitions - 118 117 120 355
Additons 1,559 33 7,288 1093 9,873
Dhisposals (989) - (27,281) (2,744) {31,014)
Reclassiication - non-current assets - 22 (35} 123 10
Al 1 August 2014 41,117 8,319 79,762 8,422 137,620
Acquistions - - 34 251 285
Additions - 74 5,406 761 6,241
Disposats {3,571) {6,238) (4,456} {204) (14,469)
Reclassification to assets heid for sale {713) - - - {713)
Reclassrication - nan-current assets {115 2,270 7.546 {873) 8,828
At 31 July 2015 36,718 4,425 B8, 292 8,357 137,792
Accumulsted depreciation and impairment
At 3 August 2013 11,660 3835 79,634 6.835 101,964
Charge for the penod 779 588 5274 787 7.428
Imparment lIosses 224 433 167 - 824
Disposals {629) - (23,265) (2,157} (26.05%)
Reclassdication — non-cument assels - {3t} 168 (42) 95
At 1 August 2014 12,034 4,825 61978 5,423 84,260
Charge for the penod 719 530 5,060 ag92 7.201
Reclasshication 1o assets held for sale {301} - - - (301}
Disposals (1,810) {4,056) {4,368) {191} {10.425)
Reclassdication — non-¢ument assets 409 893 7,437 (24) 8,815
At 31 July 2015 11,051 2,292 70,107 6,100 89,550
Net book value
At 31 July 2015 25,667 2,133 18,185 2,257 48,242
At 1 August 2014 29,083 3,404 17,784 2999 53 360

The Group has freehold land, ncluded withon property, plant and equipment, with a net book valua of £4,392,000 (2014 - £4,432,000), which has not
been depreciated The amount of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment 1s £46,482,000 (2014 - £47,395,000)

In the pnor penod, the Group held property, ptani and equipment under finance Jeases with a net book value of £27,000

In the pnor penod, imparment losses of £824,000 were recorded against assets held within the Marketing Activation segment
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QUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

16 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

£ 000
Cost and carrying amount of goodwill
At 3 August 2013 90,148
Acguisitions 33,108
At 1 August 2014 123,254
Acquistions {note 12} 12,830
Additions (note 12) 1,699
lnpairmant (285)
A4 31 July 20186 137,488
The impairment charge of £285,000 relates to Tactical Solutions goodwill due to a deciing in revenue
Gooowil is allocated amongst the following cash-generating unils {'CGUs') or groups of CGUs

£000
Amaze 11,851
Branded3 7.774
Data 15748
Hra 15,062
Incite 601
Pragma 218
Reglige 19,743
Sarvice Graphics 14,952
SP Group 31,322
Solstice 12,830
Tactica! Sofutions 7.667

137,488

SP Group, Service Grapiucs and Tactical Solutrons are reported withun the Marketing Activation sagment Al other CGUS are reported within the
Strategic Marketing segment The Data CGU represents Occam and Response One

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impalred As Solstice was acquired
in the penod, total consideration payable has been usad as the value-in-use

The recoverable amount of the Saistice CGU was tested by raference to the market value at 31 July 2015 The recoverable amounts of the other CGUs
are determined using a value-in-use calculation The key assumptions for the value-in-usa calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes to seling pnces and direct costs (and therefore profits and losses) dunng the forecast penod Management estimales discount
ralas using pre-1ax raies \hat reflecl current market assessrments of the e value of money and the nsks specific 1o the CGUs Changes in selling pnces
and direct cosis are based on past practices and expeciations of future changes in the market The Group prepares cash flow lorecasts devived from
the mosi recent medium-lerm business forecasts with a terminal value calculaton The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations and the
sensilivities to the key revenue growth and pre-tax discount rate assumptions are detalled below

bervice SP Tactical
Amaz¢ Brandedd Data Hve tncta  Pragma Reafsy  Graphecs Group  Solutng
Value-in-use assumptions
Pre-tax discount rate 1033% 1033% 1033% 1033% 1033% 1033% 1033% 1033% 1033% 1033%
Terminal growth 2 6% 25% 26% 26% 26% 26% 26% 28% 26% 286%
Excess ol vatue-in-use over camrying value (£'000) 7476 20826 17587 25260 22,523 4,561 27980 11,325 18,236 4,663
Sensitvity of value-in-use to changes in key
growth assumption®
Annual revenus decting (n five year forecast
calculation resulting in potential impairment 96% 290% 136% 191% 436% 288% 166% 110% 81% 91%
Increase to pre tax discount rate resulting
n potential imparmeant 41% 188% B 3% B3% 301% 137% T6% 34% 4 0% 21%
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Other intangible assets

Computer Customner Proprictary
software retahonships 1echmgies Trademarks Total
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
Cost
At 3 August 2013 10,048 33,389 5,316 - 48,753
Acquisitions 22 - 17,406 1,088 18,517
Additiong 566 - - - 566
Reclassiicatons {108) - - - {108)
Disposals (757) - - - (757
Af 1 August 2014 8,771 33,389 22,722 1,089 66,871
Acquisihons - 1664 8,992 961 11,647
Additions 534 - - - 534
Reclassifications 301 - - - 3m
Disposals {139) - - - {139)
Foregn Exchange {2 {80) 479 (51) (622)
At 31 July 2015 10,465 34,993 31,235 1,989 78,692
Accumulated amortisation
At 3 August 2013 T.152 8,010 552 - 15714
Charge for the penod 1,447 3,801 1,489 32 6,879
Impayment - 1.234 - - 1.234
Reclassifications 93) - - - {83}
Disposals {744} - - - (744)
Al 1 Augusl 2014 7762 13.145 2.051 32 22,980
Charge for the penod 1,180 3,442 3,938 118 8,689
Impairment - 1,174 - - 1174
Reclassdications 314 - - - 314
Disposals {132) - - - {132)
Foreign Exchange 14 ©) - - 5
At 31 July 2015 9,148 17,752 5,989 151 33,040
Net book value
At 31 July 2015 1,217 17,241 25,248 1,848 45,652
Al 1 August 2014 2,009 20,244 20,671 1,057 43,981
17 AVAILABLE FOR SALE ASSETS
2018 2014
£'000 €000
Camned at fair value
Unlisted shares 2
Total non-current financial assels 3 2
Dunng the year the Group held non-controlting mnterests of 10 0% n Witona Limited and 8 0% wn Ebettoft Corporaton Limsted as at 31 July 2015
These shares are not held lor trading and accordingly are classified as available for sale
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OUR FIGURES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

18 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

Not assets of

ot venlure

£ 000

Balance et 2 August 2014 11
Additions 173
Sharg of results of point verture @8)
Forelgn exchange 13
Balance at 31 July 2015 109

The Group held a 50% interest m Loop LLC, incomporated m Chicago, USA Dunng the perod the Group loaned addtional funds to Loop LLC
The pnncipal operation of the Company s a commerca consuttancy specaksing in “hybns' software integration

18 INVENTORIES

2015 2004

£000 £ 000
Raw matanals 4,766 3329
Work-in-progress 1,794 2,247
Fimshad products 19 156

8,579 5,732

There was no matanal writa-down of inventones in esther penod
20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Trade and other raceivables

2015 204

£'000 £ 000
Amaunts recenable for the sale of goods snd services 63,956 66,360
Allowance tor doubtful debts (1,408) (1 716)
Trade receivables 62,548 64,644
Other receivables 6,471 3.807
Prepayments and other assets 6,026 11,003

75,945 79,554

Other non-current assets

2015 2014

£000 £ coo
Other recelvables 1,086 671
Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014

£'000 £ 000
Cash and cash equialents 16,392 12,336

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash held by the Group and shor-term bank deposis with an original matunty of three months or less The carrying

amounts of these assets approximata to their far valus
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Denvative financial assets

2015 2014
£000 £000
Forward forexgn currency confracts 165 18
Derwvative financial habilities
2015 2014
£'000 000
Forward foreign currency conlracts 4 14
Al forward foregn currency coniracts are designated and effectve as hedging nstruments
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2015 2014
000 £'000
Trade payables 37,975 39,256
Accruals for goods and services 13,306 15,6839
Other taxes, socal secunty and employee related habilities 13,706 14,070
Other payables 6,083 7.920
7,070 76,885
The Drrectors consider that the carrying amount of trada and other payables approximates to therr far value
23 LOANS
2015 2014
£'000 €000
Bank loans (all repayable between two and five years) 79,225 55,000

Bank loans

In March 2015, the Group nagotiated a new revoling mullicurrency ioan faciity increasing the previous facility from £90 mullion to £115 millon for a term
of tour years exprng on 23 March 2019 and with the ability to extend the term for a further year Up to £15 mulbon may be drawn as an overdraft facility
Interest on loan drawdowns s chamged st LIBOR plus a margin which vanes between 1 55% and 2 15%, depending on the ratic of the Group's net debt

to EBITDA excluding non-underying ems Interest on overdraft drawdowns s charged at 2 00% over UK base rate

As at 31 July 2015, tha Group's cutstanding loans within this facility were £79 million (2014 - £55 mulion) The undrawn porlion of this {acllity

at 31 July 2015 was £36 mubon {2014 ~ £35 milon)
The Drrectors consicler that the carrying amount of the loans approximates to therr tar value

24 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Presen vahue of
Minimum lkease mramum Rase
paymanis paymants
2014 2014
£000 200
Amounis payable under finance leases
Within cne year 12 11
Between two to fiva years 18 17
30 28
Less finance chargas
Present value of lease cblgations @ -
28 28
Current " .
Non-current 17
28
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINVED
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25 DEFERRED INCOME

2018 2044
£'000 £'000
Advance billings and other deferred ;ncome
Current 6,976 5927
Non-current 81 -
28 PRODVISIONS
Proragson lor Provizon for
mepars reorgansation Other Tonad
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 3 August 2013 1,826 855 - 2,781
Charged to the Consolidated Income Statement 183 582 100 865
Credited to the Conscfidated Incoma Statement (86} (45) - (131}
Acquisitions 10 - - 10
Oisposal - 57) - (57}
Utitsed dunng the penod 45} (874} - 919)
Balance at 1 August 2014 1,888 561 100 2,549
Charged to the Consohdated Income Statement 313 688 100 130
Credited to the Consolidated Income Statement (189} - - (189)
Uhiised dunng the period {43) (1,178 (100) {1,321}
Balance at 31 July 2015 1,969 kAl 100 2,140
Current 237 71 100 408
Non-current 1,732 - - 1,732
1,969 Fal 100 2,140

Provision for repairs
Whera the Group 18 committed under the tarms of a lease to make reparrs to leasehold premises, a provision for repars 1§ mads for thesa estimated
costs over the penod of the lease It s anticipatad that these babiktes will crystalise between 2015 and 2020

Provision for reorganisation

The provision for reorganisation relates primarnily to the remaiming costs in espect of plant closures and relocation and comprises redundancy payments
plant relocation, onerous properly and other cosls, which are expecied (1o be setifed by the end of the 2016 financial penod The charge in the current
pencd relates principally to the closure of Burnley site within the Point-of-Sale business all of which are included within the Marketing Activation segment

Other
The provision mainly relates 1o ongoing legal claims and costs mcurred i the normal course of trading

27 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred incomea 1axes are calculated i full on temporary differences under the iability method using a pnncipal tax rate of 20% for UK operations
(2014 - 20%) and 40% for US operations {2014 - Nij)

The total movament in the daferrad 1ax babdity s as icliows

2015 2004

000 £ 000
At the beginrung of the penod 8,587 8,431
Acquisitions 4 3706
Disposal - 150
Credit to the Consoldated Income Statement (note 11) (2,922) {1,578)
itemns taken to Qther Gomprehensive Income [note 11) (3,448) {1932
tems taken directly to equity (note 11} 456 (190)
At the end of the period 2,879 8,587
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The indmdual movement in the deferred tax habilbes/assets) 15 as ollows

Accelerated Ratiremaent Short tem Derhvativa Accqured
tax benalits Roled over Lmng fingncial Sharg rdangibla
dapreciation obigations caphal gains oifterences Instruments options assels Total
£ 000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000
Balance at 3 August 2013 3,772 - 80 661) 13 999 6 226 8,431
Acquisitions 7 - - - - - 3,699 3,706
Reclassiication 24 - - 126 - - - 150
Chargaficredt) to the Consokdated
Incorme Statement 14 (48) - 2 - {46) {1.471) (1,578)
ltems taken directly 10
Other Comprehensive Income - (1.919) - - [13) - - {1,832
Items taken directly to equity - - - - - {190} - {190)
Balance at 1 August 2014 3,817 (1,967} 80 (562) - (1,235) 8,454 8,587
Acquisitions - - - 4 ~ - - 4
{Cradit)/charge to the Consolidated
Income Statement (1157} {107) - {257) - 30 (1.437) 2.922)
ltems taken directly to
Other Comprehensive Income - (3.446) - - - - - (3,446)
Iltens taken direcily to equity - - - - - 456 - 456
Balance at 31 July 2015 2,860 (5,520) 80 (815) - (749) 7,023 2,679
Deferred 1ax assets and hab:dties are classified in tha balance sheel as follows
2018 2014
£'000 £000
Deferred tax assets (139) -
Deferred tax Labiities 2,618 8,587
2679 8,587
Defemed lax assets and Rabiihies are ofiset when thers is a legally enforceabte nght 10 set off current tax assets agamst current tax liabfliles and
when the deferred iIncome \axes relate to the sama fiscal authority
The deterred 1ax assets in respect of losses, at curent tax ratas, all of which have an uniimited ife, are as follows
2045 2014
£'000 £ 000
Unrecognised deferred tax in respect of irading losses 395 421
Unrecogrised delerred tax in respect of capital losses 598 768
993 1,168
The Finance Act 2013, which provides for reductions n the main rate of comporation tax from 23% to 21% effective from 1 April 2014 and to 20%
effective from 1 April 2015, was substanively enacted an 2 .luly 2013 These rate reductions have been reflected in the caleutabion of deferred tax
at the balance sheoot date
The Government intends to enaci further reductions i the main tax rate down 10 19% effectve from 1 Apnl 2017 and to 18% effectve trom
1 April 2020 As thess tax rales were not substaniively enacted at the balance sheet date, the relevant rate reductions are nol yet reflected
i these financial slatements in accordance with IAS 10, as il 1s a non-adjusting evenl occumng after the reporting penod
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

28 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contnbution schemes

The Group operates defined contnibution schemes for all quahfying employees The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the

Group in funds under control of the trustees Payments to the schemes are expensed to the Consclidated Income Statement as they fall due Ths total
expense recognised in the Consckdated incoma Statement for continuing operations of £3,766,000 (2014 - £2,775,000) represents contnbutions
payable to these schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schernes At 31 July 2015, contnbutions of £363 000 {2014 - £508,000)
due in respect of the 2015 reporting penod had not been paid over to the schemes The amounts wera paid over subsequent to the balance shest date,
within the requistte tune Gmits

Defined benefits scheme - St lves Group

The Group operates tha St Ives defined benefits pension scheme wath assels held in separate trustee adminisiered funds Pension benefils are nked
o a member's fina! salary al retirement and therr length of serwces The Scheme was closed 1o new entrants from 6 Aprl 2002, and closed 10 future
benelit accruats wath effect frorm 31 Augusi 2008

The defined beneiits pension scheme s a registered scheme under UK legrstation and 15 contracied oul of Slale Second Pension  The defined benefils
pension scheme has two current participating employers, St ves pic and Clays Lmited

The defined benefits pension scheme was established from 30 September 1988 under trust and 15 governed by the defined benebts pension scheme's
trust deed ang rules dated 23 Apnl 1991 and subsequent amendments The Directors of St ves Pension Scheme Trustees Lirmvted { the Trustees’) are
responsible lor the operation and the governance ol the Scheme, mcluding making decisions regarding (he delined benefits pension scheme's funding
and rwastment strategy in conjunction with the Company

The most recent full actuanal valuations of he scheme assets and the present value of Lhe defined benefits oblgations were camed out gs at Apn! 2013
by Jonathan Funter, Fellow of the Insitute of Actuanes, of Punter Southall & Co Limited, ('the actuary’) who 13 independent of the Group This valuation
was updated al 31 July 2015 The present value of the defined benefits obligation, and the relaied current service cost and past seriice cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method

The pnncipal assumpiions used for the pyrpose of the actuanal valuations are as follows

2015 2014

per annum pér 2nnum

Discount rate 370% 4 40%

Expected rate of infiation 310% 2 95%

Expected rate of salary increases NIl Nl

Future penswon ncreases 295% 285%
Assumed Iife expactancies for retrement at age of 65 are as follows

2015 205 2014 2014

Male Famale Malo Femala

Members rehinng immediately 217 234 2186 234

Member retiring in 20 years time 231 250 230 249

The amouni recognised tn the Consolidaled Balance Sheel in respect of the Group's defined benefils pansion scheme habiities 15 as tollows

2015 2014

£'000 £000
Present value of funded obligations 338,639 205993
Fair valua of schema assels (311,037) (286,160)
Liabiities 27,597 9,833
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Amounts recogrised in the Consclidated Income Staternent in respect of the defined benelils pension scheme as non-underting items are as follows

2015 2014
£'000 £00
Scheme Admunistrative cost 562 547
Settiements {75) - 3
Interast costs on defined benefit pension scheme obligatians (note 9) 12,709 12,997 rl"n
Expected return on defined banefit pension scheme assets (note 9) (12,336} {13 054) g
860 490 7@
Amounts recogmsed in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the defined benefits pension scheme are as lollows
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Net measurement ~ fmancial 42,91 12,174 n
Net measurerment — axpenence 1,455 2,02 e
Return on assets, excluding interest income (24,675) 2509 &
i
15,691 11,677 a
8
There have been no amendments or curtalments n the current or pror penocd &
x
2
Changes in the presant valus of delined benefils penston abligations are as follows 5
0
2015 2014 ™
£'000 £000
Opening defined bensfits oblgation 295,993 278313 S
Intersst cost 12,708 12,097 I
Age-related rebates 4 - B
Net measurement - losses — financial 42,911 12,174 ﬁ
Net measurement — losses - experenca 1,455 2,012
Settlements (4,892} -
Benglits pald (9,546) (9,503)
Closing defined benefits obhgation 338,634 295,993

No addiional habiity 1s recognised in respect of the recovery plan as the Group has an unconditional night (o a refund of any surplus in the defined
benefits pension scheme at end of the scheme duration

Changes in the fair value of defined benefits pension assets are as follows

2015 2014

£'000 £000
Opening far value of schame assets 286,160 278,397
Interest ncome on scheme assets 12,336 13,054
Return on asset, excluding mterest ncome 24,675 2509
Contrbutions by employer 2,648 2,250
Age-related rebates 4 -
Benefits paid (9,407) {9.503)
Setllemants 4,817) -
Scheme administrative cost {562) (547)
Clesing fair value of scheme assets 311,037 286,160
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28 RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED
The fan value of the defined benefits penston assets at the balance sheet date s analysed as follows

Value at Valug at

31 July 1 Augusl

2018 2014

£'000 £'000

Equity instruments 138,789 182,411
Bends 166,420 131,77
Other 5,828 1,978
311,037 286,160

The defined benefits pension assets do not nclude any of the Group's own financial instruments, nor any property occuped by, or other assels

used by, the Group

The defined benefits pension scheme's invesiments include interest and inflation hedging

The defined benefits pension scheme exposes the Group to actuanal nsks such as, market finvestment) nsk, nlerest rate sk, nflabon nsk, curency nsk
and longewly nsk The defined benefits pension scheme doas not expose the Group 1o any unusual scheme-specific or company-speciic rsk

Investment risk the Scheme holds some of ds mvestments m asset classes, such as equities, which have volatile market vatues and, while these assets
are expecled (o provide the best returns over the long-term, any shart-ter volatdity could cause additional funding to be requred d a deficit emerges

Denvative contracts are used from time to time which would imit losses in the event of a fall in equity markets

Interest rate nisk the Scheme's liabiihies are assessed using market rates of nterest to discount the liabiliies and are therefore subject to any votatilty
in the movement of 1he market rate of interest The net interest mcome or expense recognised n profit or loss 1s also calculated using the market rate
of nterast The Schame's swap nvestments are expected to prowde a degres of protection from any movement In the market rate of interast

Inflation nsk a significant proportion of the benefils under the Scheme are linked to inflation Although the Scheme's assels are expecled to provide
a good hedge aganst milation over the long-term, movements over Lhe short-term could lead to a deficlt emerging The Scheme's swap iInvesimants

are expecied to provide a degree of protection from any short-term inflalionary movements

Mortality risk i the event thal members ive longer than assumed the liabililies may be understaled ongmally, and a deficil may emerge If funding has

not adequately provided for the increased hie expectancy

A sensilmty analysis of the pnnciple assumptions used to measure the defined benefits pension obhgation as al 31 Juty 201515 analysed as follows
Change In impaci on tha defined
assumption  benefits pension obligation
Discount rate Increase by 0 5% Decrease by 8%
Rale of Inflation {RPI) Increase by 0 5% Increase by 3%
Assurnead life expectancy at age 65 Increase by 1 year Increase by 4%

The defined benefits pension scheme's nvesiment strategy 1S to invest broadly 65% n return seeking assels and 35% in matching assels
{mainly governrment bonds) The sirategy reflects the defined benefits penston scheme's liabibty profile and the Truslees” and Group's attitude to nsk

The last scheme funding valuaiton of the Scheme was as at 6 Apnl 2013 and revealed a funding deficil of £36,698 000 In the recovery plan dated

28 February 2014, the Company has agreed to pay £200,000 per month with the visw o eliminating the shortfal by August 2019

The labilities of the Schems are basad on the curren! value of expected benefil payment cashflows 10 members of the Scheme over the next 75 years

The average duration of the hiabilites 1s approximately 18 years

The Scheme has two cument parhcipating employers, St ves plc anc Clays Limited St Ives pic is responsible ior paying all contributions to the Scheme
Each participating employer 1s hable for 1 share of the liabiitias on waind-up or withdrawal from the Scheme i accordance with the Scheme's trust

deed and rules
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's treasury function 1s responsible for managing the Group's exposure 1o financial risk and operales within a delinad set of policies and
procedures reviewed and approved by (he Board

interest rate nisk

The Group cames a cash flow nsk where there are changes in the interest rate lewed on the Group's bormowings as currently mierest on the majonty

of the Group's borrowings 1s at floating rates  The Group finances its operabions through a muxture of relained earnings and bank borrowings Group
policy 1s to constantly rewiew the exposure nsk (o nterest rate fluctuations in relation (o the nsk as a proporiion of Group earnings and wherever possible
with matching shorl-term deposis of surplus funds The Group 1s not subject to farr value nterest rate nsk as the majority of debt is at floating rates

Interest rate management
An analysis of financial assets and liabilies exposed to imteres! rate nsk by currency is sel out below

Financial assets subject 1o interest rate risk

2018 204

£000 £000

Sterfing 6,867 10,517
US Dottar 4912 1324
Euro 4,489 328
Singapore Dollar 82 169
Argenting Peso 27 -
Chmnese Yuan § -
16,392 12,336

The Group's financial assets compnse cash and cash equivalents, all of which attract imerest at floating rates based upon LIBOR or equivalent measures

Financial liablilities subject to interest rate risk

2013 2014
£'000 € 000
Stering bank loans €0,000 55 000
US Oollar bank toans 19,225 -

The Group s financial lkabxihes compnse loan bomowings which bear interest al floating rales based upon UBOR, and overdraft borrowings which bear
intarest at floating rates based upon UK base rata

Interest rate sensitivily analysis
The analysis shows the addmional charge to Consoldated Income Statement assuming that the amount of the habiity outstanding at the batance sheet
date was outstanding for the entire penod

2015 2004
000 £ 000
100% movement in Stering LIBOR 481 308

The changes woukd not have impacted other equily reserves as all nterest beanng financial assels and kabillies are subjec! 1o fnatng inlerest rates and
Iheir falr values do not fiuciuale wilh changes in mlerest rates

Feoreign exchenge risk
From bime to ime the Group enters o contracts to supply goods and senices to customers trading in iclowing regions

¢ Europe at prees denominated in Euros,

¢ USA at prices denominated in US Dollars,

= Japan at pnces denominated in Japanese Yen,

+ Singapore at prees denommated in Singapore Dollars,
* China at pnces denominated in Chinese Yuan, and

* Mexico at prnces denorminated m Mexican Peso
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group anters Into forward loresgn exchange contracts o cover specrfic fareign currency payments and recepts and 10 manage the nsk associated
wiith anticipated sale and purchase transaclions Basis adustments are made to the carryng amount of non-financial hedged tems when the anticpated
sale or purchase transaction takes place

The following table datails the forward currency contracts outstanding at the penod end

Average
exchangs rate Foreign Contretl
Stering loragn currency vabug Feir value
cumency 000 €000 €000
Sell US Dotlars (up to 12 months) 155 963 619 617
Sell Eurog {up to 12 months} 138 8,986 6,521 6 362

Forward foreign exchange contracts have been used to hedgs the exchange rate nsk ansing from these commitments which are designated as cash
flow hedges As at 31 July 2015, the aggregate amount of unrealised profits under forward loresgn exchange contracts deferred in the hedging reserve
relatng to the exposure on lrade recenvables and anticipated sale transactions amounted 10 £161,000 H s antcipated that the sales will be made

in the twelve months following the balance shest date

Crednt rigk

The Group's pnncipal financial agsets are bank balances and cash, trade and other recesvables, wihich represent the Group s maximum exposure
to credi nsk in relation 1o financiral assels The Group's credit nsk 15 pamardly atinbulable to s trade recervables The amounts presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet are nal of allowances for doubtiul recelvables estimated by the Group’s managemeni bassd on prior expenence and
their assessment of tha current economic environment The Group's credit sk is refatvely low as the Group maintains credn msurance, for its UK
operations, Lp o a maximum aggregate claim n any one year of £13 65 milon In addition, s UK subsidianes’ sales are prncipally with a large
number of counterparties and customers in the UK, and are denominated in Sterling

Belore accepling any new customer the Group uses an external credit sconng system to assess the potential custormer's credit quality and defines
cracht imng by customer Limits and sconng attnbuted to customers are reviewed regularty

Included in the Group's trade recervablas balance are debtors with a carying amount of £7 6 multon (2014 - £10 9 million} which are past due at the
reportng dale lor which the Group has not prowided as there has not been a signilicant change in credil quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances

Ageing of impaired receivables

2015 2014
£'000 €000
Betwesn 0 and 59 days 122 272
Between 60 end 89 days - %)
Batwesn 90 and 119 days 981 615
120 days and above 305 796
1,408 1,716

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Balance at the beginming of the period 1,716 1,330
Impawment {osses recognised 191 649
Amounts written off as uncollactible {291) (123)
Impaimment losses reversed {208) 140
Balance at the end of the period 1,408 1716

In deterrmining the recoverability of a trads receivable the Group considers any change in the quality of the trade recenvable from the date the credit
was inisally granted up 1o the reporting dale The concentration of credi rigk is imited due to the customer base besng large and unrelated, and being
covered by credt insurance arrangements Accordingly, the Directors befieve that there 1s no further creant provision required in excess of the allowance
for doubtful debts
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Ageing of past due but not impglred recewvables

2015 2014
£000 £'000
Betwesn 0 and 59 days 6,667 9,201
Between 60 and 89 days 892 1,370
Between 90 and 119 days 90 309
7,649 10,880

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy 1s lo maintain flexibiity with respect o ts kquidity posiicn, by utilising short-term cash deposits and, where necessary, short-term
bank borrowings for working capital 2nd kenger-term borrowings for capdal expendiure requirements  The Group renegoliated s revolving mutticumancy
facifity from £90 0 mihon to £115 0 mulhon in the current penod  The agreement includes an overdratt faciity of £15 0 milion to fund short-term working
capital requirements  The contraciual matunties of drawn down borrowings, as well as undrawn faciities, 2re detaled in nole 23

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensura that éntities in the Group will each be able to continue as a QoINg concern while maximising the return to
stakehciders through the optmisatan of the debt and equity balance The capdal structure of the Group consists of dabt which mciudes the borrowmngs
disclosed in note 23, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent, comprsing issued capial, reserves and retained
earmings as disclosed n the Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equity

30 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordingry shanes
Number of 10p each
ot shams £000
Issued and {ully paid
At 2 August 2014 125,170,705 12,517
Issued in the penod 5,718,707 572
At 31 Juty 2018 130,889,412 13,089
All autherised and 1ssued share capital 15 reprasented by equty shareholdings
31 ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Caplal
Shore Merge: redemplion
premam reserve asene Total
€ 000 £ 000 £000 £'000
Balance at 3 August 2013 46,689 3938 1,238 51,885
Issue of share capital - 925 - 925
Transfer of contingent consideratwon deemed as remuneration - 444 - 444
Balance at 1 August 2014 46 689 5,307 1,238 53,234
Acquisitions - 1731 - 1,731
Transter of contingent consideration deemed as remuneration - 249 - 249
Recogrtion ol share-based payments 307 - - 307
Balance at 31 July 2015 46,996 1,287 1,238 55,521
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

- - I
32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT
Reconciliation of cash generated from operations
205 2014
£'000 £'000
Profit from continuing operations 11,713 13,492
Adpstments for
Depreciation of property, plant and egquipment 7,201 7,428
Share of losses from joint venture a8 120
Impaimment losses 3,009 2,058
Amortsation of imangible assets 8,690 6,879
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment ) (863)
Profit on disposal of a subsxdiary - (1.345)
Increasa/(decrease) in deferred Income 1,132 (1.498)
Share-based paymant charge 908 1,158
Settlement of share based paymenis 541 344
Increase in denvatves {87) 4}
Decrease in defined benefits pension scheme {2,325) (1,703}
Payment of deemed remuneration {975) -
Remeasurement of deferred consideration 2,538 -
{ncrease in contingent consideration required 1o be trealed as remuneration 6,233 4885
Decrease In provisions (409) (187)
Operating cash inflows before movements in worlung capital 37,556 30,767
(Increase)/decrease i inventongs {833) 1,292
Decrease/(increase) in recevables 6,864 (9.672)
(Decrease)incraase i payables (8,07T) 8.829
Cash generated from operations 35,510 3,216
Analysis of net debt
Foreign
2 August exchange 31 July
2014 Cash flow Reciassiy  gains and losses 2015
£ 000 £ 000 L 000 £000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 12,336 2,775 - 1,281 16,392
Financse Isase obligations due less than one year %) 28 (n - -
Finance lsase obigatons dua more than one year an - 17 - -
Bank loans (55,000) (24,447) - 222 (79,225)
(42,692} (21,644) - 1,503 (62,833)

Cash and cash eguivalants {which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the Consolidated Balance Sheet) compnse ¢ash at bank
and other shori-lemmn hughly liquid invesiments with a matunty of three months or less The effective interest rales on cash and cash equivalents are

based on current markel rales
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33 CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Capital expenditure contracted but not prowded 689 -

At 31 July 2015 the Group had outstandng commitments for the future minimum lease payments undsr non-cancellabla operatng leases as follows

205 2014
Land and 2018 Land and 2014
bulldings Other bulkdings Cther
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £000
Within one year 2,902 1,101 4,576 1,140
Between two and five years 8,985 1,412 8,757 1,532
After five years 553 - 2,268 -
12,440 2,513 15,601 2672

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Company operates & number of share-based payment schemas for cerlain employess of the Group IFRS 2 Share-based Payment has been
appfed to all shars-based rewards made alter 7 November 2002 that did not vest bafora 31 July 2004 as detalled below

Discrotionary Executive Share Option Scheme 2001 {‘ESOS 20017
Executve Directors and certain members of senior management have been granted share options under the Company’s discretionary share option
schemes Detals of the ESOS 2001 Scheme are included in the Directors' Remuneration Repon

A reconciliation of the movement 1s shown below

Weighted average

Number of options exercise price

2015 2014 2015 2014

oo 000 £ £

Outstanding at the beginnng of the penod 100 250 066 064
Exercised dunng the penod - {150) - 062

Outstanding at the end of the penod 100 100 066 0B6

Exercisable at the end of the period 100 100 068 066
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

Long-tarm Incentive Plan 2010 {'LTIP')

Executwe Direclors and certain members of senior management have been granted nil-cost share optlions under the Company's tong-term incentive
plan Details of the LTIP are ncluded in the Directors' Ramuneration Rsport

215 2014

000 000
Number of options
Cutstanding at the beginning of the penod 3,866 4,852
Granted dunng the penod 809 889
Lapsed dunng the penod {171) (1,008}
Exercised during the penod {1,643) (867)
Outstanding at the end of the period 2,061 3,866
Exercisable at the end of the pericd 122 59
Estimated % of options vesting over next three years 78% 100%

The fair value of the options granted i the current period under the LTIP scheme were measured using a Black-Scholes options pricng model
The mputs to the model are

(k]
Wexghted average mid-market sharg price £187
Weighted average exercise pnce £Ni
Expected ke 3 years
Expected volatlity 30 00%
Risk free rate 2 00%
Dnadend yeld 500%
Weughted average far valua of the ophons £161

Save As You Earn Share Option Plan (*Sharesave Plan’)
The Company has granted share options to elgible employees under an HMRC-approved all-empioyee Sharesave Plan Detals of the plan are included
on page 42 of the Daectors' Remuneration Report

A reconciiation of the movemant in the share options is shown below

Waelghtad avarage

Number of oplians exarcise price

2016 2014 2015 2014

‘000 000 £ £

QOutslanding &t the begnning of the penod 1,475 1,841 088 08s
Granted dunng the penod - - - -
Lapsed dunng the penod (74) (283} 080 oM
Exercised dunng the penod (566) 83) 066 084
Qutstanding at the end of the pencd 835 1,475 103 088
Exercisable at the end ot the period 103 - Q65 -

Share-based contingent consideration required to treated as remuneration
The Group recognised a shara based charge of £4,978,000 (2014 - £4,195,000) relalng to contingent consideration for tha acquisition of Data
Digrtal and Consutting businesses

The Group recognised a total charge of £5,888,000 (2014 - £4,427,000) refating to equity-setiled share-based payment transactions The exercise price
of options outstanding at 31 July 2015 ranges between £Ni and £1 08

Deferred Bonus Scheme

On 4 November 2014, pursuant 1o the Directors ard] Senor Executives Deterred Bonus Scheme cuthned on page 41 of the Direclors” Remuneration
Repon, a portion of the net bonus payabis to Matt Armitage and Patrick Martell in respect of the 2014 financial penod was used to purchase 85,764
orchnary shares in (he Company from the Group's Employee Benefit Trust ('EBT') on behall of Ihese Direclors al 192 35 pance per share
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions batween the Company and s subsiianes, whch are related parlies, have been eliminated on consokdation and are not disclosed
n this note  No matenal retated party transactions have bean entered into dunng the current penod, which might reasonably affect the decisions made

by the users of these financial statements

On 11 November 2014, sharas in the Company wem purchased from the Group's Employee Benefit Trust on behali of Matl Armitage and Painck Martel

as outlined In note 34

No other executve officers of the Company or therr associates had materal iransactions with the Group dunng the penod

Transactions in respect of SI Ives defined benefils pension scheme are disclosed n note 28

Dunng the penod, the Group earned revenue of £315,380 (2014 - ENi)) from s joint venture in Loop LLC At 31 July 2015, an amount of £324,000

{2014 - £74,000) was due from Loop LLC

Remuneration of key management personnel

The rermuneration of the Directors who are key management personne! of the Group 1s set out below in aggregate for each of the categones specified

InI1AS 24 - Related Party Disclosure

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Short-term employee benefits 1,185 1,741
Post-employment benefits 83 96
Termmnation benefits - 30
Shars-based payment 430 1.815
1,707 3682
36 POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
On 13 August 2015, the Group acquired the entire share caprtal ol Fnpp Sandermann and Partners Limited, & UK-based retai consultancy
The consideration was satishied in cash and St ves sharas
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QUR FIGURES

NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

37 LIST OF UNDERTAKINGS

The trading subsidaries of the Company, held directly or indirectly, as at 31 July 2015 are shown below

Mature of Business Location Place of mcorporaton
Amazs Commumnicatons Services Limied Strategic Marketing  Manchester & other UK sies England and Wales
Amaze Europe Limited Strategic Marketing  Manchaster & other UK stes England and Wales
Amaza Limited Strategic Marketmg ~ Manchester & other UK siles England and Wales
Sranded3 Search Limited Strategic Marketing Leeds & London England and Wales
Clays Uimited Books Bungay & London England and Wales
eBee Limited Strategwe Marketing London England and Wales
Hare Limted Markeling Activgtion Flintshire Engtand and Wales
The Health Hive Limited Strategic Marketing London England and Wales
Incna Marketing Planning Limited Strategic Markeimg London England and Wales
Incite Markating Planning Smgapore PTE LTD Strategic Markegtmg Singapore Singapore
Incite Marketing Planning {Shanghai) Co Ltd Strategic Marketng Shanghay Chuna
Incita New York LLC Strategic Marketing New York Urited States of Amenca
My Bench Limited Strategkc Marketng Chilcompton England and Wales
Occam DM Limited Strategic Marketing Chilcompton England and Wales
Pollen Health Limited Strategic Markatng London England and Wales
Pragma Consulting Linited Strategic Marketing Lendon England and Wales
Reatise Limited Strategic Marketing Edinburgh & London Scotland
Response One Limhed Strategic Marketing Bath England and Wales
Service Graphics Limited Marketing Actvation London & other UK stes £ngland and Wales
Solstice Consutting LLC Strategic Marketing Ilinors United States of Amenca
Solstice Mobila Argentna S Strategic Marketing Buenos Alres Argentina
SP Group Limitad Markeing Activation Redddch England and Wales
St ves Management Services Limited Marketing Activation London England and Wales
Tactical Solutions UK Limited Marketing Actvation Fintshre Englangd and Wales

In addttion, the Company held, directly or indirectly, a number of non-tredng companies as at 31 Juty 2015

Amaze (Holdings) Limited

Amaze Communication Servces (Holdings) Limited

Amaze Technology Limited
Okana Systems Limited

Pragma Holdings Limited

Realise Holdings Limited
Response One Holdings Limited
Solstice Consulting Argertina LLC
Solstice Consulting Latin Amenca LLC
Southwest Mailing Limitad

St ves Blackbum Limded

St tves Burniey Limited

St ves Caerphily Limited

St ves Crocus BV

St Ives Direct Edenbndge timited
St ives Drect Leeds Limied

St ves Direct Limuted

St Ives Financial mited
St Ives Holdings Limited

St Ives Ilinos LLC

St lves Marketing Services (Delaware) LLC

St tves Markeling Services Limtad

St Iives Marketing Services (Singapore) PTE LTD
St lves Pension Schame Trusiees Limited

St Ives Westerham Press Limited

The Haallh Hive {US) LLC

The Haalth Hve Group Uimited
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

__
31 July 1 August
2015 2014
Nota £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Tangible assets 5 26,701 32,214
Investments 6 250,895 218 211
Debiors - amounis due after more than one year 7 392 884
277,088 251 309
Current assets
Cebtors ~ amounts due within one year 7 8,516 8,774
Assets held for sale 412 -
8,926 9,774
Creditors amounts falling due within one year B {49,630) {51,788)
Nat current liabillies 140,702) {42.014)
Total assets less current habilities 237,286 209,295
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 8 (78,246) {55 000)
Provision for liabilities 10 {337) (788)
Net assets 158,703 153,507
Capital and reserves
Share capital 11 13,089 12,517
Share premwm account 11 48,996 46 689
Other reserves 12 14,424 13,584
Profit and loss accoumt 13 84,194 807117
Total equity 158,703 153,507
These financial statements wera approved by the Board of Directers on 6 Ociober 2015 and signed on s behalf by
Matt Armitage Brad Gray
Chuef Executive Chief Financial Officer
L]
BLAD GLAY
St Ives ple Annual Report angd Accounts 2015 103

LHOdIY J1DILVHLS

FONYNYIACD UVHOLUOD

SIWNDL HNO



OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared n accordance with applicable Uniled Kingdom accounting standards

The Directors have, at the tima of approving the financial statements, a reascnable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources 1o continue m operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basls of accounting in preparning
ihe financial staternents Further detail is contained in the Dvectors’ Report on page 54

{a) Accounting convention
The financral statements of the Company are prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for revaluation of certan land and buildings
and financial instruments

{b} Accounting period
The financal statements are prepared for the 52 wesks ended 31 July 2015 (‘the finanal pennd’) Comparalve figures are for the 52 weeks ended
1 August 2014

{c) Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation 1s not provided on freehotd land or assets n the course of construction On other assels d1s provided on cost or revalued amounts
m equal annual nstalments over the estimated Iives of the assets The annual rates of deprecation are as follows

Freehold buddings 2% - 4%
Long leases Penod of lease
Plant and machinary 10% - 33'12%
Fixtures, fittings and equiprment 10% ~ 33'2% i
Motor vehicles 20% - 25% |

As permitted by Financial Reporting Standard 15 - Tangible Fixed Assets {FRS 157, those ireehold buidings valued at 31 July 1985 continue to be
carned at that value subject to depreciation

{d) Investments

Investments are stated at historical cost, less any provision 1or impairment

{e) Tax
Current tax inclucing UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1§ provided at amounts expected to be pad (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have bean enacied or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s prowdad in full on iming ditferences which resuit in an obligation at the balance sheet date 10 pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax,
at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystaliise based on current tax rates and law Timing differences anse from the incluston of items
of ncome and expendilure n lax compulations n penods different from those n which they are included in financial statements

Deferred tax s not provided on tming differences from the revaluation of fixed assets where lhere 15 no commiment to sell the asset, or on unremilted
earmngs where there is no commitment to rermit these earmings Deterred tax assets are recognised to the extent thal 1 1s regarded as more hksty than
not that they wilt be recovered Deferred tax assels and iabifities are not discounted

{f) Prowision for repairs
As tha Company 13 commitied under the terms of a laase to make repars 1o leasehold premises, provision 1s made for the estimated cost of repars
uver the iease period

{g) Foreign currencies

Where foreign currency borrowings have been used Lo finance or provide a hedge against eqully investments in overseas subsidanes axchange gains
or losses on the borrowings have baen offset in reserves 1o the exdent that they do not exceed the associated exchange differences ansing on the
retranslation of net investmenis

The transactions of the Company denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into Sterling at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction

Amounts recevable and payable denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are tfranslated at the rates rulng at that date
These exchange differences are ncloded in profit on ordinary actmties before lax

.
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{h) Share-based payments

The Company makes equity-settled share-based pgyments 10 certain employees, which are measured at fair vatue at the date of grant Tha falr value
determmned at tha grant date of the equrly-settied share-based payments is expensad on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod, based on the
Company's estimate of sharas that will eventually vest The far value of share options 1ssued 15 measured using 8 binomual mode! The expected lite
used in the mode! has been adjusted, based on management's besi estimate, for the effects of non-transferabilty, exercise restnchions, and
behavioural considerations

The cumulatve expense I1s reversed when an employes in receipt of the shara options terminates serice pnor ta the completion of vesting penod
Where ihe terms of an equily-settled award are modified on terminaton of the employment, the total far value of the share-based paymenis is
recorded in the profil and loss account

() Derwvative financial mstruments

The Company's acivities expose it primanly to the financial nsks of changes in foregn currency exchange rates and interest cales The Company uses
dervative financial mstruments to hedge its exposure 1o foreign exchange for the purchase of capital equipment denominated in foreign currencies and
the sala of goods similarty denominated

The use of financial denvatives 1s governed by the Group's polictes approved by the Board of Directors, which provide watlen panciples on the use
of financial denvatves constsient with the Group's nsk management siralegy The Company does not hold or 1ssue derivatve financial mstruments
for speculative purposes

Changes in the farr value of denvative inancial instrumenis Lhat are designated and elieclve as cash flow hedges of forecas! transachions are recogrised
directly m equaly and the ineffectve porlion 1s recognised immedialely m the profit and loss account If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or
forecast transaction resulls m the recognmion of an asset or kablity, then, at the time the assel or liability 1s recogrised, the associated gains and losses
on the derivative that had previously been recognised in equity are included In the initial measurement of the asset or kablity For the hedges that do not
result in the recognution of an asset or Lability, amounts delerred in equity are recogrised i the profit and loss account in the same panod i which the
hedged ilem afiects the nel profit or loss

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging mstrument expres or 15 sokd, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualdies for hedge accounting
AL that me, any cumulative gain or 10ss on the hedging mstrument recognised in equity 1S retalned : equity until the forecast transaction occurs

If a hedge transaction 1S no longer expecled io occur, the net cumulative gaun or loss previously recagrsed in equity is nchuded in ihe profil and

loss account for the penod

Denvatves embedded m other financial nstruments or other host contracls are treated as separale denvaives when ther nsks and characlensics
are not closely related to those of ther hos! contracts and the host contracts aré not camed at far value with unreabsed gans or losses reported
n the profit and loss aceoun

Those denvalives which ara not designated as hetges are classified as held lor trading and gains and losses on those instruments are recogmsed
immediately i the iofit ared loss agcount

(1) Pension costs

The Company operales a defined benefits pension scheme and a defined cornbulion pension schema The Company accounts for the defined benelits
pension scheme as il it were a defined contribution scheme under the prowisions of FRS 17 Pension costs for the Company’s defined coninbubon
scheme are charged aganst profils as payable Further detals are sel out in note 14

{K) Leases
Rental costs under operaling leases are charged lo lhe prolit and koss accounl n equal annual amounts over the pencds ol leases

() Cash tiows
A statemenl of cash flows has not been prepared for the Company as, in accordance with Financial Reporuing Standard 1 (Revised) 'Cash Fliow
Staternents’ {'FRS 1Y), cash flow information has been shown in the linancial statements of the ulimate parent compary

2 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
As perrmilled by Section 408 of the Comparses Act 2006, no profit and kss account of the Company $ included m these financial statements The prolt
for the financral penod for the Company was £8 5 milion {2014 - £13 6 milion}

3 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Fees paid to the audiors in respect of ther audr of tha Company were £130 000 (2014 - £105 000)
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QUR RGURES

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

4. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was

2018 2014
Numbar Numbar
Sales 1 1
Administration 62 63
63 64

Their aggregate remuneration compnsed
2015 2014
£000 £ 000
Wages and salanes 3,850 4,765
Social secunty costs 3an 460
Other pension costs 115 124
Share-based payment 5,886 4,427
10,222 9,776

Disclosure of ndwvidual Drectors’' remunaration, share options long-term incentive schemes, pension contnbutions and pension enttiements required by
lhe Comparues Act 2008 and those elements specified lor audil by the Financial Conduct Authonty are shown in Lhe 1ables in the Resmuneration Report
on pages 46 10 53 and form pant of these parent company financial statements Further detals ¢f share-based payments are contaned in nole 34 in the

notes Lo ihe consalidated financial statemenis

S TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Land and Land and Flxturas fthngs,

bukdngs buldings Prant end Assot uncler equipment and

Freahold Long leasas machinery construction motor vetucies Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation
Al 3 August 2013 39877 6 820 3,568 - 2,799 53.064
Additions 1,548 34 323 - 8 1,914
Disposals (989) - {816) - (332) {2.137)
Translers from subsidanes - - 40 - - 40
Reclassiication - - 20 - {20 -
At 1 August 2014 40,437 8,854 3,135 - 2455 52 881
Additions - 44 41 75 28 186
Orsposals {3,483) (6,238) (875) - ®1} (10,677}
Reclassification 10 assels held for sale 713} - - - - 713
At 31 July 2015 36,241 660 2,301 75 2,400 41,677
Accumulated depreciation and impalirment
At 3 August 2013 11,764 3.566 3.008 - 1,562 19,900
Charge 743 200 311 - 435 1.689
Imparment 225 433 167 - - 825
Disposals 830) - {8186) - {332) (1.778)
Transfers from subsidiaries - - 31 - - 31
Reclassification - - 34 - {34) -
At 1 August 2014 12,102 4,199 2,735 - 1,631 20,667
Charge 685 119 191 - 350 1345
Disposals {1,781) {4,056) (875) - (23) (6.735)
Reclassimcation 1o assets held for sale {301} - - - - (301)
At 31 July 2015 10,705 262 2,051 - 1,958 14,976
Net book value
At 31 July 2015 25,536 398 250 75 442 26,701
At 1 August 2014 28,335 2,658 400 - 824 32,214

The Company has freehold land with a book value of £4,320,000 (2014 - £4,320,000) which has not been deprecialed
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6 INVESTMENTS HELD AS FIXED ASSETS

Shares in
subsidianies Lnans {o Avaiabla for
al cost subsidiarics sale assets Tola!l
€000 £000 000 ¢om
Al 2 August 2014 98,625 119,455 ™ 21821
Acquisitions 1.670 - - 1,670
Transfer to subsidianes (66.253) - (139) (66.,384)
Loan advances - 109,735 - 109,735
Loan repayments - {12,947} - {12,947)
Loan capitalisation 40 000 {40,000} - -
Impaimment [tal) (128} - {199)
Foregn exchange revaluation - 809 - 803
At 31 July 2015 73,971 176,924 - 250,895
All of the above are unlisted mvestments The prncipal trading subsidianes are listed in note 37 of the Group financial statemens Dunng ths penod,
Service Graphics Limited and SP Group Limited were transferred to St ives Holdings Limited at cost
The Company's nvestment in and (oan 10 St lves Crocus BY was mpawred to ENil dunng the perlod, resuling in a charge of £199,000
7 DEBTORS
2015 2014
£000 £000
Within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 1,491 4,034
Cther deblors 995 1,879
Corporation tax recoverabia 5,259 1,656
Prepayments and accrued income 606 1,290
Oenvatve assels 165 15
8,516 9,774
After more than one year
Deferred tax 392 B84
392 884
The amounis of deferred 1ax provided in the financial statements are as follows
2015 2014
oo £000
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (491) (386}
Tirmung difterences on share optons 749 1,235
Other tirrung differences 134 35
392 B84
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TQ THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

L ___ Ao I
8 CREDITORS
2015 2014
£'000 €000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owing to Group undertakings 9,977 8,844
Bank icans and overdrafts (note 9) 31,284 27,507
Consideralion payable on purchase of subsidianes 1,032 4,683
Trade craditors 5§50 1,142
Other creditors mcluding tax and socal secunty 4,125 5150
Accruals and deferred income 2,662 4,462
49,630 51,788
2015 2014
£'000 £000

Amounts falling due atter more than one year
Bark loans and overdrafis {note 9} 78,248 55,000

9 BORROWINGS AND FINANCE OBLIGATIONS

2018 2014
£000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year

Bank overdratts 31,284 27,507
2015 2014
£'000 £ 000

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Bank loans less arrangermeant leas 78,246 55,000

Bank overdrafis and loans

In March 2015, tha Group negotiated a new ravolving multicurrency loan facility ncreasing the pravious facilty from £90 miiltion to £115 milion for a term
of four years expinng on 23 March 2019 and with tha abily to extend the term for & further year Up to £15 milkon may be drawn as an overdratt faciity
Interest on loan drawdowns is charged at LIBOR plus a margin which vares between 1 55% and 2 15%, depending on the ratio of the Group's net debt
to EBITDA excluding non-undertying tems Interest on overdraft drawdowns 15 charged at 2 00% over UK base rate

As at 31 July 2015, the Group's cutstanding loans within this faclity wera £72 million (2014 - £55 milion) The undrawn portion of this facilty at

31 July 2015 was £36 million (2014 - £35 mdlion)

The Company's overdraft 18 guaranteed by cenain United Kingdom subsidiary undertakings and the Company guarantees the loans and overdratis
of those Uniled Kingdom subsidiary undlentakings At 31 Juty 2015, the aggregate liability for the Company under this guarantee amounted lo
£101,336,000 (2014 - £83,097,0600) The aggregate value of overdrait iabiiles belonging lo these subsichanes which are guaranteed by the
Company amounted 10 £4,808,000 (2014 - £10,509,000)

As a1 31 July 2015, there was no loan or overdraft secured aganst the assets of the Company (2014 - CNI) The Directors consider that the carrying
amount of the loans and overdrafis approximates they fav value

The Compary has guaranteed amounts payable 1o certan property landlords and supphers of its trading subsidianes The maximum aggregate liabity
under these guarantees 18 £12 173,000 (2014 - £3 347,000)

10 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Provison for Provsion 16
ropars reorganisalion Total
£'000 000 £000
Balanca at 2 August 2014 226 562 788
Release to profit and loss account (56) (B8} (124)
Transfer from subsidiary 96 - 96
Utllised - {423) {423)
Balance at 31 July 2015 266 T4 37
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11 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

Qreinary sharea Shara premnsm
Number of 10p each account
of shares. £000 £000
Aliotted and fully pald
At 2 August 2014 125,170 705 12,517 48,689
Issue of share capital 5,718,707 572 307
At 31 July 2015 130,889,412 13,089 46,996
All authonsed and 1ssued share captal is represented by equity shareholdings
Tha foliowing shares were issued as partial consideration m raspect of acquistions made dunng tha current and pnor panod
Censideration
Nurmiber of necewed
shares ssued £'000
Realise Holdings Limied 406,632 174
The Heafth Hve Group Limited 1,036,885 357
Solstice Consuting LLC 2,125,254 1,925
Employee Baneft Trust and SAYE scheme 2,150,836 522
5,718,707 2978
Further detaits of the acquisibons are containad m note 12 1o the Consobdated Financial Statements
12 OTHER RESERVES
Ceaphta Sharg
Morgar redamption ESOP Traasury ophon Hedging
resong reserve eserva shares reserva TE3RTve Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £:000
Balance at 2 August 2014 5307 1238 {11) {163} 7,199 14 13,564
Acausitons 1,734 - - 845 - - 2,578
Transfer of share-based
contingent consideration deemed
as remuneration 249 - - 9568 (4,437) - {3,232)
Purchase of own shares - - {382) {2,458} - - (2,840)
Recognition of share-bagad payments - - 393 - 4 467 - 4,860
Tax on share-based payments - - - - {456} - {456}
(Gamns on cash flow hedges
Translerred 1o underying hedgad tems - - - - - {14} (14)
Ansing on forward cumrency contracts - - - - - (54} {54}
Balance at 31 July 2015 7.287 1,238 - (820} 6,773 {54} 14,424

Duning the penod, the Group's employee benefil tnsst acquired 114,815 shares in the Company al the market value and 1,600,000 shares al nommal value

On 4 November 2014, pursuant to the Dwectors and Semor Executives Deferred Bonus Scheme outlingd on page 41 of the Drectors” Remunaration
Repon, a porion of the net bonus payable 1o Matt Armitage and Patrick Martell in respect of the 2014 linancial penod was used to purchase 85,764

ordinary shares in the Company from the Group's Employee Benefit Trust (EBT') on behali of these Drectors at 182 35 pence per share

Asg at 31 July 2015, the Company held a portfolio of {reasury shares consisting of 452,732 ordinary shares
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OUR FIGURES
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

13 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

£ 000
Balance at 2 August 2014 80,717
Net profit for the financial penod 8,490
Dvfends {9,455)
Acguisitions o7
Transier of share-based contingent consideration deemed as remuneration 3.810
Recogniton of share-based payments 1,204
Tax on share-based payments 345
Balance at 31 July 2015 84,194

14 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company participates n both ihe defined benefits and defined contribution schemes operated by St ves pic The defined benefits scheme 1s a
muti-employer scheme, the assets and babildies of whuch are held in separate trustea-adminslered funds The pension costs are based on pension
costs across the Group as a whole For the defined contribution scheme, the profit and loss charge represents contributions payable

The pension costs of the Company are disclosed In nots 4

For the purpase of FRS 17, the Company is unable to wdentify s share ol the underying assels and habiliies of the defined benelils scheme
on a consisient and reasonable basis Accordingly, the Company accounts for Lhe defined benefits scheme as (11l were a delined conlnbulion scheme

The defined benefits scheme was closed to new entrants with effect from 6 April 2002 and cloged to future benefit accrual trom 31 August 2008
There are no contnbutions 10 fund future defined benefit accrual afer 31 August 2008 Regular contnbutions of £2,400,000 were made in the penod
and the Company expects 1o contnbute £2,400,000 to the scheme in 2015/2016

The Group 15 required to account lor the defined benefits schems under International Accounting Slandard 18 -~ Employee Benefits {'IAS 197

The IAS 19 disclosures, ncluded in note 28 of the noles 1o the Group financial statements, have been based on the results of the actuaral valuation
of the defined benefits scheme as et 6 Apnl 2013 adjusted to alfow for the assumptions and actuanal methodology required by [AS 19 and updated to
31 July 2015 by the scheme's acluary These disclosures show that the scheme's assets represented 51 9% of the scheme's liabilities (2014 - 96 7%)

15 STATEMENT OF GUARANTEE

The Company has signad a stalermnent of guaraniee in respect of a number of subsidiary companies under section 479C of the Comparwes Act 2006
As a result, the following subsidianes are exempt from the requiremaents of the UK Companies Act 2008 i refetion to the audlt of indmdual accounts
by wirtue of s470A of that Act

Company Company ragstration nurnber
Amaze {Holdings) Limted 06417738
Amaze Communication Senaces (Hokiings) Limited 02670835
Amaze Communication Seraces Limited 02051287
eBeo Limted 06844490
Okana Systems Lmited 03877530
Pollen Health Limited 07839170
Realse Holdings Limded SC308420
Aesponse One Holdings Umited 06724581
St tves Blackburn Uimited 1396772
St tves Burnley Limited 05464477
St Ives Dlrect Leeds Limited 03067683
St ives Dwect Limied 02451968
St Ives Holdings Limetad 00130460
St Ives Marketing Servces Limited 08417677
St lves Westerham Prass Limited 00483880
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

. R
FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Financial year ended 1 August 2014
Record date for final dvdend 21 November 2014
Annual Gensral Maating 2014 27 November 2014
Payment date for final dvidend of 5 00 pence per ordnary share 18 Decemnber 2014 v
F
»
Financial year ended 31 July 2015 @
Halt year end 30 January 2015 a
Announcement of Hall year results 10 March 2015 o
Record date for ntenm dividend 10 April 2015 Q
Payment date tor ntermm didend of 2 25 pence per ordinary share 8 May 2015 =
Financial year end 31 July 2015
Announcement of Full year results & October 2015
Annual General Meeting 2015 26 November 2015
Ex-dividend date 26 November 2015
Record date for proposed final dndend 27 Novamber 2015 3
Payment date for proposed fina! dividend of 5 55 pence per ordinary share 22 December 2015° 3
o]
Financial year ending 29 July 2016 %
Hall year end 29 January 2016 8
Announcement of Half yeer resulls March 2016 -
Financial year end 20 July 2016 §
z
If approved by shareholdars at the 2015 Annual Genaral Meetng tha proposed fnal dMdend wilk be paid on 22 December 2015 ,fg

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Dwvidend Remvestment Plan

Tha Dividend Rennvestment plan can be a convernant and easy way to builld up your sharsholding by using your cash dwdands to buy more shares in
the Company The Plan ig provided by Caprta Asset Services ( Capita’), a trading name of Capita IRG Trustees Limited, which is authonsed and regutated
by the Financiel Conduct Authonty

o
[
b
I
[a]
[
)
m
v

Should you require any further formation, please do not hesrate to conlact Capita Asset Services on 0371 664 0381 Calls are charged at the
standard geographic rate and will vary by prowder Calls outside 1he United Kingdom are charged at the applicable international rate Lines are open
betwesn 8 00 am to 5 30 p m, Monday 10 Fnday excluding. public holidays in England and Walas Afternatively please email shares@capita co uk
or Iog on to www captasharaportal com

Unauthorised brokers {'Boiler Room Scams’)
1 15 very unlikely 1hat a reputable authored (irm that a sharehaolder has had ne relationship with would make contact out of the blue offanng to buy
St ives' shares or offer clher Investment opportunities

Therelore, shareholdars are agvised to ba wary of anyone offenng to give unsolcited advice, buy shares at a discount or give free company reports
Thezs calls are typcally from overseas-based brokers’ who target UK shargholders, offering to sell them what are often worthiess or fugh nsk shares
n US or UK investments This sharp practice 1s commonly known as a ‘boider room scam’ |t you recaive any unsolicted investment advice

* make sure you get the correct name of the person or organisalion,

*» check that they are property aulhorised by the FCA before taking any action by vising www fca org uk,

* raport the matter to the FCA efther by caling ther Consumer Helpkne (0800 111 6768) ar by completing an on-ing form 81 www ica org uk/scams and
+ f calls persist, hang up
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OUR FIGURES
FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Corporate Information
Further mformation about the Group can ba found on our webste www st-ives co uk

This year's Annual Report and Accounts, as wall as copies of past years' Annual Reports and Accounts, Half year Statemants and Shareholder
crrculars, are avaliable to wew and downicad from our websie Regulatory announcemants and press relsases mada dunng the year, and in past
years, are also availabls to view in the Regulatory News section of the Investor Relations area of the website

Should you wish to recewve further coples of the Annual Report and Accounts or & copy of our Environmental Performance report, please contact the
Company Secretary, S1 ves pic, One Tudor Street, London EC4Y QAH

Shares
St tves pic ordinary shares of 10 pence each are hstad on the London Stock Exchange and trade under the symbol SIV Qur Intemational Secuntigs
identfication Number {ISIN) is GB0007688002 and our Stock Exchange Dailly Official List {SEDOL) nurnber 1s 768900

Shars pnce information and our latast regulatory announcements can be obtaned from the London Stock Exchange website,
www lendonstockexchange com

Shareholding Enquiries
St ves pic's register 1s maintained by Capita Asset Services, who are able to daal with shareholders® quertes, inctuding n respect of any of tha
following matters

transfer of sharas,

changs of name or address,

registenng the death of a shareholder,

lost share cenificates,

tost or out of date dividend warrants, and

tha payment of dvidends directly mo a bank or buldng society accounts

Ther contact detalls are St ves plc Shareholder Services, Capia Asset Services, Tha Regsstry, 34 Beckenham Roed, Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU

Capita's shareholder helpling telaphone number is 0871 664 0300 {calls cost 10 pence per minute plus network extras) It caling trom overseas,
please telephone + 44 208 638 3399 Lines are open from B 3C am to 5 30 p m , Monday to Fnday

Alternatively, you can email your query to our registrars at ssd@capitaregistars com atthough, for legal reasons, they may subsequently require you
to confirm any instruction n wnting

Our Principal Advisers
Stockbrokers
Nurmis Securtes Umned, The London Stock Exchange Building, 10 Paternoster Square, London EC4M 7LT

Financial Advisers
N M Rothschild & Song Lvnded, New Court, St Swithin's Lane, London EC4P 40U

Bankers
HSBC Bank plc, 76 Edgware Road, London W2 2EQ

The Royal Bank of Scotland pic, PO Rox 2 AG, 63 Piccadilly London W1A 2AG

Solicitors
Herbert Smith Freehills LLP, Exchanga House, Primrose Sireet, Londen EC2A 2EG
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One Tudor Strest
London
ECAY 0AH

Telephone 020 7928 8844

Email marketing@st-ves co uk
Website www st-fves €o uk
Twitter @StivesGroup
Linkedln  SiIves pic




